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Principal Office

Suite 2701
One Exchange Square
Central Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Hong Kong:
Citibank, N.A.
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor
24 Shedden Road, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Website

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/bestfood/index.htm

QX REH (&)

BRER
FBHA

RHEZHE &
2701%E

FEAERRIT
B8
ERBRTERAT
BARTERAT

B B ED

& B oK B g A AR S 15 A
HEETED

TERODBEFERE

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited
Royal Bank House — 3rd Floor
24 Shedden Road, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands

BEEROBFERIE

BEMERBERAT
EB
EERNEFR183%

A FH 0224

#8 1k

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/bestfood/
index.htm

BREERER2E =E-NFER

03



o
\ B‘ CHAIRMAN’S

N

-~

r

- STATEMENT
L ERHE

“ - w

-’

\




QHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHE

BUSINESS REVIEW

Since the Group entered the food and beverage industry in the second
half of 2016, it has strived for the implementation of the dual-wheel driven
strategy using investment management and operation management over
the past two years. The Group has devoted significant resources into its
food and beverage segment, and continuously made progress in line with
the designated strategy direction.

In 2018, the Group made a significant breakthrough in investment
management. At the end of 2018, it successfully acquired the control
over New Spicy Way Fish Hotpot, a leading fish hotpot restaurant chain
in China. As such, the interim work on the establishment of muilti-
category product control and invested brand portfolio was completed.

In respect of operation management, the Group continued to facilitate
the establishment of sharing and collaboration power of the Company’s
platform, which greatly enhanced the “empowerment” of its brands. For
instance, the Group enhanced the supply chain collaboration of its
brands, expanded the scope of centralized raw material procurement,
and shared the capacity of central kitchens and distribution centers within
the system in order to lower the supply chain costs. The Group formed a
team for investment promotion to accelerate the expansion of different
brands for our franchise business. The Group established Best Food
University, and conducted its market-oriented operation upon the
completion of its basic curriculum system in 2018 with the integration of
internal resources and the introduction of an external professional team.
The Group put great efforts into overall digital operations and focused on
the introduction of new retail business and the consolidation of online and
offine sales channels on the foundation of upgraded digital operating
system and operating level.

During the past year, Best Food Holding went through difficulties and
basically completed the establishment of its brand portfolio. It further
defined its strategic direction in operational management, laying the
foundation for 2019 to move forward.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ERHE (&)

Looking forward into 2019, the Group will focus on the refinement of
operation management. On the foundation of promoting the growth of
various brands, the Group will enhance efficiency and reduce costs
through collaborative sharing, and raise the Company’s value through the
development of digitalized operations. For instant, on the expansion of
franchise business, the Group will conduct vertical and horizontal
resources integration and support the achievement of the goal of different
brands for our franchise business. In terms of digital operations, the
Group will deepen the effort to digitalization on the levels of both Best
Food and its various brands by upgrading the tools and operational
means.

Along with fierce and rapid change in competition, the food and beverage
market in China is also full of vitality and with huge scope for expansion.
We are even more convinced of the judgment of starting Best Food
Holding two years ago and its ability to leap forward in 2019!

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers and business partners for their strong support
throughout the year. In addition, | would also like to take this opportunity
to thank all colleagues and staff for their persistent contribution to the
Group.

On behalf of the Board
Zhao John Huan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Commentary

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Best Food Holdings Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) recorded a
revenue of approximately RMB854.0 million, increased by 13.6% as
compared to the year ended 31 December 2017. Gross profit margin
dropped to 42.9% from 46.2%. Loss before tax amounted to
approximately RMB3.2 million. Loss for the period amounted to
approximately RMB8.9 million, which was mainly due to the effects on
net loss from written down of corresponding options upon completion of
the issuance of convertible bonds and non-recurring interest expenses
for convertible bonds of RMB5.2 milion in aggregate and one-off
transaction cost of RMB5.1 million.

Since the Group entered the food and beverage industry in the second
half of 2016, it has strived to implement the dual-wheel driven strategy
using investment management and operation management in the past
two years. The Group has devoted significant resources into its food and
beverage segment, and continuously made progress in line with the
designated strategy direction. In respect of investment management, the
Group has acquired and invested in over 10 leading food and beverage
brands in China, thereby offering different types of products in the food
and beverage industry. In 2018, the Group has made a significant
breakthrough in investment management. At the end of 2018, it has
successfully acquired the control over New Spicy Way Fish Hotpot (“New
Spicy Way”), a leading fish hotpot restaurant chain in China. As such, the
interim work on the establishment of multi-category product control and
invested brand portfolio has been completed. In respect of operation
management, the Group continued to facilitate the establishment of
sharing and collaboration power of the Company’s platform, which
greatly enhanced the “empowerment” of its brands. For instance, the
Group enhanced the supply chain collaboration of its brands, thus
lowering the costs on raw material procurement. The Group has also
proactively explored different brands for our franchise business, and
accelerated store expansion. The Group has established Best Food
University, which provided training courses for management of its brands,
thus enhancing the efficiency in talent training. The Group focused on the
introduction of new retail business and the consolidation of online and
offline sales channels, which laid a solid foundation for digitalized
customer management. The Board believes that, if our controlling brands
and invested brands adhere to the fast iteration of the teams, products
and models, while the Group continues to devote resources to build the
ability of “empowerment”, we will be able to open up growing potential
for each brands.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEENWED (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, there were 465 stores in the
food and beverage segment, with total revenue of invested companies
for the year amounted to RMB1,667.3 million. Revenue attributable to the
Group amounted to RMB470.2 million (for revenue generated from New
Spicy Way, only revenue generated in December 2018 was included).
The gross profit margin in the food and beverage segment was 57.5%.

Following the implementation of a series of operation improvement
measures on market development, cost control and other aspects over
the years, the handbags segment of the Group has maintained operation
since its turnaround to profit last year. During the year, overall profit
contribution from handbags segment was limited due to the substantial
preliminary investment in factories in Myanmar made during 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue generated from
manufacturing and sales of handbags segment amounted to RMB383.9
million, with gross profit margin of 25.1%.

Industry Review and Prospects

Along with the rapid economic development and changes in internet
technologies, competition in domestic food and beverage market has
been evolving, and is currently at a new phase of high quality
development. According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the
domestic revenue of food and beverage industry amounted to
approximately RMB4.27 trillion in 2018, with growth of 7.5% as
compared to the corresponding period of last year. The growth rate was
higher than that of the aggregate retail sales of social consumer goods.
Consumption in food and beverage industry became an important driver
for domestic consumption market.

We observed that the trend for branding in the food and beverage
industry in 2018 had became more apparent along with the increasing
demands of customers on products and experiences. Against the
backdrop of internet technology reform and the development of big data
analysis methods, a new round of commercial reform surrounding
customers operation has already commenced.

Strategic Planning Review and Prospects

Taking into account the state-of-the-art of China’s food and beverage
industry, the Group strives to its overall strategy of “promoting the
continuous growth of corporate value through a dual-wheel driven
strategy using investment management and operation management”.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

For investment management, the revenue and profit from the controlling
projects represented an important source for of revenue for the food and
beverage segment, as well as a core component of collaborative
network. In 2018, the Group continued to facilitate its works on layout of
core controlling brands. After completion of the acquisition of New Spicy
Way, it is expected that future contribution from food and beverage
segment to the profit of the Group will significantly increase. For joint-
stock brand investment, the Group will continue to implement strict
standards in selecting brands boasting a size to a certain extent,
possessing unique features and having established a leading position in
its own category. Meanwhile, the Group will establish its internal
“empowerment” ecosystem and accelerate its development by tapping
into group-level systematic value-added services.

For operational management, the Group will continue to put efforts in
building value-added service system. The Group will also provide
systematic support for its brands in terms of digitalization and new retall,
channel expansion and franchise business, supply chain collaboration,
operating data analysis, training and human resources, thus improving
the overall operating efficiency of the Group, reducing costs, enhancing
brand influence and achieving continuous growth in corporate value.

Business Progress

Development in Investment and Investment Management

In 2016, the Group acquired the controlling interest in HHG, a leading
fast food chain in Beijing featuring rice meals, invested in Yujian Xiaomian,
a prominent emerging brand, and “West Master”, a leading Chinese fast
food brand in Beijing. In addition, the Group entered into an investment
contract with Sexy Salad, a rapidly emerging and prominent brand of
salad within the food and beverage industry in China, in March 2017, an
investment contract with Yuepin in March 2017, which owns two iconic
brands of Viethnamese cuisine, Muine and Pho Nam, an investment
contract with Clay Pot King in April 2017, a typical brand of Canton clay
pot rice, an investment contract with Dafulan in May 2017, an prominent
emerging brand featuring Hunan rice noodle and traditional snacks, an
investment contract with Seesaw in May 2017, a typical premium coffee
brand, and another investment contract with Foook in October 2017, a
representative brand of spicy hot pot. The Group has completed
investments in all these brands stated above. In June 2018, the Group
entered into an investment contract with New Spicy Way, a leading brand
of fish hot pot in China. The first round of investment was completed at
the end of November 2018, thus successfully obtained control over New
Spicy Way. Meanwhile, the Group possessed abundant project reserves
in major sub-categories under food and beverage industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEENWED (&)

Establishment of Operational and Management Platform
In 2018, the Group continued to devote significant resources to enhance
its capability of post-investment management and value-added services.

For digitalization and new retail, the Group has established “Best Food
Store”, which introduced numerous unique and popular retail products in
collaboration with its brands. Meanwhile, in order to conduct trial
operation of integrated online and offline retail mode, the Group set up
unmanned shelves in its retail stores. Subsequently, upon the completion
of user information collection for new retail mode, the Group will further
integrate user data of various brands, thereby facilitating the
establishment of cross-brand digitalized user management system.

For digital upgrade of various brands, the Company and Xinyi, an
investee of the Company, jointly facilitated the collaboration between
Foook, Sexy Salad and the Artificial Intelligence (Al) restaurants under
Tencent. Hence, Foook became the first batch of practical examples of
Al food and beverage stores under Tencent.

For channel expansion and franchise business, the Group recruited
professionals for its franchise business, conducted targeted search on
supporting factories, which possess channel expansion resources and
system management experience in franchise business, and rapidly
expanded franchise market through business collaboration.

For supply chain collaboration, the Group entered into strategic
collaboration agreements with large supply chain service providers.
Tendering on procurement of certain major raw materials had been
completed, thus realizing sharing of supply chain capabilities between
investees.

For information system, the Group has completed the initial formation of
its operating data centre, and will subsequently connect the data
interfaces within its controlling brands, and based on which build a data
collection and analysis system. By collecting and exploring operational
data of investees, it can provide valuable output for the operating
strategies of investees.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

For human resources and training, having undergone elaborate
preparation and trial operation, training courses of “Best Food University”
commenced since July 2018. Best Food University has been officially
established and will be positioned as the carrier for the Company to
provide human resources and training services for investees. Through
recruitment and regular organization of in-depth yet practical senior
management seminars for renowned entrepreneurs, industry experts and
management of brands under the Company, it offers extensive
managerial and general courses distinctive from the internal brand
training.

Business Progress of Controlling Brands

In 2018, HHG made significant investments in brand, channels, supply
chains, product development and information. In 2019, HHG clearly put
forward the annual strategic policy of “Activating Organization,
Streamlining Varieties, Increasing Categories, Optimizing Quality;
Capacity Upgrade, Value Realization; Customer’s Satisfaction,
Employee’s Pride”, which is expected to lay a solid foundation for further
expansion in the future.

Store Network: In 2018, HHG had a total of 142 stores, of which 28 were
franchise stores and 15 were newly opened. In 2018, while continued to
expand its market share in Beijing, HHG put greater efforts in expanding
its franchise business and exploring overseas markets. In addition, in
order to improve its overall profitability, HHG gradually disposed stores
that incurred losses for long run. With the investments in brand, channels,
supply chains, product development and information by HHG, it is
expected that a solid foundation would be laid for further expansion in the
future.

Brand Strategy: In 2018, HHG adjusted its overall branding strategy, and
continued to make improvement in terms of products, positioning and
brand image. HHG keeps improving overall consumer experience through
optimizing the menu, launching new products, adjusting dish varieties,
reviewing pricing strategy and improving dining environment. At the same
time, HHG put greater efforts in expanding its delivery business, which
has been promoted to the level of corporate strategy. While proactively
conducted various marketing activities to increase its influence in different
delivery platforms, HHG also enhanced the capability of its delivery team,
thereby improving its delivery operation. Delivery sales of HHG increased
significantly in 2018, accounting for 42.1% of total sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEENWED (&)

Channel Expansion: HHG optimized business of its stores, reduced the
investment amount for single store, and shorten the return cycle for single
store. HHG also facilitated its collaboration with external institutions,
thereby facilitating the launch of franchise business.

Supply Chain: In 2018, the centralized kitchen of HHG in Tianjin had put
into operation, and generated sales to external customers.

Product Development: In 2018, HHG extended the open hours of its
stores by further diversifying the menu offerings in breakfast time and
dinner time. Meanwhile, HHG promoted the development of retail
products, and increased the conversion rate of store traffic through
expanding product types.

Information System: In 2018, HHG conducted another upgrade of its
backstage information system, and optimized membership module and
invoicing module, thus laying a foundation for future membership
operation and supply chain efficiency enhancement.

Team and incentive mechanism: In terms of management team, HHG
greatly promoted and introduced young team members to its
management team. In terms of stores, HHG conducted trial operation on
partnership mechanism, aiming to improve the synergy in interests of
store staff.

Store Network: In 2018, New Spicy Way had a total of 104 stores, of
which 4 were franchise stores and 12 were newly opened. In 2018, while
continued to expand its market share in Beijing, New Spicy Way put
greater efforts in exploring overseas markets. Looking forward in 2019,
New Spicy Way will put greater efforts in expanding its franchise
business. In addition, in order to improve its overall profitability, HHG
gradually disposed stores that incurred losses for long run.

Operation Management: New Spicy Way conducted reform on its
operating system and adjusted regional management mode. It has
reduced food costs through supply chain collaboration, and underwent
human resources streamlining. On the other hand, New Spicy Way put
greater investment in talent and brand building, aiming to improve
customers’ satisfaction as its highest priority.

Channel Expansion: In 2019, while facilitating and promoting its franchise

mode, New Spicy Way also focused on maintaining product quality,
aiming to achieve standardized management.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Business Progress of Joint-Stock Brands

In 2018, all joint-stock brands of the Group achieved significant growth
with the improvement in operating systems. However, the scaling effect
is yet to be realized due to the limitation on size and volume, coupled
with intermittent increase in investment required in order to maintain long-
term growth, they are yet to contribute to the profit for the Group. The
Group is of the view that, along with the expansion in store network and
scale of our joint-stock brands, as well as stepping into new round of
financing stage for certain brands, our joint-stock brands will become an
important source of profit of the Group. The following is a summary of
business data of our investees for 2018:

Revenue of Associates for 2017/18 and Year-on-year Growth

Unlt RMB’000,000
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In 2018, the revenue of Yujian Xiaomian amounted to RMB92.9 million,
which has increased by approximately 79.7% as compared to last year.
Xiaomian made bold moves in innovative business models in 2018 and
launched a 24-hours store. Meanwhile, in terms of new retail, Yujian
Xiaomian proactively developed retail products of its own brand and will
open online shops on multiple major e-commerce platforms in 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEENWED (&)

In 2018, the revenue of West Master amounted to RMB149.9 million,
which has increased by approximately 51.1% as compared to last year.
Regarding store network, West Master successfully opened a new store
in Shenzhen which is its first store in a new geographical area and
launched its international brand “Bingz” in 2018. In 2019, West Master
will accelerate the expansion of its store network through franchising.
Meanwhile, in terms of supply chain, West Master established an
independent noodle factory to provide support for its store network
expansion.

In 2018, the revenue of Sexy Salad amounted to RMB33.8 million, which
has increased by approximately 21.6% as compared to last year. Sexy
Salad further strengthened its advantages in customer operation in 2018
and cooperated with Tencent for the launch of an offline intelligent store,
which improved user experience by utilizing facial recognition, facial
recognition payment system, applets order and multiple interactive
marketing, hence customer’s loyalty was increased.

In 2018, the revenue of Yuepin amounted to RMB98.6 million, which has
increased by approximately 52.4% as compared to last year. Yuepin
focused on the improvement on store level assessment and incentive
method in 2018 by establishing a “horse racing” incentive program
among stores, which led to a significant increase in customer satisfaction.
In 2019, Yuepin will focus on product elevation and membership system
upgrade.

In 2018, the revenue of Dafulan amounted to RMB41.8 million, which has
increased by approximately 147.3% as compared to last year. In 2018,
Dafulan continued to cultivate in Shenzhen market and strived to maintain
healthy development of its store performance. In 2019, Dafulan will
further streamline its product structure and upgrade the brand by
promoting its store image, at the same time enhance the incentive
mechanism and establish an evaluation mechanism directly under the
head quarter.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

In 2018, the revenue of Clay Pot King amounted to RMB139.8 million,
which has increased by approximately 122.0% as compared to last year.
In 2018, Clay Pot King focused on refining the operation of its delivery
business and promoting its brand. In 2019, Clay Pot King will accelerate
the expansion of its franchise network.

In 2018, the revenue of Seesaw amounted to RMB57.5 million, which
has increased by approximately 62.0% as compared to last year. In
2018, Seesaw materially refined its customer operation and customer
experience by upgrading its order system, membership system and
applets. In 2019, Seesaw will further enhance its store operation model
and make better selection of store locations.

In 2018, the revenue of Foook amounted to RMB48.2 million. In 2018,
Foook accelerated the progress of digitized operation and became a
model among Tencent’s pioneer intelligent restaurants. In 2019, Foook
will focus on product upgrade and new retail business expansion.

In 2018, our factory in Myanmar has commenced its official production
upon prolonged preparation. The shift of final processing procedures to
the Myanmar factory had been basically completed. Meanwhile, core
functions such as management, design and sales were still conducted in
Mainland China and Hong Kong with higher efficiency.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the manufacturing and sales of
handbags segment recorded revenue of approximately RMB383.9
million, increased by 12.2% as compared to the corresponding period of
last year. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the results
arising from efforts in expanding order sources at early stage, being new
orders received from customers, namely VERA BRADLEY and H&M.
Meanwhile, sales from existing customers remained stable with slight
increase.

Looking forward, the Group is confident that our manufacturing and sales
of handbags segment can maintain stable growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEENWED (&)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The total shareholders’ equity of the Group as at 31 December 2018 was
RMB983.3 million (31.12.2017: RMB925.9 million). As at 31 December
2018, the Group had current assets of RMB642.6 million (31.12.2017:
RMB610.9 million) and current liabilities of RMB475.7 million (31.12.2017:
RMB373.1 million). The current ratio was 1.35 as at 31 December 2018
as compared to 1.64 as at 31 December 2017.

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cash
flow and convertible bonds issued to shareholder. As at 31 December
2018, the Group had outstanding bank borrowings of RMB5.0 million
(81.12.2017: nil). As at 31 December 2018, the Group maintained bank
balances and cash of RMB302.3 million (31.12.2017: RMB398.0 million).
The Group’s net cash-to-equity ratio (cash and cash equivalents net of
total borrowings over shareholders’ equity) was 0.30 as at 31 December
2018 (31.12.2017: 0.43).

The Group possesses sufficient cash and available banking facilities to
meet its commitments and working capital requirements.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2018 - the Group did not have any pledge on assets
(81.12.2017: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities
(31.12.2017: nil).

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions
and Disposals of Subsidiaries, and Future
Plans for Material Investments and Capital
Assets

Save as disclosed, the Group had no other significant investments
or material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries during the year
under review, and the Group also did not have definite plans for material
investments and capital assets.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2018, the Group ' s gearing ratio was 32% (31.12.2017:
nil).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group " s businesses are principally conducted in HK dollars, US
dollars and RMB, which is exposed to foreign currency risk with respect
to transactions denominated in currencies other than HK dollars, RMB
and US dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations. The Group did not
enter into any forward contract to hedge its exposure to foreign currency
risk for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BEEENWED (&)

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had capital expenditure contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
the property, plant and equipment improvement in the amount of
RMB6.6 million.

The Group has sufficient cash and available bank reserve to meet the
Group’s capital commitments and working capital requirements.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a workforce of about 8,600
people (Food and beverage business: 5,100 people, Manufacturing and
sales of handbags: 3,500 people). The Group maintains a good
relationship with its employees, and provides them with proper training
and competitive compensation and incentives. The staffs are
remunerated based on their work performance, professional experience
and prevailing market situation. Remuneration packages comprise salary
and bonuses based on individual merits.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
believes that sound and reasonable corporate governance practices are
essential for the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and
maximizing shareholders’ interests. On 1 January 2016, the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices and Corporate Governance Report (“CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
was amended. The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in
the CG Code. The Board is committed to complying with the code
provisions as stated in the CG code to the extent that the directors of the
Company (“Directors”) consider it is applicable and practical to the
Company.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with the CG
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 except where
stated and explained below.

—  Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
clearly established and set out in writing. Mr. Zhao John Huan is
the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. He
oversees and manages the Group’s business as the chairman with
the assistance of the Group’s senior management team. Other
functions normally undertaken by a chief executive officer of the
company are delegated to members of the Group’s senior
management team. This structure deviates from Code Provision A.2.1
of the CG Code that requires the roles of the chairman and the
chief executive officer to be separate and not performed by the
same individual. The Directors has considered this matter carefully
and decided not to adopt the provision. The Directors believe that
the current management structure has been effective in facilitating
the operation and development of the Group and its business for a
considerable period of time and that the necessary checks and
balances consistent with sound corporate governance practices
are in place. Accordingly, the Directors do not envisage the Group
should change its current management structure. However, the
Directors will review the management structure from time to time to
ensure it continues to meet these objectives.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TREBRSE (E)

—  Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general
meetings. Due to other important business engagement at the
relevant time, Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence, an independent non-
executive Director, did not attend the extraordinary general meeting
held on 18 October 2018.

—  Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the board
should attend the annual general meeting. The Chairman of the
Board did not attend the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 26 June 2018 due to other important business
engagement. The Chairman will endeavor to attend future annual
general meetings of the Company unless unexpected or special
circumstances preventing him from doing so.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions in 2011. All the members of the Board have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company that they have complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018. The Model Code also applies to other
specified senior management of the Group.

Board of Directors

Composition and role

The Board comprises:

Executive director

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Wang Yuanzheng

Independent non-executive director

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, the Board comprises three executive directors
(one of whom is the Chairman) and three independent non-executive
directors. The three independent non-executive directors represent more
than one-third of the Board. In addition, three of the independent non-
executive directors possess appropriate business, professional
accounting qualifications and legal expertise.

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic development
of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial performance, as well
as the risk management and the internal controls of the Group’s business
operations.

The independent non-executive directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate
governance framework. The Board considers that each independent
non-executive director is independent in character and judgment and that
they all meet the specific independence criteria as required by the Listing
Rules. The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation or confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The independent non-
executive directors are explicitly identified in all of the Company’s
corporate communications.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting at least once every three years and any director appointed by
the Board or elected by the shareholders of the Company to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next
following general meeting, as the case may be, of the Company after his/
her appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

The Chairman is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the
agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all directors. Notice
of at least 14 days have been given to all directors for all regular board
meetings and the directors can include matters for discussion in the
agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers in respect
of regular board meetings are sent out in full to all directors within
reasonable time before the meeting. Draft minutes of all board meetings
are circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time prior to
confirmation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TREL®HRE (A

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept
by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all directors
have access to board papers and related materials, and are provided
with adequate information in a timely manner, which enable the Board to
make an informed decision on matters placed before it.

During the year under review, six full board meetings were held and two
general meetings were held and the individual attendance of each
director is set out below:

i%A)Sii% Eg
EAREZWERT
Bﬁ%%A

RHER

BIREE H

ZEHLEAERE

FMMBEEEHARE
1 & AE BB R R E By i R R
FBEFEANRRFHEAED

REBEFERN EARANAEREFTENR
MABRRAE SEEFHFEBRFINNOT

Annual general

Extraordinary
general meeting

meeting held on held on

Number of board 26 June 2018 18 October 2018

meetings attendance 720186 H26H 12018F10818H

Name of director EEHR HEEEEEZAE BT 2RRBFAE BTZRREIXE
Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman) 8% 85t 4 (£ &) 4/6 01 01
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FBESAE 5/6 1/1 1/1
Mr. Wang Yuanzheng FRA A& 5/6 1/1 1/1
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR 4 55 &= 6/6 11 11
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence FENXRE 6/6 1/1 0/1
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REHASLE 6/6 1/1 1/1

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on his appointment, so as to ensure that he has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group
and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. There are also
arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and professional
development to Directors at the Company’s expenses whenever
necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments relating to the Group’s business and the legislative
and regulatory environments to the Directors at Board meetings or
through emails.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision A.6.5 of
the CG Code which came into effect on 1 April 2012 on Directors’
training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31
December 2018 to the Company. The type of training received is
summarized below:

EREL®E (A

EEAEETHEI4AIB R ER 2
TEEATUNEBESHEICTAEE
ABSIE H E2018F12A31BILFE» 2
REFEHAL2HBRERENBTENE MK
BECRHEBEREERR WEMAQREER
i%&%ﬁwm@me

Reading Attending external
regulatory seminars/
updates programmes
HEEERTE SEIMABBEY
Name of director EEHR BEHER mae SEH
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman) ELBEE(FE) v v
Mr. Wang Xiaolong T/hEERE v v
Mr. Wang Yuanzheng FTRAESLAE v v
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR #E 5% A& v v
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence BXEE v v
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei REREKE v v
Audit Committee BEREES
The Audit Committee was established in 2011 and its current members =& EZ E @ R2011EK Y - EREKE B
include: T
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (Chairman) RERELE(FE)
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei MR HE &
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence BN E
The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad ZFE @R AZIEREZECKEHAEEEZ
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in & pg & & - gv ZEeEghHEEARE e
accounting, business and legal on the Audit Committee. The composition =t - ¥R ZFEEX - ERXRETES 7 EER
and members of the Audit Committee complies with the requirements K ERF S ETRBIEI21IEZIRTE °
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
BRERBERAE —Z-—NEFH
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TREL®HRE (A

The Audit Committee meets regularly to review the Group’s financial
reporting and other information to shareholders, the system of internal
controls, risk management and the effectiveness and objectiveness of the
audit process. The Audit Committee also provides an important link
between the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within
the scope of its terms of reference and keeps under review the
independence and objectivity of the auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed risk
management, internal controls and financial reporting matters including a
review of the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2018.

During the year under review, two Audit Committee meetings were held
and the individual attendance of each member is set out below:

EZZEerTHASURSAEE 20K
E#&& FTRECEMER  RPEER
CRREEREZBREZERERER
|$ ERLZECTAEFETRADAEHK
MrzMAz2EERR TEREGRERNGE
SRIZEM B MR EEE -

EREZESCHUEREE R AEETER
SHRAIRIES  YEREBRER - W
CR R BEREERETHNGR EPE

%%%@immimﬂmatiEZQE

BRE -

REBEFERN HER-_KRBERZEES
R %%f%'J)ﬂZ/\E@ijla/RékE‘JZZDT-

Number of attendance
Name of director BEEHSR HEXRE
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei TR 4 5% & 2/2
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence BXEE 2/2
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei Z2EESE 2/2

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2011 and its current
members include:

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

All members of the Remuneration Committee are independent non-
executive directors. The Remuneration Committee advises the Board on
the Group’s overall policy and structure for the remuneration of directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee ensures that no
director or any of his associate is involved in deciding his own
remuneration. The new terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee were adopted in March 2012 to conform to the provisions of
the CG Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company’s website.
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In determining the emolument payable to directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and the
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has met during the year to determine the
policy for the remuneration of directors and assess performance of
executive directors and certain senior management. During the year
under review, one Remuneration Committee meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each member is set out below:

TEXERKE (E)

EEETRNTESZ MR FHEZES
DEEERAZ  BRRAEXHKTE E=F
FEMcRRERERE  SERNMHER
BREERBERHBIME -

FHZBECERNAFEREUNBEESY
MEBRREFERTESRETSRER
BzRB -NEBEFER  £AH—RHH
ZEQER RBEMNKENLEBRE
B

Number of attendance
Name of director EEHR HERE
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei MR #E 55 & 11
Mr. Wang Xiaolong FBERE 1/1
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei RERLE 1/1

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the fee payable to the
Company’s external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Company and its subsidiaries is set out below:

¥ BUED 3 A

NE IE2018F 12 AT HIEFE » AR A
NEKERRIERENET MIEFT RS
MZARRIINEZERESNNEBEHTOT

RMB’000

ARET R

Audit services BT R 2,200
Non-audit services IEEET RS 168
2,368

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in March 2012 and its
current members include:

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman)
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence

REZESE

REZBEGN2012F3ANY  BRKER

HeBEE(TE)
BEXSEE

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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The majority of the members of the Nomination Committee are
independent non-executive directors. The Nomination Committee has the
duty of reviewing annually the board structure and composition.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were adopted in
March 2012, a copy of which is posted on the Company’s website.

Nomination policy

When making recommendations regarding the appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination Committee shall consider a
variety of factors including without limitation the following in assessing the
suitability of the proposed candidate:

(@  reputation for integrity;

(b) accomplishment, experience and reputation in the food and
beverage industry and other related industries;

() commitment in respect of sufficient time and attention to the
Company’s business;

(d) diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge;

(e) the ability to assist and support management and make significant
contributions to the Company’s success;

) compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the appointment of an
independent non-executive Director; and

(@ any other relevant factors as may be determined by the Nomination
Committee or the Board from time to time.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-
appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board shall be made in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association and other
applicable rules and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Nomination procedure

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall convene a meeting, and
invite nominations of candidates from Board members (if any), for
consideration by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
may also nominate candidates for its consideration.

In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall undertake adequate due diligence in
respect of such individual and make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board for
its consideration and recommendation, for the proposed candidates to
stand for re-election at a general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at a general meeting.

Dividend Policy

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the Company has
adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). Subject to the Companies
Act of the Cayman Islands and the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company, the Company may from time to time declare
dividends in any currency to be paid to the members of the Company but
no dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount recommended by
the Board. The Board may also from time to time pay to the members of
the Company such interim dividends as appear to the Board to be
justified by the profits of the Company. Declaration of dividends is subject
to the discretion of the Board, taking into consideration of, among others,
(i) the Group’s financial performance; (i) the Group’s capital requirements
and debt level; (i) the Group’s liquidity position; (iv) retained earnings and
distributable reserves of the Group; (v) the Group’s business operations,
business strategies and future development needs; (vi) any contractual,
statutory and regulatory restrictions; and (vi) the general economic
conditions and other factors that may have an impact on the performance
and position of the Group. The Board will review the dividend policy from
time to time and may exercise at its sole and absolute discretion to
update, amend and/or modify the dividend policy at any time as it deems
fit and necessary.
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In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider candidates objectively with due
regards to the diversity. Diversity of the Board will be considered from a
number of perspectives, including but not limited to age, gender, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, as well as other
attributes and strengths that relate to the Company’s business model
and specific needs from time to time. The recommendations of the
Nomination Committee will report formally to the Board for decision.

During the year under review, no Nomination Committee meeting was
held.

Board Diversity

During the year, the Company continued to monitor the board
composition with regard to its diversity policy which requires board
appointments to be made based on merit and candidates to be
considered against an objective criteria, including diversity. In order to
maintain an appropriate mix and balance of talent, skills, experience and
background on the Board, the Nomination Committee developed
measurable objectives to implement this policy and monitored progress
towards achieving these objectives during the year ended 31 December
2018.

The current board composition was also evaluated by reference to,
among other things, the age, gender, cultural and educational
background and professional experience of each director, against the
Company’s business model and specific needs.

The directors of the Company believes diversity is important to enhance
the Board'’s effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and
to maintain high standards of corporate governance. The directors of the
Company will continue to monitor and develop new objectives for
implementing and achieving improved diversity on the Board as and
when it considers appropriate with regard to the specific needs of the
Company and the market from time to time.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of risk management
and internal controls of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board is committed to implementing an effective and sound risk
management and internal controls system to safeguard the interest of
shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated to
executive management the implementation of the system of risk
management and internal controls and reviewing of all relevant financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management function within an
established framework.

The system of risk management and internal controls of the Group
include a defined management structure and its limited licensing rights.
The purpose of the system is to assist the Group in identifying and
managing significant risks faced in achieving its business objectives,
safeguarding assets from unauthorized diversion or disposal, and
ensuring maintenance of proper accounting records to provide reliable
financial information for internal use or publication, and to ensure the
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The above monitoring
system is designed to manage rather than to eliminate the risks of the
operating systems failure of the Group or the failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable assurance against major
misrepresentation or loss, rather than absolute assurance.

The Group established the internal audit function to assist the Board of
Directors and the Audit Committee in continuously reviewing the
effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal controls of
the Group. The Group has integrated risk management into its core
business practices. The relevant operating units of the Group
continuously review and assess the potential risk conditions that may
affect their achievement of the business objectives of the unit and/or the
Group. The review process includes assessing whether the current
internal control system is still appropriate, whether the potential risks
have been adequately addressed, and/or whether it needs to be
updated.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, had conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal
controls of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018. Members
of the management team confirmed the effectiveness of the system of
risk management and internal controls of their responsible areas during
the year. The Board believes that, in the absence of any evidence to the
contrary, the system of risk management and internal monitor maintained
by the Group throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, provides
reasonable assurance against material financial misstatements or loss,
including the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper
accounting records, the reliability of financial information, compliance with
appropriate legislation and regulation, and the identification and
containment of business risks. The Board confirmed the effectiveness of
the system of risk management and internal controls, including sufficient
resources, appropriate qualifications and experience of employees, and
staff training courses, and adequate budget for accounting, internal
auditing and financial reporting functions. No significant areas of concern
have been identified, and the Board considered the system effective and
adequate.

The Group has formulated inside information policies and regularly
reminds directors and employees to properly comply with all policies
concerning inside information. In order to ensure sufficient attention for all
reports received, the Group has established a notification mechanism to
handle and discuss internal reports on financial, operational, internal
controls and fraud, etc. Major internal control deficiencies or reports will
be reported to the Audit Committee.

Company Secretary

Mr. So Wai Yin has been engaged by the Company as its company
secretary. The company secretary confirmed that he undertook no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training and relevant updates
during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2018, the directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the accounts on the
going concern basis. The directors are also responsible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Group.

Shareholders Rights

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. The rights of the
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) are set out in Company’s
articles of association.

Shareholders of the Company can: (i) convene an extraordinary general
meeting; (i) forward enquiries to the board of directors; (i) forward
proposals at shareholders’ meetings and (iv) nominate Directors for
election. Details of relevant procedures are available on the Company’s
website.

Investor Relations and Communication

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information about the
Group’s performance to shareholders through the publication of interim
results and annual results in a timely manner. In addition to dispatching
circulars, notices and financial reports to shareholders, additional
information is also available to shareholders on the website of the
Company.

The annual general meeting provides a useful platform for shareholders
to raise comments and exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are
encouraged to attend annual general meetings for which the Company
gives at least 21 days’ notice. The Chairman and Directors and external
auditors are available to answer questions on the Company’s businesses
at the meeting.
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Separate resolutions are proposed at the annual general meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual directors.
In addition, poll voting procedure is included in the circular to
shareholders dispatched together with the annual report.

Constitutional Documents

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESRGREEEBN

Executive Director

Mr. ZHAO John Huan, aged 56, the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Zhao has joined the Group as an executive
Director since 9 August 2016. Mr. Zhao is currently the chairman and
CEO of Hony Capital, as well as the Executive Vice President of Legend
Holdings Corporation (HKSE: 3396). Mr. Zhao also serves as non-
executive director of Lenovo Group Limited (HKSE: 992), non-executive
director of China Glass Holdings Limited (HKSE: 3300), chairman and
non-executive director of Hospital Corporation of China Limited (HKSE:
3869), chairman and executive director of International Elite Limited (HKSE:
1328), non-executive director of ENN Ecological Holdings Co., Ltd (SSE:
600803), non-executive director of Shanghai Jin Jiang International
Hotels Development Co., Ltd (SSE: 600754), and non-executive director
of Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology Co.,Ltd (HKSE:
1157; SZSE: 000157). Mr. Zhao was also a director of Shanghai
Environment Group Co, Ltd (SSE: 601200) from Feb 2017 to June 2018;
a deputy chairman of Shanghai Chengtou Holding Co.,Ltd (SSE: 600649)
from June 2014 to June 2017; a non-executive director of Chinasoft
International Ltd (HKSE: 0354) from July 2011 to April 2015, an executive
director of CSPC Pharmaceutical Group Limited (HKSE: 1093) from
December 2008 to May 2015; a non-executive director of New China Life
Insurance Company Ltd (HKSE: 1336) from November 2012 to March
2015; a non-executive director of Wumart Stores, Inc. (HKSE: 1025
before withdrawal of its listing in January 2016) from November 2009 to
June 2014; a director of Fiat Industrial S.p.A., (a company listed on MTA
[talian Stock Exchange from January 2011 to September 2013). Mr. Zhao
holds an MBA degree from the Kellogg School of Management at
Northwestern University, and dual Master's degrees in Electronic
Engineering and Physics from Northern lllinois University.
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Mr. WANG Xiaolong, aged 43, an Executive Director of the Company,
has joined the Group since 9 August 2016. Mr. XL Wang is currently the
managing director of Hony Capital, and joined Hony Capital in 2003 and
has been consistently focusing on investment in the consumer and retail
sector during the past 15 years, with a particular emphasis on subsectors
of retail, fast-moving consumer goods (FMCG), catering and fast food
franchise. Prior to joining Hony Capital, Mr. XL Wang served in Lenovo
Group. Mr. XL Wang currently holds directorships in Anhui Commercial
Capital Co., Ltd. (NEEQ: 835433) and Sichuan Lessin Department Store
Co., Ltd. (NEEQ: 833860). Mr. XL Wang holds an Tsinghua-MIT
University Joint MBA degree, and a B.A. degree in Shanghai Jiao Tong
University, Youth Talented Program.

Mr. WANG Yuanzheng, aged 37, an Executive Director of the
Company, Mr. YZ Wang has joined the Group as an executive Director
since 9 August 2016. Mr. YZ Wang joined Hony Capital in 2011 and is
currently vice president of Hony Capital. Mr. YZ Wang has been focusing
on investment in the consumer and retail sector since then. Prior to
joining Hony Capital, Mr. YZ Wang worked as an associate director in the
investment banking department at UBS Securities. Mr. YZ Wang holds a
Master’s degree in Financial Mathematics from Kaiserlautern University
and a bachelor’s degree in Pure and Applied Mathematics from Tsinghua
University.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018

FNEELE 43 ARARTES RN
2016 F8 A9 MA RS E - E/NEELAE
RAESLE IR EEZRLIE - 20034 N
ASLEIEE GEBRESF—EH IR ES
mCEETENRE LEZETE WA
HE R BRLRREBELE - EMALBIZE
ZHEI G ENEEECHBNBEER - T/
REAEEREFLZEB 2 BROHBRAG (2
B A /N1 ZE AR D B 5k R AR5 - 835433) &
MINh#EBEERDERAR(ZEF NEE
BmEE Z 55 833860) ES - /1
BEAEMBEBERBLBEERER — id
BT AEBAEBMBAZN N EEXAE
KE(LF)ELEBA -

FRAESLE 375 ARANTES
2016F8 HOH MM AR EE o TR AR
2011 MACARRIE BALRETERR
HeoeaAl TERMALEEA—EHEEINHEHEZE
EMIEE - RIMASARIEE 281 - TR
EETImMEBLERERTHINEE - TR
I 5 4 B A Kaiserlautern K 2 8 & gh 81 218
TEMNRFEABARYBHERAHEN
=1 (VA

%



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
EEREREEEGEN (R

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. LEUNG Kwai Kei, aged 57, an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since 4 January 2017. Mr. Leung has over 30
years of work experience in the food and beverage industry and retail
industry in Hong Kong and China. Mr. Leung worked in McDonald’s
Restaurants (HK) Limited and McDonald’s China Company Limited from
1988 and used to play managerial roles in various departments for more
than 20 years. Mr. Leung also held executive positions in other
multinationals including Walmart China Company Limited as the Senior
Vice President of business development and as Country Manager for
Regus Property (Shanghai) Company Limited. Mr. Leung currently works
in Mei-Xin Food (Guangzhou) Company Limited as General Manager for
their China headquarters and Japanese restaurant business. Mr. Leung
holds a Master of Management degree from Macquarie University and a
Bachelor of Economics degree from the University of Sydney. He is a
qualified Certified Practising Accountant in ASPCA of Australia.

Mr. HENG Victor Ja Wei, aged 41, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since 18 May 2011.
Mr. Heng is a partner of Morison Heng, Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Heng holds a master of science degree of the Imperial College of
Science, Technology and Medicine, the University of London. Mr. Heng is
a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Heng serves as an independent non-executive director in CIMC-TianDa
Holdings Company Limited (formerly: China Fire Safety Enterprise Group
Limited) (Stock Code: 0445), Matrix Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1005), SCUD Group Limited (Stock Code: 1399) and Lee & Man
Chemical Company Limited (Stock Code: 0746). Mr. Heng also serves as
the company secretary and authorized representative of China Life
Insurance Company Limited (Stock Code: 2628).

Mr. TSANG Hin Man Terence, aged 56, has been appointed as an
Independent Non- Executive Director of the Company since 18 May
2011. Mr. Tsang was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1993 and is
currently the sole proprietor of Tsang & Co., H.M. Mr. Tsang obtained a
bachelor’s degree in science from the University College London, the
University of London. Mr. Tsang also holds a bachelor’s degree in law
from the University of Westminster, United Kingdom. Mr. Tsang serves as
a non-executive director in Goldway Education Group Limited (Stock
Code: 8160).
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Senior Management

Mr. JING Shen, aged 39, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, joined
the Group in November 2016. From April 2014 to October 2016, Mr. Jing
held the position of chief executive officer at Beijing Niologie Commercial
and Trading Co., Ltd. In 2008, Mr. Jing joined Hony Capital and was
eventually promoted to vice president. Mr. Jing obtained a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from China Europe International
Business School in February 2008 and a bachelor’s degree from Beijing
Foreign Studies University in July 2002.

Mr. XIAN Shunxiang, aged 53, Chief Operating Officer of the Company,
joined the Group in August 2016. Mr. Xian was an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 9 August 2016, and resigned as
a director and reappointed as the Chief Operating Officer of the Company
since 4 January 2017. Mr. Xian was the vice president of Cosmo Lady
(China) Holdings Company Limited (HKSE: 2298) and responsible for
their retail operations. From May 2008 to October 2011, Mr. Xian held
the position of chief operating officer at Real Kung Fu Catering
Management Co., Ltd.. In 1990, Mr. Xian joined McDonald’s (Shenzhen)
Limited as one of the trainee managers and was eventually promoted to
operations director. Mr. Xian graduated from China Europe International
Business School, Shanghai, upon finishing the China Europe Leadership
Development of Senior Level Programme in January 2010. He obtained a
college degree in Chinese from Shenzhen Institute of Education,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province in July 1988.

Mr. So Wai Yin, aged 44, Company Secretary of the Company, has
over 18 year experience in financial reporting, management accounting,
auditing, tax planning and regulatory compliance, treasury, corporate
finance and Company Secretarial practice of listed companies. Mr. So
has been appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company since 9
August 2016. Prior to joining Hony Capital in September 2008, Mr. So
worked as the Qualified Accountant and Company Secretary at Golden
Resorts Group Limited (now known as Kingston Securities Limited,
HKSE: 1031) where he was overseeing overall financial control and
reporting functions, treasury, corporate finance, and regulatory
compliance matters. Before joining Kingston, Mr. So worked in Deloitte
where he engaged in audit assignments for various public/private
companies and leading several Initial Public Offer (IPO) projects. Mr. So is
a Certified Public Accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant and a Fellow Member of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountant.
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Mr. Zhao Shen, aged 69, Chairman of HHG, joined the Group in 25
October 2016. In 1968, Zhao Shen had been to the Great Northern
Wilderness, stationed troops and reclaimed and safeguarded the border
regions for more than ten years; in 1982 entered the Beijing Second Steel
Rolling Mil. In February 1988, Zhao Shen took up the post of elevator
factory director in Shougang Group. On 1 July 1996, Zhao Shen took up
the post of general manager of Beijing Yoshinoya Fast Food Co., Ltd. In
2003, Zhao Shen founded Beijing HeHeGu Catering Service Management
Co., Ltd., determined to inherit traditional Chinese food culture, and
explore the model of double-kitchen, to achieve the standardization of
“Chinese People Fast Food”. He has successively won the titles of
“Shougang Labor Model”, “Top Ten Factory Director of Beijing”, “Labor
Medal of National May 1”7, “Beijing Excellent Socialism Constructor of
Chinese Characteristics”, “Beijing Outstanding Communist”, “Chinese
Catering Industry Outstanding Entrepreneur”, “Chinese Restaurant
Industry Annual Top Ten Figures”, “Outstanding Entrepreneur in Chinese
Catering Industry for the 40th Anniversary of the Reform and Opening
Up” and other honors. Nowadays, Zhao Shen is the vice president of
China Cuisine Association, the Chairman of the Professional Committee
of Chinese Cuisine Fast Food, and the Chairman of HeHeGu Catering
Service Management Co., Ltd..

Mr. Zhao Jingjing, aged 37, Chief Manager of HHG, joined the Group in
25 October 2016. Zhao Jingjing joined HeHeGu company in 2007, and
started at the bottom. He has been working in Marketing, Operation,
R&D Department successively, and accumulated Plentiful experience of
marketing, operation management, product design and development,
informationization construction, establishing new model etc. In October
2015, Zhao Jingjing was appointed Chief Manager. He has been rated as
“Excellent Friends of Workers”, “The Best Emerging Enterpriser of
Chinese Food Industry”, “Top Ten Catering Entrepreneur of Beijing” and
“Outstanding Party Member in Community Field of Beijing”. He is also a
member of the 14th session of CPPCC of Xicheng District, Beijing and a
member of the 14th session of committee of Xicheng District, Beijing.
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Mr. Li Jian, aged 44, is the co-founder and the Chairman of the board of
New Spicy Way, and joined the Group since 30 November 2018. Mr. Li is
primarily responsible for the strategic developments and monitoring
budgets of New Spicy Way, and is involved in major decisions of New
Spicy Way, including the appointment of executives of New Spicy Way.
Mr. Li has been appointed as the Chairman since the establishment of
New Spicy Way, being responsible for overall development of New Spicy
Way, and was involved in the business operation of the New Spicy Way
until 2015. Mr. Li has over 16 years in the Food and Beverage industry as
well as catering industry and restaurant operation business. Prior to
establishing the New Spicy Way, Mr. Li established his own restaurant
business under the name Beijing Yuanpin Catering Co., Ltd in 2000 to
provide catering services. Mr. Li has successively won the titles of,
among others, “Outstanding Figure of Chinese Catering Industry for 30
years” in May 2017 awarded by the China Cuisine Association,
“Outstanding Entrepreneur of Chinese Catering Industry” in November
2016 awarded by the China Hospitality Association and “The Most
Influential Entrepreneur of Chinese Hotpot Industry” in 2015 awarded by
the China Cuisine Association. Mr. Li has been the President of the China
Crayfish Association since April 2018. Mr. Li completed a secretarial
program at Linyi Teacher Training College (currently known as Linyi
University) in July 1995.

Mr. Zhou Penghui, aged 43, is the Chief Executive Officer of New Spicy
Way, and joined the Group since 30 November 2018. Mr. Zhou is
responsible for overseeing the overall management and the day-to-day
operation of New Spicy Way. Prior to being appointed as Chief Executive
Officer of New Spicy Way in January 2017, Mr. Zhou joined New Spicy
Way in December 2011 as an optimization specialist, mainly responsible
for formulating internal system and providing training to the employees of
New Spicy Way. Mr. Zhou was then promoted as an operation manager
in October 2012 managing the operations of restaurants of New Spicy
Way, and in March 2014, he was promoted as the northern China market
manager, and in June 2014, Mr. Zhou managed the overall operation of
the restaurants of New Spicy Way in China. Mr. Zhou has over 6 years of
experience in restaurant operations, supply chain management and food
quality control. Mr. Zhou graduated with a diploma in physical and
chemical testing and separation technology from North China University
of Technology in July 1996.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

Principal Activities

The Company act as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 63.

The board of directors has determined not to declare final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018.
Tax Relief and Exemption

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

Management Contract

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or substantial part of the business of the Company were entered
into or existed during the year.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the share option scheme as set out below, the Company has
not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the year.
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Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution to shareholders represented the accumulated deficit of
RMB8,283,000 (2017: retained earnings of RMB5,399,000).

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 207 of the annual report.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Zhao John Huan (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Xiaolong
Mr. Wong Yuanzheng

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei
Mr. Tsang Hin Man Terence
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive directors is
the period up to his retirement as required by the Company’s Articles of
Association.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors offering for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
terminable within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interest and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

At 31 December 2018, the interests of the directors and the chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of part
XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), were as follows:
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Long positions #E
Percentage of
the issued
Total number of share capital of
Name of director Capacity shares interested the Company
BEEERZ HARATC#IT
EEpnE 6% iR 145 B & RABDL
Mr. Zhao John Huan Interest in controlled corporation
(Notes 1 and 2) 1,701,520,440 116.50%
HoBEE MEEEE 2 B (1 &2)
Mr. Leung Kwai Kei Beneficial owner 462,000 0.04%
REHELE EmBEA A
Note: B 3 -
1. Sonic Tycoon Limited is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Fortune Eight Alps Limited, 1, ## % B R 2 & AFortune Eight Alps Limited 2 JF

which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund VIII (Cayman), L.P., an
exempted limited partnership managed by Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), L.P. (as
sole general partner), which is managed by its sole general partner, Hony Capital Fund
VIl GP (Cayman) Limited, which is wholly owned by Hony Group Management Limited,
which is owned as to 80% by Hony Managing Partners Limited, which is wholly owned
by Exponential Fortune Group Limited, which is owned as to 49% by Mr. Zhao John
Huan.

2. Sonic Tycoon Limited holds 1,065,927,220 shares in the Company and is beneficially
interested in convertible bond in the principal amount of HK$750,000,000 which is
convertible into 635,593,220 shares at the initial conversion price of HK$1.18 per
share.
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Hony Capital Fund VIIl (Cayman) * L.P ( — % 1 Hony
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ERNERBZERAERABLE)IZE2E
M B 2 &l ° Hony Capital Fund VIl GP (Cayman)
L.P.f E M — @4 % A Hony Capital Fund VIl GP
(Cayman) Limited & ¥ ° Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP
(Cayman) Limited B3 Hony Group Management Limited
% & ¥ B ° Hony Managing Partners Limited % &
Hony Group Management Limited 80% ## & ° Hony
Managing Partners Limited B8 Exponential Fortune
GroupLimted2 E M A ME B X EHEHE
Exponential Fortune Group Limited 49% # %5 °

2. BT HRQAHEARRQF1,065927,220 8% i {5
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

The directors of the Company were entitled to participate in a share
option scheme adopted by Lee & Man Chemical Company Limited (the “LM
Share Option Scheme”), details of which are set out in Lee & Man
Chemical Company Limited’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2018. No share option was granted under the LM Share
Option Scheme since its inception.

In addition, on 18 May 2011, the Company has also adopted a share
option scheme (the “Handbag Share Option Scheme”) in which the
Company’s directors and employees are entitled to participate, details of
which are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements. No
share option was granted under the Handbag Share Option Scheme
since its inception.

Save as above, during the year neither the Company, its holding
company nor any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders

At 31 December 2018, shareholders (other than directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had interests and short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial

Shareholders

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
EEEHE ()

FTERRZEBRAR
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Total number of

RRREFRROI0EB T2 E B

Percentage of
the issued share
capital of the

Name of shareholder Capacity shares interested Company
EEERr HEAAREBRIT
R & B g4 IR 17 48 & BABDLH
Exponential Fortune Group Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,520,440 116.50%
Exponential Fortune Group Limited MNEEEEz #Ew (FEE)
Hony Managing Partners Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,520,440 116.50%
Hony Managing Partners Limited REAEEE s (1)
Hony Group Management Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,5620,440 116.50%
Hony Group Management Limited REAEEE 2w (FE1)
Hong Capital Fund VIl GP (Cayman) Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,520,440 116.50%
Limited
Hong Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman) REEEE 2w (MEE1)
Limited
Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), L.P. Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,520,440 116.50%
Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), L.P. A xE 7 #x5 (1)
Hony Capital Fund VIII (Cayman), L.P. Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,520,440 116.50%
Hony Capital Fund VIl (Cayman), L.P. MEIEEE 2w (1)
Fortune Eight Alps Limited Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,701,520,440 116.50%
Fortune Eight Alps Limited MREEB Z #Ewm (EE1)
Sonic Tycoon Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) 1,701,520,440 116.50%
EZHRAA EnEA A (ME2)
BRERERERAT —ZE—N\FFRH
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Notes:

1. Sonic Tycoon Limited is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Fortune Eight Alps Limited,
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Hony Capital Fund VIII (Cayman), L.P., an
exempted limited partnership managed by Hony Capital Fund VIIl GP (Cayman), L.P. (as
sole general partner), which is managed by its sole general partner, Hony Capital Fund
VIII GP (Cayman) Limited, which is wholly owned by Hony Group Management Limited,
which is owned as to 80% by Hony Managing Partners Limited, which is wholly owned
by Exponential Fortune Group Limited, which is owned as to 49% by Mr. Zhao John
Huan.

2. Sonic Tycoon Limited holds 1,065,927,220 shares in the Company and is beneficially
interested in convertible bond in the principal amount of HK$750,000,000 which is
convertible into 635,593,220 shares at the initial conversion price of HK$1.18 per
share.

Material acquisition and disposal

On 19 June 2018, Delightful Year Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, (as purchaser) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Mr. Li Jian, Mr. Xu Bochun and other
individuals as sellers in relation to the acquisition of (i) 72% equity interest
in Beijing New Spicy Way Catering Management Ltd (It REiERiEERE
IEHPRAT) (“New Spicy Way”) at a consideration of RMB696,143,000
(approximately HK$835,371,064) (“Tranche | Acquisition”); and (i) 15%
equity interest in New Spicy Way from Mr. Li and Mr. Xu. For further
details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 19
June 2018, 27 September 2018 and 30 November 2018, and the circular
of the Company dated 2 October 2018. Upon completion of the Tranche
| Acquisition on 30 November 2018, New Spicy Way became a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Save as disclosed, the Group did not have any material acquisitions or
disposals during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

Connected Transactions

The Company has entered into a number of transactions with entities
which are connected persons (as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules) of the Company, and such transactions constitute connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. These relevant entities include:

(1) Sonic Tycoon Limited (“Sonic Tycoon”), a direct substantial
shareholder of the Company and thus a connected person of the
Company; and

2)  XLJ Food Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd (i REc RmFHREER) B R
Aa)) (“XLJ"), a company controlled by non-controlling interests of
New Spicy Way (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company),
and a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level.

On 18 September 2016, the Company and Sonic Tycoon entered into an
investment agreement, pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue
and Sonic Tycoon agreed to subscribe for the convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount up to HK$1,500,000,000 for a total
consideration equal to the principal amount of such convertible bonds.

The proceeds from issuing the convertible bonds are intended to be used
for the Company’s future acquisitions in the mass market focused
consumables sector including, without limitation, the food and beverage
industry, to diversify the Group’s business and broaden its income
stream. On 13 November 2018, HK$750,000,000 of the convertible
bonds had been issued, among which HK$139,323,520 of the
convertible bonds had been converted to shares at the conversion price
of HK$1.18 per Share on 22 March 2019.

Continuing Connected Transactions

(1) Food Ingredients Purchase Agreement

Certain members of New Spicy Way, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company (“New Spicy Way Group”) and XLJ
entered into a food ingredients purchase agreement dated 19 June
2018 (as amended by an amendment agreement dated 2 October
2018) (collectively, the “Food Ingredients Purchase Agreement”), to
enable the New Spicy Way Group to continue to be supplied with
food ingredients after completion of the acquisition of equity interest
in New Spicy Way by the Group.
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Pursuant to the Food Ingredients Purchase Agreement, the New
Spicy Way Group can purchase food ingredients, including fresh
fish, processed fish, spices, sauce ingredients, garlic flavored and
pickled vegetable hotpot condiments from XLJ. For further details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 19 June
2018 and 27 September 2018, and circular dated 2 October 2018.

The annual caps for the maximum aggregate amount payable for
the goods to be supplied under the Food Ingredients Purchase
Agreement are RMB60,000,000, RMB69,000,000 and
RMB79,350,000 for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2019
and 2020, respectively. The actual transaction amount under the
Food Ingredients Purchase Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately RMB5,218,000, which
did not exceed the relevant annual cap.

Hotpot Condiment and Crawfish Seasoning Supply
Agreement

On 19 June 2018, the New Spicy Way Group and XLJ also entered
into a hotpot condiment and crawfish seasoning supply agreement
(the “Hotpot Condiment and Crawfish Seasoning Supply
Agreement”), pursuant to which the New Spicy Way Group will
continue to supply spicy condiment, pickled flavoring ingredients
and crawfish seasoning to XLJ.

The annual caps for the maximum aggregate amount receivable for
the goods to be supplied under the Hotpot Condiment and
Crawfish Seasoning Supply Agreement are RMB40,000,000,
RMB48,000,000 and RMB57,600,000 for the years ended 31
December 2018, 2019 and 2020, respectively. The actual
transaction amount under the Hotpot Condiment and Crawfish
Seasoning Supply Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2018 amounted to approximately RMB689,000, which did not
exceed the relevant annual cap. For further details, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 19 June 2018 and 27
September 2018, and the circular of the Company dated 2 October
2018.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed
all of the above continuing connected transactions, including the Food
Ingredients Purchase Agreement and the Hotpot Condiment and
Crawfish Seasoning Supply Agreement, and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

° in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;

° on normal commercial terms or better; and

° according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions which need to
be disclosed as connected transactions or related party transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Related Party Transactions and Connected
Transactions

Related party transactions entered into by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 are disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards adopted for preparing the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Save for the transactions with Sonic Tycoon Limited and XLJ as
disclosed in the sections “Connected Transactions” and “Continuing
Connected Transactions” to this report, the related party transactions set
forth in note 39 did not constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. In
respect of the non-exempted connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions, the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during
the year.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts of
Significance

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Connected Transactions”, no
contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company or
any of its fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly and
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Business Review and Performance

A review and outlook of the business of the Company and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position are provided in the
Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
respectively from pages 4 to 7 and pages 8 to 20 of this Annual Report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers comprised approximately 32% of the Group’s total
sales and the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer were

approximately 18% of the Group’s total sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers were less than 41% of total purchases.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders which, to the
knowledge of the directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any interest in the share capital of any of the five
largest customers of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the vyear, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non- executive directors are independent.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by the provisions of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

Competing Business

Save as disclosed below, during the year and up to the date of this
report, none of the Directors had any interest in any business (apart from
the Group’s business) which competes or may compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing
Rules.

Mr. Leung Kwai Kei, an independent non-executive Director, is currently
the General Manager of Mei-Xin Food (Guangzhou) Company Limited
(“Mei-Xin”), responsible for their China headquarters and Japanese
restaurant business.

Although the business carried out by Mei-Xin is of a similar nature as that
carried out by the Group, Mr. Leung does not hold other positions in the
Company apart from being an independent non-executive Director, and
Mr Leung also does not control the Board. The Board therefore is of the
view that the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from Mei-Xin.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricrwaterhouseCoopers.

With effect from conclusion of the annual general meeting on 27 June
2017, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu retired as the auditors of the Company
and PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as auditors of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Zhao John Huan
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

_a

pwec

To the Shareholders of Best Food Holding Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Best Food Holding Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 63 to 206, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite
useful life
° Impairment assessment of investments in associates
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter
BMEETTEE

B M % B R ()

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAEETTEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life

BERLEEARBNEERETG

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
BLRERA M B REME21 -

The Group has a significant balance of goodwill and
trademarks with indefinite useful life arising primarily from the
acquisition of Beijing HHG Restaurant Management Co., Ltd.
(the “HHG Group”) in 2016 and the acquisition of Beijing New
Spicy Way Catering Management Ltd. (the “New Spicy Way
Group”) in 2018. As at 31 December 2018, goodwill
amounted to RMB583,931,000 and trademarks with
indefinite useful life amounted to RMB499,346,000.
EEENEERTECRARBANEREEETEAER M
EEARBANEEEZERBR2016FWEILRMNE AR
ERERARAT(MEAKE] RMN2018F WL R
MRBERERARAF(THRERHE]) - K2018%5 12
HA31H - % /R583,931,0007T A R - I £ 5 AR HI &Y
7412 /499,346,000 7T A R ¥ -

Goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful life are subject
to impairment assessment annually and when there is an
indication of impairment.
HMELRYEFERREANHERTF REFERETRE
EITRERT M -

In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant
judgements are required to estimate the future cash flows of
the cash generating units (“CGUs”) of the relevant group of
restaurants and to determine the assumptions, including the
revenue growth rates, gross margin and long term growth
rate used in the cash flow projections and the discount rate
applied to bring the future cash flows back to their present
values.

EETRETGER  FEELHERAGAGTEAERE
SENREEFLEUNARRERE UEERRE B
RHEERERAPEROBALBRE  EH XL KEIE
RE -URRERARREAFTREZETEMERNITER

In response to this key audit matter, we have performed
the following procedures:
REHZBARESEFE  HMARTUTRER

Evaluating the management’s process in performing
impairment assessment of goodwill and trademarks
with indefinite useful life, including the assessment as
to whether any indication of impairment exists during
the year ended 31 December 2018;
AEEEEHRERTECARBNEZNRE
FEBER BETEEE2018F12A31AILEFE
EERGFEREDR

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent valuer engaged by the Group to
determine the recoverable amounts, based on value-
in-use method, of the CGUs;
TEESEEANBIAEMNES BOIEE
B UREAEALZETRSESBEMNAIR
[l & %8 :

Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used;
AEPTAMERENEE
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Key Audit Matter
BMEETTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAEETTEE

Based on the results of the impairment assessment
conducted by the Group, it is determined that there is no
impairment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful
life as at 31 December 2018. This conclusion is based on
recoverable amount, which is determined based on value in
use, exceeding the respective carrying amounts of the CGUs
including goodwill, trademarks with indefinite useful life and
operating assets as at 31 December 2018.
BREEEEETHABETHEAR BENERITEGA
MRERE P EMN2018F 12 AT B I MF A - Z#wm iR
BAUE & FEEE - AT W & R Ty k20185 12 A31 H
ZEREESH THBLHAERE YEEARPND
BREEEECNNRSECEMLEENEREE -
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e FEvaluating the reasonableness of the key assumptions
used by management and the independent valuer in
the determination of value in use of the CGUs, mainly
in relation to :

e HEEEERBUMAEMEETREELEMLRE
AEEREANEZIZRRNAEL  F2F K

— the forecasted sales and gross margin, by
comparing them with actual historical financial

data;
- TERFEBWAMER - HME L EE
EITHLE

— the long term growth rate, by comparing it with
the relevant economic forecasts; and

- RHEREX HHEMEBLSERIETL
Rk

— the discount rate, by comparing the rate used by
the Group to those of comparable companies;
and

- WRX HESERANLXEAFLL QAR
HEERETLEER: &

e Testing the numerical accuracy of the calculations in
the recoverable amounts of the CGUs and the relevant
carrying amounts, including goodwill, trademarks with
indefinite useful life and operating assets as at 31
December 2018.

o AIRAFEMR2018F12AI AR GELEMHA[E
WeHLPERE UTECARANEEREE
BEEENNEBERIENSR T EEIL -

We found the key assumptions adopted in relation to the
impairment assessment to be consistent with the available
evidence.

BFERRBEFEAERANEIERRBETK -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matter
BMEETTEE

B M % B R ()

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BAEETTEE

Impairment assessment of investments in associates

BEQARARERMENG

Refer to notes 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
FLHEETHEREWE20-

The Group has significant investments in associates, which
are accounted for under the equity method. As at 31
December 2018, investments in associates amounted to
RMB292,975,000.

EEEEBEANKRESEEAN URARSER
° 20184512 431 H « B & 2 Al & & %292,975,000
AREE o

D[

Investments in associates are subject to impairment
assessment when there is an indication of impairment.

BERNRIREBAET R EDREETRENG -

In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant
judgements are required to estimate the Group’s share of the
future cash flows of the associates and to determine the
assumptions, such as the revenue growth rates, gross
margin and long term growth rate used to prepare the cash
flow projections of the associates, and the discount rates
applied to bring the future cash flows back to their present
values.

FEETREN GRS F2EELERAE AL SE5£E
EEBEARARRERE  WEERSE  Hl0OARE
HHEAARERNEENERANBABRE EMNEXR
REERXR URAERKRSRITE ZHREMER
TR -

In response to this key audit matter, we have performed
the following procedures:
RIEHZARETEE  BMARTUTREF:

e Evaluating the Group’s assessment as to whether any
indication of impairment exist during the year ended
31 December 2018, including:

e FHEEENEZR2018F12AALFERER
FEERDBRERROTE - 21

— significant adverse changes in the market or
economic environment in which the associates
operates;

- BERARKEMENTSAKBEREELSE
RAF &1

— significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the associates below their costs;

- BERAARBEERIKRARZEREK
N s

e Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology used;

o FHEPTRMEENANEEMK

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRESEE BRESEE

Based on the results of the impairment assessment e Evaluating the reasonableness of the key assumptions

conducted by the Group, it is determined that there is no used by management in the determination of value in
impairment of the Group’s investments in associates as at 31 use of investment in associates, mainly in relation to:
December 2018. This conclusion is based on recoverable o A EEREEEECHEARKREFHEANKER
amounts, which are calculated based on value in use, HWEZBIRMEEE TEF R

exceeding the respective carrying amounts as at 31

December 2018. — the forecasted sales and gross margin, by
BREESEETHRENGER BF ESERHRE comparing them with actual historical financial
NAKZER2018F12A31 AW EFE - ZEw IR data;

BRWEeHEET TRESENKREREESL I - TERFSEHEWRAMEN  §HEE U5 EE
& BMR2018F12 A3THMEEE - EITHE

— the long term growth rate, by comparing it with
the relevant economic forecasts; and

- REIERX BHEHBABELHERIETLH
L]

— the discount rates, by comparing the rates used
by the Group to those of comparable companies;
and

- WHREX BESERAOLLEEALRFN
L EEITHE &

e Testing the numerical accuracy of the calculations in
the recoverable amount of the investments in
associates.

e BFAFEBERRTRENAI DK RN B FLERE
e

We found the key assumptions adopted in relation to the
impairment assessment to be consistent with the available
evidence.

HPIERBENEAERANERREBEAK -




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
Corporate Information and Management Discussion and Analysis (but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and the Chairman’s Statements, Corporate Governance Report,
Profile of Directors and Senior Management, Directors’ Report, Financial
Summary, Schedule of Property and Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, which is expected to be made available to us after
that date.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Chairman’s Statements, Corporate Governance
Report, Profile of Directors and Senior Management, Directors’ Report,
Financial Summary, Schedule of Property and Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged
with governance and take appropriate action considering our legal rights
and obligations.

B M % B R ()

Emﬁzéx

BERREFEHHEMERAR - Hi(E 8
BREREMEAZBEMRE BHARFHA
AEEREEEBTmEON(ETERER
MEHR LB E L O XBEIRE) -
EEHMBERZARERTHRMANERER
T rEELRRE BEERSAEERED

T EFERE UBHME DEEHMR
B-HegrEARmSE -

BPARGEVBRRNBRIL TREEA
EE RATIATHEMEREREMER

MY EE B AR ©

BARMESEYBHREANET  BMAN
AERAMELAEMES  EUHBEES &
BEMEEETREAYHREARME
B ARTATHAOBRAFEERNEENL
EUFEAEERERRADBTNR -

ERN R PIHE A B S A H ARG R
HMESEMITHITIE WRANZEAETT
REEMEEFEEAHRRL  AEH
TR EREZEE -HEEHH N
TTRBEMRE -

ERMHEXIRRE CXBARS BEF
ERfEEBEENT B8RS BHHM
2 -MEEHERE HEREARBRER
MRBEMRREFHFEERERRL - &
MEERERFREEREER YEE
B ERRNNMERRRBGEETH -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
18 M % BUE R ()

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

B M % B R ()
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B % BERE (&)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Ping Fai.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEZHEWER

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALLEE

2018 2017

NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000

bz FARY FARHE

Revenue e A 5&6 854,080 751,801
Cost of sales 5 & B AR 9 (487,602) (404,485)
Gross profit EX 366,478 347,316
Distribution and selling expenses 7 8 & 8 6 R 9 (PZERE])) (219,004)
General and administrative expenses — M RITBEX 9 (128,834) (97,666)
Net impairment losses on financial assets CREERERSEFE 3.1(b) (277) -
Other income H At A 7 13,831 6,116
Other (losses)/gains, net Hth (B518), W= F 5 8 (138) 9,722
Operating profit KRR 7,929 46,484
Finance income B A 10 189 203
Finance expenses PxE A 10 (6,959) (9,533)
Finance expenses — net PHERFE 10 (6,770) (9,330)
Share of loss of associates B LBt S N Al EiE 20 (4,394) (2,450)
(Loss)/profit before taxation B F AT (B 18), % 7 (3,235) 34,704
Income tax expense Fr 1S i 2 11 (5,672) (14,018)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EBE) &R (8,907) 20,686

(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: S (Eig), HFMNEBER :

Equity holders of the Company RAFRIRERTEA (11,144) 15,216
Non-controlling interest T = 2,237 5,470
BRERERART —Z—N\FFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

AeZERER(E)

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALLEE

2018 2017
NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 FTARY FARY
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 Mk
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or TegELBEEERCERE
loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit assets BB EZ AT MEZEE 38 296
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to  E 7% 7] gt @ & #7 ) 48
profit or loss: FEHmZIER
Exchange differences arising on translation MEBINEBT
of foreign operations EEREN =8 5,398
Other comprehensive income for the year FREME2E RS 5,694
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEEWHAEE 26,380
Total comprehensive income for the year FRA>EKVSLEHEREN
attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company —AREEEFEA 20,910
— Non-controlling interests — JEEERE S 5,470
(Loss)/earnings per share B (&18) &
(RMB cents) — basic (D ARE)— ER 13 1.61
(Loss)/earnings per share B (&18) &
(RMB cents) — diluted (D ARE)— i 13 1.61

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEERER

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2018 2017
NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5E FAR% FAR®
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- BENMEE 16 248,048 168,643
Prepaid lease payments JENMERIE 17 40,663 44,007
Investment properties EYE 18 35,426 32,896
Investments in associates iR RN B = 20 292,975 287,142
Goodwiill [EES 21 583,931 45,495
Intangible assets mEEE 21 508,106 101,535
Deferred tax assets BIEHIEEE 29 31,388 10,805
Defined benefit assets AEFZEE 38 5,183 4,710
Trade and other receivables J'E WE 5 KkHAFRT 22 43,379 19,565
Financial assets at fair value through other LAnEEFER E
comprehensive income EEFAHMEE WS
é@ TREE 23 2,000 -
Other non-current assets HAb3EmBEE 27 4,745 -
1,795,844 714,798
Current assets REBEE
Inventories Ve 19 94,202 83,539
Prepaid lease payments AT EHIB 17 531 520
Trade and other receivables e E 5 & E M F IR 22 120,323 100,038
Other current assets HimehEE 27 82,067 -
Tax recoverable Ay Y Bl 18 996 795
Financial assets at fair value through profit or ?fz ’A fc EEFZ2HE
loss ATABREHNERMEE 26 42,194 27,000
Derivative financial instrument TTESRmIT A 24 - 1,029
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBELZEY 25 302,277 398,033
642,590 610,954
Total Assets EEHBE 2,438,434 1,325,752
BRERERART —Z—N\FFR
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

REEEEER (A

NOTE
B &
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade and other payables [EE 5 Kk H M 5RIE 28
Contract liabilities HGRAE 31
Borrowings & 30
Tax payable JE TR IR
Convertible bonds AR IR E S 24
Non-current liabilities FREBAEE
Payable in relation to put right of JIE A< B FE 28 AR A 25 RO
non-controlling interests EEE 37
Convertible bonds AMERES 24
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFGEHAE 29
Borrowings R 30
Deferred government grants i R IS 476 B 32
Total liabilities BEAR

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018

As at 31 December

M12A831H

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARHE

366,412 147,478
79,261 —
5,000 221,000
5,206 4,653
19,800 —

475,679 373,131

103,496 —
517,592 —
124,868 24,584
229,742 —

3,761 2,175

979,459 26,759

1,455,138 399,890



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
HnEEEREBEXRE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2018 2017
NOTE RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 FARM TFARE
Capital and reserves EXRHE
Share capital A% 7 35 122,949 122,949
Reserves & 776,128 766,158
Equity attributable to equity holders HEERAAREREEAAN
of the Company Py 899,077 889,107
Non-controlling interests FEIZ A = 84,219 36,755
Total equity ERAs 983,296 925,862
Total liabilities and equity EEREREE 2,438,434 1,325,752
The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 206 were approved #H N EE3E206BE N A M BHRAREES
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2019 201943 29 H @B K i - W I
and are signed on its behalf by: TATREZZ:
Zhao John Huan Wang Xiaolong
HSE F/NEE
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
TE -

BEZERERAE

—E-N\FEH
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BERALNAERBEA
Non- Asset Non-
Share Share  distributable revaluation  Translation Special  Retained controlling
Capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamings  Sub-Total  interests Total
TARE EBESMH JeiniE
BA BRiAEE f#E HE  BEEE SRR BRk: et Bn @E
NOTES RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
K FTAR® TFARE TFTARE TARE TARE TARE TAR®E TARE TARE TARE
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 B4R 69,065 — 929 8,724 (19,464)  (20,849) 216,124 254,519 48,605 303,124
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - - 15216 15216 5470 20,686
Other comprehensive FrEM2EKE:
income for the year:
Remeasurement of defined ~ E#1% & 2 R & 7z
benefit assets AE 38 - - - 296 - - - 296 - 296
Currency translation EREE-B2AA
differences — associates 20 - — — — (4,269) - - (4,269) — (4,269)
Currency translation EREE-HEfit
differences — others — — — — 9,667 — — 9,667 — 9,667
Total comprehensive FRE2AUSHE
income for the year — — — 296 5,398 — 15,216 20,910 5,470 26,380
Issuance of convertible BT BRRES
bonds 24(b) - - - - - 88,930 - 88,930 - 88,930
Shares converted from ABRREFER
convertible bonds 2R 24(b) 53,894 582,056 - - — (88930 — 547,020 — 547,020
Change in ownership TEeBYEGHREY
interests in subsidiary HBAREEA
without change of control 25 & &) - - - - - (2212 — (22272 (18651) (40,929
Non-controlling interest Ui I B 2 R FE R
arising from acquisition 3
of a subsidiary 40 - - - - - - - - 1,331 1,331
At 31 December 2017 R2017512A318 122,949 582,056 929 9,020 (14,066)  (43,121) 231,340 889,107 36,755 925,862




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
REEZ2BR(E)

69

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

BEREDAEREEA
Non- Asset Non-
Share Share distributable revaluation Translation  Special Retained controlling
capital premium reserve  reserve reserve  reserve earnings Sub-Total interests Total
ALK EEEMR R
BRAE RAEE 40 & BRERE FHIRE BEUE et 353 st

NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’'000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
Wiz FARY TAR® TARE® TARY® TAR® TAR® TAR® TAR® TAR® TAR#

At 1 January 2018 R2018F1 818 122,949 9,020 (14,066)  (43,121) 231,340 889,107 36,755 925,862
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER)HEF (11,144)  (11,144) 2,231 (8,907)
Other comprehensive FrEM2EKE:

income for the year:
Remeasurement of defined  EH % & 2 R Fl%

benefit assets BE
Currency translation EREE-H2LT

differences — associates
Currency translation EXZE-Hi

differences — others
Total comprehensive FREEKEAE

income for the year (11,144) 3,355
Issuance of convertible BOTRRES

bonds 128,088 128,088
Dividends provided foror ~ BEEXE R E

paid (18,623)  (18,623) (18,623)
Payable in relationto put ~ JE{F £ 3EFRRR A 25

right of non-controlling REEEEE

interests (102,850) (102,850)
Non-controlling interest e ) NS EZ

arising from acquisition R

of subsidiaries 45227 45,227
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12831 8 122,949 582,056 (17,883) 201,573 899,077 84,219 983,296

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

%; <E%§E1nu§§§§

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018
NOTE RMB’000
B e TAR®

Cash flows (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Interest paid

Interest received

Income taxes paid

REFEH (A FiiB
BERE

REEBMA)/MERR

SN

B W H 8

ENE TR

(62,929)
(238)
189
(6,998)

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

REFHRSTORE)
A

(69,976)

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment in associates

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash and
cash equivalent acquired

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss

Proceeds from redemption of financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss

Purchase of intangible assets

Government grants received

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Loans granted to third parties

Loans granted to related parties

Repayment of loans by third parties

Repayment of loans by related parties

Interest received on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Interest received on loans to related party
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(678,179)
(34,466)

(93,800)

78,606
(1,585)
145

237
(4,990)
(2,286)

35,000

50,264

65

Net cash used in investing activities

REZBRESFRA

(650,106)
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2017
RMB’000
TAR®

41,715

203
(13,367)

28,551

(209,556)

(24,290)
(84,585)

(27,000)
15,000
(12,718)

760

1,071

(336,064)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

RERERER(E)

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A1ALEE

2018
NOTE RMB’000
B e TAR®

Acquisition of non-controlling interests

in a subsidiary
Dividends paid to shareholders
Repayment of borrowings

Proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds

Yo B PR JB8 X B JE 4% A B 2

AR BB
BE &K

BT MBEZFFTF R

(18,278)
(33,680)
666,021

614,063

Net cash generated from financing METBHEESER
activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cashandcash HRERREZEEYWRI)
equivalents ¥ hnEEE

(106,019)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Exchange gains/(losses) on cash and cash

equivalents

RENZBEETRRSEFED
ReMRESEMNER
Wzt (B51R)

398,033

10,263

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

RERZRERRAEEEY

302,277

BEZERERAE

2017
RMB’000
TAR®

607,529

300,016

108,264

(10,247)

398,033

—E-NEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £20184F 12 831 H It F &

General information

Best Food Holding Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
operation of chain restaurants and manufacture and sale of
handbags under various locations.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent
company is Sonic Tycoon Limited, a company incorporated in
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and its ultimate holding company is
Exponential Fortune Group Limited (“Exponential Fortune”), a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The ultimate
controlling shareholder of Exponential Fortune is Zhao John Huan,
who is also the Chairman of the Company. The addresses of the
registered office of the Company is Hutchins Drive P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman, KY1-111 Cayman Islands.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollars (“HK
dollars” or “HK$”), while the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the following:

° Investment property — measured at fair value,

° Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
payable in relation to put right of non-controlling interests and
derivative financial instrument — measured at fair value, and

o Defined benefit pension plans asset — plan assets measured
at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the
previous financial year, except for the adoption of new and
amended standards as set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments

for the first time for the annual reporting period commencing 1

January 2018:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments, and

° HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

° Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions — Amendments to HKFRS 2

° Annual Improvements 2014-2016 cycle

° Transfers to Investment Property — Amendments to HKAS
40

° Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

The Group had to change its accounting policies and to make
certain adjustments following the adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS
15. Most of the other amendments listed above did not have any
impact on the amounts recognised in the prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)
(i)

Impact of standards issued but not yet applied
by the Group
HKFRS 16 Leases

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in May 2016. It will result in almost all
leases being recognised on the balance sheet by lessees, as
the distinction between operating and finance leases is
removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use
the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and low-
value leases.

Impact
The Group has set up a project team which has reviewed all
of the Group’s leasing arrangements over the last year in light
of the new lease accounting rules in HKFRS 16. The standard
will affect primarily the accounting for the Group’s operating
leases.

As at the reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB464,304,000, see Note
36.

For the lease commitments, the Group expects to recognise
right-of-use assets of approximately RMB379,072,000 and
lease liabilities of approximately RMB379,072,000,
respectively, on 1 January 2019.

The Group’s activities as a lessor are not material and hence
the Group does not expect any significant impact on the
financial statements. However, some additional disclosures
will be required from next year.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Impact of standards issued but not yet applied
by the Group
()  HKFRS 16 Leases

Date of adoption by Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1
January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective date. The Group
intends to apply the simplified transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first
adoption.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK (IFRIC) interpretations that
are not yet effective that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group.

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers on the Group’s financial statements and also discloses
the new accounting policies that have been applied from 1 January
2018, where they are different to those applied in prior periods.

(@ Impact on the financial statements

HKFRS 9 was generally adopted without restating comparative
information with the exception of certain aspects of hedge
accounting. The Group used modified retrospective approach while
adopting HKFRS 9. The reclassification and adjustments are
therefore not reflected in the balance sheet as at 31 December
2017, but are recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1
January 2018.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified retrospective
approach and has not restated comparatives for the 2017 financial
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

(@ Impact on the financial statements (Continued)

The following tables show the adjustments recognised for each
individual line item. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included. The adjustments are explained in
more detail by standard below.

EXREFTHEHME @

22 S BEREERZtwm

(a) BHBRERNTE @)
TRERHRSEARREERANS
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ERN - BEEABRENN T XIEE &
B

31 December 1 January
Balance sheet (extract) ZEEASEBXR(BE) 2017 HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 2018
BB BB
20175 HEAER HEEA 20184
12A31H EO 153 1A1H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE FAR® TFARE
Current assets MENVEE
Other current assets H R EE — — 37,504 37,504
Trade and other JEWE 5 &k
receivables H fth 518 100,038 - (37,504) 62,534
Current liabilities mEIBE
Trade and other payables  JEfH & 5 &
H fth 518 147,478 - (16,387) 131,091
Contract liabilities SRAE — - 16,387 16,387
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Impact of
adoption

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate to the

recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets and

financial liabilities, derecognition of financial instruments, impairment

of financial assets and hedge accounting.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments from 1 January
2018 had no impact on the classification and measurement of the
financial assets held by the Group. The new accounting policies are
set out in Note 2.11.

(i)  Classification and measurement

On 1 January 2018 (the date of initial application of HKFRS 9), the
Group’s management has assessed which business models apply
to the financial assets held by the Group and has classified its
financial instruments into the appropriate HKFRS 9 categories, the
majority of the Group’s financial assets include:

o loans and receivables previously measured at amortised cost
which meet the conditions for classification at amortised cost
under HKFRS 9;

o investments in wealth management products previously
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”) which remain as FVPL under HKFRS 9; and

o investment in unlisted company which is classified as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) under HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Impact of
adoption (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets
The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject to
HKFRS 9’s new expected credit loss model:

o trade receivables, and
o other receivables.

The Group was required to revise its impairment methodology
under HKFRS 9 for each of these classes of assets. The impact of
the change in impairment methodology on the Group’s retained
earnings as at 1 January 2018 was immaterial and there was no
adjustment in retained earnings as at 1 January 2018.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, no impairment loss was identified.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and aging analysis.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales
over a period and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to
settle the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Impact of
adoption (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other receivables

Impairment on other receivables is measured as either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition by considering available, reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

(¢ HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers — Impact of adoption

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers from 1 January 2018 which resulted in changes in
accounting policies. In accordance with the transition provisions in
HKFRS 15, the Group has adopted the new rules using the
modified retrospective approach. In summary, the following
adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in the balance
sheet at the date of initial application (1 January 2018):
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HKAS 18 HKFRS 15
carrying carrying
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31 December 1 January
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EREE ERMBERE
BRI 185% Z BRI E155
IRESHE IRES
2017 & 2018 F
12HA31H ENoRE 1H1A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARHE FAR® FAR®E
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Contract liabilities aRBE — 16,387 16,387
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

(¢ HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers — Impact of adoption (Continued)

There was no impact in the Group’s retained earnings as at 1
January 2018.

(i) Presentation of assets and liabilities related to
contracts with customers

Reclassifications were made as at 1 January 2018 to be consistent

with the terminology used under HKFRS 15:

o Contract liabilities in relation to contracts were previously
included in other payables and accruals.

° Other receivables (deductible VAT input) and prepayments
were previously presented together with trade and other
receivables but are now presented as other current assets
and other non-current assets in the balance sheet, to reflect
their different nature.

The new accounting policies adopted by the Group in relation to
revenue recognition are set out in Note 2.23.

2.3 Subsidiaries

2.3.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are
shown separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and balance sheet respectively.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Business combinations (Continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquiree’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date;
any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with
HKIFRS 39 in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
statement of comprehensive income.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwiill.

2.4 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s investments
in associates include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4 Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any
objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired.
If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to 'share
of profit of investments accounted for using equity method’ in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive director of the
company that makes strategic decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(@ Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Group’s presentation currency. The Company’s functional
currency is HKD.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

All the foreign exchange gains and losses statement of
comprehensive income are presented in statement of
comprehensive income comprehensive income within ‘other gains
— net’.

EXREFTHEHME @

25 D EHE

REDBIINEREZLLRREENR
MER—B2HA2H - TELE)
RERFLEBRRNARANTE
F BEORAREFHEEDAZ
= o

2.6 il E

@) MEEEBRIEER
AEBESEENITEHREINIELF
AERELCHETELERENEK
([heeEE D2 - R E B IRER A
REFZINEEARB R - KA A
e E¥ B8 IT -

(b) X5 EAER%R

INERZF R FHE BEOERFEH
EREMNEHEERE/SEMEER A
fR-FAHEERERHMAFREXRKR
HHUNBIENEREERBRANE
RO SN Wi g B B R A 2 T MR E R
RBRFEEMEABEFIEREE
RECREEHNCERFREED
i 3 o

ASNENSEREBRONEE RS R
NIE Iz FEEIZ25 -

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR

87



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
6 B3 Rk B (R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

() Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

()  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i)  income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive
income comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease and all other property, plant and
equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings
— Leasehold improvements

40-50 years
Shorter of remaining lease
term or useful life

— Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10 years
— Motor vehicles 4-10 years
— Plant and machinery 5-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other
(losses)/gains — net’ in the statement of comprehensive income.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production or administrative purposes, are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all
construction expenditure, professional fees, borrowing costs
capitalised and other relevant expenses directly attributable to such
projects. No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time when construction work is complete and
the costs of construction are transferred to the appropriate
category of fixed assets when available for use.

2.8 Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land and
buildings, is held for capital appreciation, and that is not occupied
by the Group. It also includes properties that are being constructed
or developed for future use as investment properties. Land held
under operating leases are accounted for as investment properties
when the rest of the definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concermned are accounted for as if
they were finance leases. Investment property is initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
carried at fair value, representing open market value determined at
each reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in
the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are
recorded in the statement of comprehensive income as part of a
valuation gain or loss in ‘other (losses)/gains — net’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets
(@ Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”), or Groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or Group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwiill
is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

(b) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are shown at historical cost.
Trademarks acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks have an indefinite
useful life. Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives are
reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on non-financial assets (Note 2.10)).
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

(c) Software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful
lives of five years.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are Grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.

2.11 Financial assets

() Classification
From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through OCI or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

() Classification (Continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

(i) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other
gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item
in the statement of comprehensive income.

° FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other
gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost
or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or
loss following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised
in other gains/(losses) in the statement of comprehensive income
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

(iv) Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses the expected credit
losses associated with its financial assets on a forward looking
basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Group has trade receivables for sales of products that are
subject to HKFRS 9’s new expected credit loss model, and the
Group was required to revise its impairment methodology under
HKFRS 9 for these receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Impairment (Continued)

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables from initial recognition. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due. The adoption of new approach did not result in any
impact on the amounts reported in the opening balance sheet on 1
January 2018.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a
debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group, and a failure
to make contractual payments for a period greater than 180 days
past due (credit terms).

While cash and cash equivalents and financial assets at amortised
cost are also subject to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9,
no impairment loss was identified.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the company or the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods and work in progress comprises design costs,
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses. Costs of inventories include the transfer
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges for
purchases of raw materials.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. They are generally due for settlement within 180 days
and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. See Note 22
for further information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables and Note 3.1 for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks
and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less. In the consolidated balance
sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
6 B3 Rk B (R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.17 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as
other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.20 Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprise
convertible bonds that can be converted to share capital at the
option of the holder, and the number of shares to be issued does
not vary with changes in their fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is
recognised initially at the fair value of a similar liability that does not
have an equity conversion option. The equity component is
recognised initially at the difference between the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the
liability component, which is included in shareholders’ equity in
other reserves. Any directly attributable transaction costs are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to
their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a
compound financial instrument is measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity component of a
compound financial instrument is not re-measured subsequent to
initial recognition except on conversion or expiry.

If the convertible financial instrument is converted, the respective
equity component of the compound financial instrument, together
with the carrying value of the liability component at the time of
conversion, are transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.20 Compound financial instruments (Continued)

The liability component of a convertible instrument is classified as
current unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(@ Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to control the
reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only when there
is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits

The Group operates short-term employee benefits and post-
employment schemes.

(@ Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits include wages or salaries, bonus,
allowances and subsidies, staff welfare, premiums or contributions
on medical insurance, work injury insurance and maternity
insurance, housing funds, union running costs and employee
education costs, short-term paid absences and etc. The short-term
employee benefits actually occurred are recognised as a liability in
the accounting period in which the service is rendered by the
employees, with a corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the
current period or the cost of relevant assets. Non-monetary benefits
are measured at fair value.

(b) Post-employment benefits

The Group classifies post-employment benefit plans as either
defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans. Defined
contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate fund and will
have no obligation to pay further contributions. During the year, the
Group’s post-employment benefits that are defined contribution
plans mainly include the premiums or contributions on basic
pensions and unemployment insurance. A defined benefit plan is a
pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically
defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an
employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or
more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.
During the year, the Group’s post-employment benefits that are
defined benefit plans were open to qualified employees of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Post-employment benefits (Continued)

Basic pensions

The Group’s employees participate in the basic pension plan set up
and administered by local authorities of Ministry of Human
Resource and Social Security. Monthly payments of premiums on
the basic pensions are calculated according to the bases and
percentage prescribed by the relevant local authorities. When
employees retire, the relevant local authorities are obliged to pay
the basic pensions to them. The amounts based on the above
calculations are recognised as liabilities in the accounting period in
which the service has been rendered by the employees, with a
corresponding charge to the profit or loss for the current period or
the cost of relevant assets.

Defined benefit pension plan

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of
defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. In countries
where there is no deep market in such bonds, the market rates on
government bonds are used.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Post-employment benefits (Continued)

Defined benefit pension plan (Continued)

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value
of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in
the statement of profit or loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised
in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service costs.

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, and the relevant business taxes
on value added taxes.

(@ Revenue from food and beverage business

The Group operates chains of restaurants for selling fast food and
hot pot food. Sales of goods are recognised when a restaurant of
the Group passes the food to the customer. Retail sales are usually
in cash, by credit card or by online payment platforms.

Prepaid cards issued for which the services have not been
rendered are recognised as contract liabilities until the relevant
services are performed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(@ Revenue from food and beverage business
(Continued)

The Group operates customer loyalty programme where customers
accumulate points for purchases made which entitle them to
discounts on future purchases. The Group accounts for award
credits as a separately identifiable component of the sales
transactions in which they are granted (the “initial sale”). The fair
value of the consideration received or receivable in respect of the
initial sale is allocated between the award credits (based on fair
value), which is credited to contract liabilities and the other
components of the sales. Revenue from the award points is
recognised when the points are redeemed. The amount of revenue
is based on the number of reward points redeemed relative to the
total number expected to be redeemed.

Sales of finished goods are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the products are delivered
the products to the franchisee and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the franchisee’s acceptance of the products. The
franchisee does not have a right of return upon receipt of the
products. The Group does not operate any loyalty programmes for
its franchisees.

(b) Revenue from manufacturing and sales of
handbags business

Revenue from the sales of goods are recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the buyer, and there is no unfulfiled obligation that
could affect the buyer's acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the buyer, and either the buyer has accepted the products in
accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions
have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.24 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost (2017 — loans
and receivables) calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as part of
other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash management purposes.
Any other interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the
loss allowance).

2.25 Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

2.26 Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

2.27 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders
or directors, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.28 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants
and are credited to the statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including currency risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Group’s finance department
under policies approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.
The Company’s finance department identifies, evaluates financial
risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The
Board of Directors of the Company provides written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies covering
specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk, use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial
instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.
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Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@ Market risk

(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s businesses are principally conducted in HK dollars,
US dollars and RMB, which is exposed to foreign currency risk with
respect to transactions denominated in currencies other than HK
dollars, RMB and US dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. The Group did not enter into any forward contract to
hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk for the year ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in currency
other than functional currencies of the respective group entities are
as follows:
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31 December 2018
2018%12H31H
HK dollar US dollar RMB
BT EY ARY
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY® TARY® TARY

31 December 2017
20174F12A31H
HK dollar ~ US dollar RMB
BT i AR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARE TAR® TARE

Cash and bank balances 384 K 81T 456
Trade and other receivables JFEU B 5 I & i 7B
Trade and other payables  [Eff 8 5 & & 518

As at 31 December 2018, if RMB had weakened/strengthened by 5%
(2017: 5%) with all other variables held constant, pre-tax profit for
the year would have been RMB11,384,000 higher/lower (2017:
RMB265,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of HK dollar and US dollar-denominated
cash and bank balances, trade and other receivables and trade
and other payables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@ Market risk (Continued)

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings. Borrowings
obtained at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by cash held at variable rates. As at
each balance sheet date, substantially all of the Group’s borrowings
were carried at a fixed rate.

Based on the simulations performed by the Group, the impact on
post-tax profit of a 1% shift of interest rates for borrowings with
floating interest rates would be a maximum increase or decrease of
RMB47,000 for the year ended as 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).
The simulation is done on an annually basis to verify that the
maximum loss potential is within the limit given by the management.

(b) Credit risk
The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject to the
expected credit loss model:

° trade receivables and
° other receivables.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties provided by
the Group is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of balance sheet. The Group is also exposed to concentration of
credit risk as a substantial portion of its sales is generated from a
limited number of customers. At 31 December 2018, the top five
customers of the Group accounted for about 59% (2017: 65%) of
the Group’s trade receivables.
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Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment
of IFRS 9, no impairment loss was identified.

Trade receivables

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables from initial recognition. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales
over corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2018 was
determined as follows for trade receivables:
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As at 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31H
Gross carrying amounts BEREE 77,395 11,462
Expected loss rates TEERB & 0.13% 1.52%
Loss allowance R 102 175
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Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Previous accounting policy for impairment of trade
receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade receivables was assessed
based on the incurred loss model. An allowance for impairment of
trade receivables was established when there was objective
evidence that the Group would not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor would
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments were considered indicators that the
receivable was impaired. The amount of the allowance was the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets was
reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the loss was recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within general and administrative expenses.
When a receivable is uncollectible, it was written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off were credited against administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Other receivables

Other receivables at amortised cost mainly include lease deposits,
loans receivables and advance to employees. Impairment on other
receivables is measured as either 12-month expected credit losses
or lifetime expected credit losses, depending on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. To
assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition by considering available, reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information.
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Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
During the year, the following losses were recognised in profit or
loss in relation to impaired financial assets:
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BE12A31HLEE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE

Net impairment losses on financial assets

CREERERBEFH

..

(c) Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuation in cash flows. The Group also has available
banking facilities to meet its short-term working capital
requirements. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensure compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The maturity dates for non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent the
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 XEREE@m
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BEEKREZR @
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) ) RBEZRK @
Within Between Between
1year 1and2years 2and5 years
15K 1E226F 2EFEB56
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

FTARY TARY FTARHY

As at 31 December 2018 20184 12 431 A
Trade payables BB 5 50R 91,413 -
Other payables and accruals EMENZIBEREREA 220,225 -
Borrowing &= 5,371 256,450
Convertible bonds AR ES 19,800 19,800 719,400
Payable in relation to put right & 1~ 89 JE 32 % 25
of non-controlling interests ROLEEEE 123,500
Total a&t 336,809 276,250 842,900
Within Between Between
1year 1and2years 2andb5 years
1R 1FE2F 2FELF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FAR®E FARE
As at 31 December 2017 2017412 A31 H
Trade payables JERTE 538 73,655 - -
Other payables and accruals HEmEfmEhERER 26,673 - —
Borrowing N 226,803 — —
Total a&t 327,131 — —
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Financial risk management (continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including ‘current and non-current borrowings’ and convertible
bonds as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet plus net debt.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s gearing ratio was 32%. As
at 31 December 2017, the Group’s gearing ratio was nil, as its
cash and cash equivalents exceeded its total borrowings.

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried
at fair value as at 31 December 2018 by level of the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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Financial risk management (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that
are measured at fair value at 31 December 2018.

Level 1
1R
RMB’000
FARY
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair BEAREETE
value through other BEE#ETA
comprehensive income Hie2mkE 2
ERMEE
Unlisted investment FELEMHRE
Financial assets at fair RAAREEFER
value through profit HEHt ABR
or loss ZERMEE
Investment in unlisted wealth 7 3F - 1 32 81
management products EmRE
Total &5t
Level 1
1R
RMB’000
FARY
Financial liabilities cHAaE
Payable in relation to the put [ 1~ #9 3 352 % 4 2
right of non-controlling REEEEE
interests (Note 37) (P 5£37)

e M RRNE (&)

B 7% B B B B )
33 2 AEEME @

TRIRAEBH2018F12 831 B A

AnEBEFECEERAE-

Level 2 Level 3

28R 3R
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®

Level 2 Level 3
Fo24 E3K
RMB’000 RMB’000

FTAR® FTAR®

103,496

BEZERERAE

Total
&t
RMB’000
FARM

Total
&t
RMB’000
FARY

103,496

—E-NEEH

115



Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the Group’s assets that are measured

B %5 [ B B 2R )

3.3 A AEE M @
TRIRAEBH2017F12 831 B A

at fair value at 31 December 2017. AABEFEZEE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1H Ep E3 Ll
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARE TFARE FARE FAR®
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair RAREETE
value through profit BEZEFA
or loss BERzemEE
Investment in unlisted wealth A 3 _F 77 12 B
management products ERRE — — 27,000 27,000
Derivative financial fTEE€mMI A
instrument
Put option on issuance of BT BRKES
convertible bonds R Hp — - 1,029 1,029
Total &5t — — 28,029 28,029
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Financial risk management (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Financial instruments in level 3

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for

the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Financial
assets at fair
value through
other
comprehensive
income
BRARERE
FTEEHZE
FARMEE
Wiz
SREE
RMB’000
FARM
Opening balance B
Addition wE
Redemption el
Change in fair value DREEEY
Currengy translation ERER
difference
Closing balance R e

3 HEERREREm@m

3.3 A RAEBEMF W@

FEIMEMITE
TNRIRE ZE 20184 £ 2017912 A 31
BILEEWNEIRTEEE -

2018 2017
Payable
in relation to

Financial the put right  Financial assets
assets at fair Derivative of non- at fair value Derivative
value through financial controlling through profit or financial
profit or loss instrument interests loss instrument

BARERE BAREER

FTEEHES B SEEHZE

FABHEZ FERERZ  AERZ
SREE TESRMIE REEBEE PHEE THEEMIA
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARM TAR® TARH TAE®
27,000 = 15,000 634
93,800 (102,850) 12,000 -
(78,606) = - —
(1,029) (646) - 3856
— 10
(103 ,496) 27,000 1,029
BRERERERAT —ZE—N\FFRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

Critical accounting estimates and

judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@)

Impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful life

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful life have suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2.9. The recoverable amounts of
groups of cash-generating units (the “CGUSs”) have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates (Note
21).

As of 31 December 2018, as the recoverable amounts
of the CGUs that contain goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful life were higher than their carrying
amounts, there was no impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful life.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

4.1 Critical

accounting estimates and

assumptions (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of interests in associates

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for interests in associates at the end of
each reporting period in accordance with the
accounting policies stated in Note 2.10. Interests in
associates are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of interests in an associate exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful
lives

Management of the Group determines the estimated
useful lives for intangible assets based on their historical
experience in the industry and various studies and
market research performed by them, which support
that the trademark may have no foreseeable limit to the
period over which the trademarked products are
expected to generate net cash flows for the Group. It is
possible that future results of operation could be
affected by changes in this estimate. A change of useful
lives of the trademarks from indefinite to finite would
increase amortisation charges and decrease non-
current assets.

4 BAREE

A4

41 BEESTEFTRER @

(b)

BEZERERAE

REE DB 2 ERRE
AEBREREHRRE
fif £ 2.10 P it & 5t R SR R 4
REBERAZEDZZE N
BRENR - REBERRZ
& 2 70 3R AR fE AT RE R
AU 2 B &R AT R E
AR BERBERTZER
FHESREATKE SR
(RiEEREEFEEE)
REFEERE - ZFTEFE
TR -

ERERERFEHZ
BYEE
AEEMERERBATE
EriEBkERRZER
AHRRTIBHEETER
AENBAAIAFY &P
HRYUERERBEN AL
EEBRFRSNENY
P A R A IR B - % {h
A BB A R HE AR
BB S AE o TR R
mEREN ARG R
BEERENRIERDE
ERD -

—E-NEEH

119



120

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

4.1 Critical

accounting estimates and

assumptions (Continued)

(d)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is
made.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment have been determined
based on the higher of fair value and value in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of
judgment and estimates.

Provision for impairment of receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables based on the
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade receivables. The loss
allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Management
reassesses the provision at each balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

4.1 Critical

accounting estimates and

assumptions (Continued)

(9)

Fair value of customer royalty program

The fair value of programme awards under the Group’s
customer loyalty programme is deferred and included in
revenue. This deferred revenue arises as members of
the programme accumulate award points by purchasing
food of the Group. The deferred revenue is recognised
as revenue when the related goods or services are
provided subsequent to the redemption of award
points. The proportion of points that are expected to
expire, is recognised to reduce fair value, and is
determined by a number of assumptions including
historical experience, future redemption pattern and
programme design.

The amount of revenue is based on the number of
points redeemed relative to the total number expected
to be redeemed.

5 Revenue

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

4 BEREEIEFRHE @

41 BREFEHEFTREBR@®

@)

5 WA

EFEHRTEQAEE
AEBEPBHAEAT
MBI RE N R R EEE
AT R IR I A A o B At
EMAKERBERMER
RERED E@ELHEL
WA -BEG@EHMBERED
TERHKEBEDXRRE
B BELEWA SRR AW
A FBEBEME D LB
REEEBBRBRARERRE
B IREZHEKREKMNE
o RRBENER KK
B 3 A8 2 N At Bl RR AT o

WAZRETER N R
ERSHERYNEBEHRN
BHBEHE -

REERFARANPRADHET

Year ended 31 December

HZEZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARY FAR®E

Revenue from food and beverage business BEEKIWA 470,181 409,524
Revenue from manufacturing and sales of BERHEFREBEA

handbags business 383,899 342,277

854,080 751,801

BRERERART —Z—N\FFR

121



Segment information

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
operating segments under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments(“HKFRS
8"), based on information reported to the Company’s executive
directors, being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”),
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance, which focus on types of goods or services delivered
or provided.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, The Group’s operating
and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

(i) Food and beverage business; and

(i) Manufacturing and sales of handbags business

7 #E R

AT AREEBYE®REENESH
(e MI(EFEHBREERES
OB AEBEREED BB ARE
BN MARBRTES AE
BRERRE(ETEZRERREDE
REBRNEMFHEIBERAEAMEZR
AR SPRAXNAEHRED LR
52 $8 ) o

HE2018F12A31BILFE AEH
REBMEHREELFSHEE N 2K
2 REESEBENMT

i) BEREBL K

(i) HERBEEFREHR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Segment information (Continued) 6 IHERm@

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

reportable segment:

Year ended 31 December 2018

7B A KR
AT AR EERES

AT

HZE2018F 12831 B LEE

Total revenue
Inter-segment revenue

Revenue from external customers

Segment gross profit

Distribution and selling expenses

General and administrative
expenses

Net impairment losses on financial
assets, net

Other income

Other losses, net

Finance expense, net

Share of loss of associates

Loss before taxation
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Other Information:

Significant non-cash expenses
Depreciation and amortisation

Food and
beverage
business
BRNEK
RMB’000
FARY

A48 470,181

7 BB A U A —

SNERE B I 470,181

S EEF 270,248

53 8 K2 5 B A AN

—EITHER

CRIEERBIBKRFE

H Al A

HithE5 18 558

MEERFE

FEE B2 R AR

B 1 i /&5 18
P15 B 32

FAEBRE

HER

As at 31 December 2018
Total assets
Including:
Investments in associates
Total liabilities

EXRFBELTH
& N5 20,571
MR2018F12 A31H
BELTE 2,118,770
BIE
RN T 292,975
BEETE 1,362,440

Manufacturing
and sales of
Handbags
business
BEMEE
FREK
RMB’000
FARY

383,899

383,899

96,230

8,153

319,664

92,698

BEZERERAE

7 &b 2 WA T

Total
G
RMB’000
FAR®

854,080

854,080

366,478

(243,131)
(128,834)
277)
13,831
(138)

(6,770)
(4,394)

(3,235)
(5,672)

(8,907)

28,724

2,438,434

292,975
1,455,138

—E-NEEH
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Segment revenues and results (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2017

6 Segment information (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

6 oHER @

DEUW A FNEE @)

BZE2017F12A31 B LEE

Manufacturing
Food and and sales of
beverage Handbags
business business Total
BUSHHE \
BRET FREK &&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FAREKE FARE
Total revenue g A 48 58 409,524 342,277 751,801
Inter-segment revenue 7 BB U A — — -
Revenue from external customers  4pZF = B UG A 409,524 342,277 751,801
Segment gross profit 7 &8 E F 252,933 94,383 347,316
Distribution and selling expenses 43 4% }% 8% & Ak 7K (219,004)
General and administrative —mEITHRER
expenses (97,666)
Other income H fibUg A 6,116
Other gains, net Hib I zs 5758 9,722
Finance expense, net W E R TR (9,330)
Share of loss of associates FE (LB = N B E5 18 (2,450)
Profit before taxation b F5 A7 % ) 34,704
Income tax expense Bz i (14,018)
Profit for the year F N m 20,686
Other Information: HE L :
Significant non-cash expenses BARIFREMW
Depreciation and amortisation I E 14,604 6,164 20,768
As at 31 December 2017 M20179F12 431 H
Total assets BEMBRE 1,004,844 320,908 1,325,752
Including: B
Investments in associates BN TR E 287,142 — 287,142
Total liabilities BEHAE 309,616 90,274 399,890
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Segment information (continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 2.

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales during
the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018.

Revenues of approximately RMB155,162,000 (2017:
RMB113,870,000) are derived from a single external customer.
These revenues are attributed to the manufacturing and sales of
handbags segment.

Geographical information

Information about the Group’s non-current assets, other than
defined benefit assets and deferred tax assets is presented based
on the geographical location of the assets.

7 EBE R )
DEUW A FNEE @)

18 5 B #) B £ BOHE B BRI A
B R R AR -

EXREND WAL RGINBE P
FrEA£ /Ut A - B E = 2017 F K& 2018

F12AMBEEAMES I 2 M8
£ o

#)155,162,0007c A R # (2017 & :
113,870,000t A RE) Wk A2k B —
BINBEFE - ZEWAFTBEREER

b B &

AEEGRAETNEEENERERESR
ENZERDEEEMNREEES
bl

Non-current assets

The PRC R
Thailand i
Myanmar )

HRBEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®
1,639,259 571,713
35,426 32,896
84,588 94,674
1,759,273 699,283

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

6 Segment information (Continued)

Geographical information (Continued)

The Group’s revenue from external customers by geographical
location during the year is as follows:

7 EE R @

ih & & (@)

FAAKERAIIBEPHBALM
BEDFHBMOT :

Revenue from external
customers Year ended
31 December

The PRC =
The USA x
Canada mex

Other Asian countries
Other European countries
Germany

[taly

Hong Kong

South American countries
The Netherlands

The United Kingdom

The Middle East and Africa

HAh MBI
H Al BUM B =
&

BARM

S

EEI

a7 3

£

R K IEM

REMBEE KA

BZE12A31ALEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARM
494,513 428,034
166,572 141,373
46,706 32,764
33,202 38,253
28,993 26,357
23,767 17,706
22,198 30,935
20,577 14,449
6,976 8,019
5,824 8,497
4,089 4,310
663 1,104
854,080 751,801
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F & 127

Other income 7 Hg A

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

FAR® FARE

Management service income (a) BRI A @) 2,257
Franchise income FFEF AL A 1,505
Sample sales RS 1,373
Government grants BT #8 B 832

Interest on financial assets at fair value R AR EBEEBEEH A AEBR

through profit or loss ZERMEENE —
Interest income on loans B FE 511
Rental income el A 323
Others H Aty (685)
6,116

(@) Management service income mainly includes service fees received by the (@) ERRBUATEZELREASERREER

Group in relation to the provision of management and administrative support RITHZEREMWER Z REE -

services.

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

128 For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

8 Other (losses)/gains, net 8 Hi(FH) WEFHE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARY
Net exchange gain b 5 2= 5 5E 2,080 1,346
(Loss)/gain on fair value changes on MESHITEAREEED
derivative financial instrument (Note 24)  (&538), /W 5 (Mf3E24) (1,029) 385
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWME  HENEE(EIE)/
plant and equipment W 2= (650) 295
(Loss)/gain on fair value changes of WEMEZ AR BEEZE (EHIE),/
investment properties I 2% (402) 404
Recovery of other receivable due froma Y [al A B /8 & &) 2 £ b g U 3018
former subsidiary - 7,292
Others Hith (137) -

(138) 9,722
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Expenses by nature

9 BUHEsEZXH

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018
RMB’000
TAR®

Raw material used and changes in
inventories of finished goods and work
in progress

Employee benefit expense (Note 15)

Operating lease payments

Depreciation and amortisation

Water, electricity and fuel

Transportation expenses

Property management fee

Advertising costs

Office expenses

Transaction cost in relation to business
combination

Auditors’ remuneration
— Audit service
— Non-audit services

Other expenses

SR R AR M 2 P A R e

FTEEH)

B TRHMMX (ME15)
REHEMNK

I E K 5N

IKE R AR

RBER

MEERER

B &R

MRERX
BRXBAHZIZZHA

ZHET B 2
— Ei IR
— TR
Hh 32

383,490
271,191
77,663
28,724
21,459
17,693
9,786
6,707
4,402

5,099
2,368
2,200
168
30,985

Total cost of sales, distribution expenses
and administrative expenses

HEMAN - DHE R RITH
ERRE

859,567

BEZERERAE

2017
RMB’000
TAR®

313,720
236,301
72,083
20,768
18,676
12,640
7,368
2,611
4,604

2,225
2,000
225
30,159

721,155

—E-NEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

10 Finance income and expenses

Finance income
Interest income on bank deposits

RPN
R AR B A

Finance expenses

Interest on loan from a third party

Interest on payables in relation to put right
of non-controlling interests (Note 37)

Interest on consideration payable for
acquisition of subsidiaries

Interest on convertible bonds (Note 24(b))

Others

Less: Interest expenses capitalised

MBER

FE=ZHTEFKHE

J& S ) I 22 B A 1 PR
BEEMNE (HES7)

Wi B 2 B R AR E B

Al R AE 7 A8 (P R 24(0)
Hit
BB AR X

Finance expense, net

MsEMFE

Weighted average effective interest rates
used to calculate capitalisation amount
on qualifying assets

AEAERBEEEALER
FIT A AN P 15 B R R

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018

10 MHWA R

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®

203
(2,238) (2,333)
(646) -

- (783)
(4,125) (7,434)
(225) —

275 1,017
(6,959) (9,533)
(6,770) (9,330)
1.25%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

11 Income tax expense

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

11 ISR H

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE

Current income tax B HA BT 15 Bt
Hong Kong profit tax EENER 2,999
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”) PFRMEMRSH(EMRSBD 6,344
9,343
Deferred tax IEE IR 4,675
14,018

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

11 Income tax expense (Continued)

11 FIESITEH @

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FARE
(Loss)/profit before income tax B EiE (EB8), & (3,235) 34,704
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% 2 o5% T EEHH (2017 4 : 25%)
(2017: 25%) (809) 8,676
Tax effects of: UTIHEMNBBKEZ
— Associates’ results — BB NBER 1,099 612
— Effect of different tax rates of —WBARTRBENTE
subsidiaries 2,148 (384)
— Expenses not deductible for tax —E BRI IR R W
purposes 677 844
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised — — & FB %t Bl Ak #E 2 09 B3 75 65 48
tax losses (468) (478)
— Tax losses for which no deferred — AERELEFMESHEED
income tax asset was recognised WmiSEE 3,025 4,748
Tax charge Mm% E R 5,672 14,018

Cayman Islands

The Company is incorporated in Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of Cayman
Islands and accordingly, is exempted from Cayman Islands income
tax.

Hong Kong

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

The PRC

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

11 Income tax expense (Continued)

Myanmar

The Myanmar subsidiary is subjected to Myanmar Corporate
Income Tax at a rate of 25%. No provision for Myanmar Corporate
Income Tax has been made for both years as the Myanmar
subsidiary incurred losses for both years.

Thailand

The Thailand subsidiary is subjected to Thailand Corporate Income
Tax at a rate of 20%. No provision for Thailand Corporate Income
Tax has been made for both years as the Thailand subsidiary
incurred losses for both years.

12 Dividends

11 FIEHITH @

i

WA KB R R AR25 %E T EG A
BRAMEH ARNEANERTR
MEFENEEEBR UMEFER
B E AR RISTHAT IR -

%= B

B B N R A 1220 % B R G 2=
BABMEHR dREEKEQAR
MEHEANEEERE UMEFER
BERFERAMISHA R -

12. BB

Year ended 31 December

HZEZ12A31BLEE

Proposed final dividend of nil
(2017: HK$1.5 cents per ordinary
share)

BAL1.5810)

BURKEBE - & (20175 - BE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®

18,623

On 7 March 2018, the board of directors of the Company proposed
a final dividend of HK$1.5 cents per ordinary share of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2017. The Board resolved not to
declare any dividend For the year ended 31 December 2018.

The aggregate amounts of the dividends paid during 2018 and
2017 have been disclosed in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

MR2018F3A7TH ARAIEEEES
REEEH Z2017FE12 A1 B L FEE R
BREGREBR1L5EN EESR
TeEE2018F 12 A31H L FEE TR
R AR B o

R2018F K201 7F RN 2 B LAZEE
REBBRGHEDEERENGREE
HEEREE -

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

13 (Loss)/earnings per share

13 SR (E8) &F

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

FAR® FAR®

Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREXR(EBR) /BT 1.61

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share % 52 (B 18) /& F 1.61
(a) Basic (@ EX

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the BRER(ER), /BN DHERER

(loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by RANBIEFZER AN (FIE),

the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue AR A FE RS T @AM

during the year.

BTGB E -

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

SEBRARNREREAAN
(E18), % F (11,144) 15,216

Weighted average number of ordinary £ % 77 & 38 3% &9 N4 F 5 Z (F)

shares in issue (thousands)

1,460,593 942,924
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13 (Loss)/earnings per share (Continued)

(b) Diluted

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares.
The Company’s potentially dilutive ordinary shares comprised
shares which may be issued under the convertible bonds
issued by the Company. The convertible bonds are assumed
to have been converted into ordinary shares and adjusted for
the impact of interest expense of the convertible bonds.

The computation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 did not assume
the issuance of any dilutive potential ordinary share since they
are antidilutive, which would decrease loss per share or
increase earnings per share, respectively.

13 SR (EE) B @

(b) i

FEWE(BR) /BN ERBH
EMABEMEARERZ INE
FHHBFAEN - ARREEHE
ERBREBRRBEARNAREITHA
BERESFAEETHORD - BR
AHRREFCERASET BRI
REBASRBRESFNFE
BETHE-

B 220184 &2017412 A31H
EFENERBE(ER), 2T
B mRAmEBEEEEBERAR
R BUER DRI R EE
B MEREF - A ERE
TEMAREELE LB -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

14 Directors’ and chief executive’s 14 EERTHEAZN S
emoluments
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BiEERAZ FTRAEDTEG - F
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rule and Companies Ordinance, NEZERTHREH ZMEHENT
is as follows:

Contributions
relating to social
insurance,
housing fund
and retirement

Fees Salaries Bonus scheme Total
HitRk EE
AEERENKRSE
we e A BREZFTEAMK &3t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY® TARY® TARY FARY TARY
2018 20185
Executive directors HITEE
Zhao John Huan 2B
(Chairman) (£/&)
Wang Xiaolong FEE
Wang Yuanzheng TR
Independent non- BUINTESE
executive directors
Heng Victor Ja Wei B =R #E
Tsang Hin Man Terrence & % X
Leung Kwai Kei REHR
Total R

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

14 Directors’ and chief executive’s

emoluments (Continued)

14 EERTHATHN S @

Contributions
relating to social
insurance,
housing fund and
Fees Salaries Bonus retirement scheme Total
BAAR - (E
NEEREKRE
e e B4l B EIHK &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE TARE TAR® FAR®E FAR®E
2017 2017 &
Executive directors HITESE
Zhao John Huan 2B

(Chairman) (£/&) — — - - -
Wang Xiaolong FEE — — — - -
Wang Yuanzheng TR - - - - -
Independent non- BUINTESE

executive directors
Heng Victor Ja Wei TB =X 4 135 — - — 135
Tsang Hin Man Terrence & % X 135 — — — 135
Leung Kwai Kei 2EHE(R2017F

(appointed on 4 1R4BEZF)

January 2017) 135 - - - 135
Total 4B =E 405 — — — 405
The executive directors’ and independent non-executive directors’ XA ZTEER B IENITE
emoluments shown above were paid for their services in connection EMEe ISR MBEEABEETE AN T
with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group EAEEEHEUALBESETIARRAE
and for their services as directors of the Company respectively. EHORBMmEZ -

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no emoluments # £20184F K2017F12 4318 It F
were paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or B AEBTEI TR EASMN
upon joining the Group or as a compensation for a loss of office. AREBRBXIEAFRTHE - HE

No directors waived any emoluments during these years.

EENZEFEAREEMMNE

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

15 EE/EAXH

15 Employees benefit expenses

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®

Wages and salaries TEERY®
Social security costs and housing fund H @ REMRIEERES
Staff benefit and welfare B 5@ A KAt

Mandatory Provident Fund contribution 58 1& & it 5%

226,910 197,254
29,374 27,398
12,843 9,746

2,064 1,903

BEEAMZHAE

Total employee benefit expense

271,191 236,301

None of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group were directors of the Company whose emoluments are
included in Note 14 above. The aggregate emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals, were as follows:

AEBLAESHFMALHBERL
FAEE HFHMEH N LXK E14-
TEsEeFMALTZEMSmT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12BA31BLELEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FAR®

Salaries and other benefits

Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes

Discretionary bonus payments

o REMmET
B ARAE FIET &R

REHMAES

4,912

233
414

5,559

Discretionary bonus was determined with reference to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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15 Employees benefit expenses (Continued) 15 EEREANEZHE @

The emoluments were within the following band: B N T 5108

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

Not exceeding HK$ 1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

2018 2017

Number of Number of

employees employees

EE¥A EE®E

A~ 831,000,000 7T 2
1,000,001 /% 7T 2 1,500,000 % 7T 3
5




16 Property, plant and equipment

16 W% HBERRKE

Furniture
Plantand ~ fixtures and Leasehold - Construction in
Machinery  equipment  Motor Vehicles Buildings  Improvements progress Total
AL
BERER XERRE RE BF HEHR ERIR Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TARE  TARE TARE  TARE TARE FTARE  TARE
At 1 January 2017 R2017%1A1A
Cost AR 23,233 68,482 9,713 85,405 128,716 33,889 349,438
Accumulated depreciation and Z2HTERFE
impairment (12,369) (56,809) (7,845) (77,299) (96,923) - (251,245)
Net Book Amount REEE 10,864 11,673 1,868 8,106 31,793 33,389 98,193
Year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F128318
LFE
Opening net book amount FNEEFE 10,864 11,673 1,868 8,106 31,793 33,389 98,193
Currency translation differences [ 5, = % 970 (62) 51 (276) (408) (1,359) (1,084)
Additions RE 19,687 10,924 486 25,935 5,907 29,757 92,696
Disposals HE (235) (467) (26) - (48) - (776)
Transfer upon completion OB 8 - - - - 15,759 (15,759) -
Depreciation charge HEZH (4,402) (4,880) (649) (1,411) (9,044) - (20,386)
Closing net book amount FREERE 26,884 17,188 1,730 32,354 43,959 46,528 168,643
At 31 December 2017 R2017512A31H8
Cost =53 43,655 78,877 10,224 111,064 149,926 46,528 440,274
Accumulated depreciationand 2T E RFE
impairment (16,771) (61,689) (8,494) (78,710) (105,967 - (271,631)
Net Book Amount WREFE 26,884 17,188 1,730 32,354 43,959 46,528 168,643




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

16 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Plant and
Machinery

B R
RMB'000
TARR

Year ended 31 December 2018 % Z£2018%F 128318

Furniture
fixtures and
equipment
B
KERKRE
RMB'000
FARH

16 ¥ BERRZRHE@®

Motor Vehicles

e
RMB’000
FARK

LEE

Opening net book amount FOREFE 26,884 17,188
Currency translation differences ~ [E ¥ £ %8 (682) 54
Additions AE 6,509 6,241
Acauisition of subsidiaries WM B AR

(Note 37(b)) GEXLO) 568 13,012
Disposals k= (13) (126)
Transfer upon completion EREER = =
Depreciation charge TEXH (5,033) (5,585)
Closing net book amount EREEZE 28,233 30,784
At 31 December 2018 R2018512A31H
Cost B 50,037 98,058 10,476
Accumulated depreciationand 2T E RFAE

impairment [PAR] (67,274) (8,973)
Net Book Amount REFE 28,233 30,784 1,503
(a) The carrying value of the Group’s property interests comprises buildings on

land under medium-term land use rights in the PRC.

(b) During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs amounting to
RMB275,000 (2017: RMB1,017,000 ) on qualifying assets. Borrowing costs
were capitalised at the weighted average rate of the Group’s general

borrowings of 1.25% (2017: 1.25%).

Leasehold  Construction in

Buildings  Improvements

s BEHR
RMB'000 RMB'000
TARKE TARE

32,354 43,959
(4,103) 393
2,321 4,767

- 66,597
- (505)

43,026 9,300
(2,647) (14,224)

70,951 110,287

152,308 230,478

(81,357) (120,191)

70,951 110,287

@ AKREVERZOEEEEETEREAZ
RE L M R L AR

(b) FRN AEENEEREEBEXNLRE
A At & % A£275,0007T A R B (2017 F -
1,017,000t A R#) o 8 E R A AR &
B — f% 8 700 #E 19 #£1.25% (2017 4F -

1.25%) &A1k °

BEZERERAE

progress

EEIR
RMB'000
TARE

46,528
(1,017)
11,927

1,178

(52,326)

—E-NEEH

Total

ast
RMB'000
TARE

168,643
(5,389)
31,822

81,827
(887)

(27,968)

248,048

547,647

(299,599)

248,048
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

17 Prepaid lease payments

17 BNHEERE

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FARM
The PRC a3 17,768
Myanmar k) 26,759
Analysed for reporting purpose as: MEEHRSTOT : 44,527
Non-current asset FEREBEE 44,007
Current asset mENVEE 520
Balance at the end of year FRE 44,527

18 Investment properties

18 WEWHE

As at 31 December

M12831H

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FARE

At fair value BAREE

Investment properties REMHE

Balance at beginning of year FUHEB 32,045
(Loss)/gain on property revaluation (Note 8) ¥ 2 & { (f518), Wz (M5 8) 404
Effect on foreign currency difference SNESTE B ZREM R 2 447
Balance at the end of year FRER 32,896
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

18 Investment properties (Continued)

The Group’s property interests held for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model and are
classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The investment properties situated in Thailand were revalued as at
31 December 2017 and 2018 by Thai Property Appraisal Lynn
Philips Co., Ltd., an independent firm of professional property
valuer, on the basis of open market value in existing use. One of
the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties was the
market price of completed properties nearby the Group’s
investment properties. An increase in the market prices would
result in an increase in fair value measurement of the investment
properties. For the appraisal, the valuer inspected and considered
any related factors of the appraised property such as rights
according to the law. Specific type of the property, the appropriate
usage or utilization development, general market condition are also
considered.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about
the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017 are as follows:

Level 3
FE3K
RMB’000
FARM
Industrial property plants IR FEE G T 2%
located in Thailand =

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

18 RE W% @)

AEEFFENREAEENDERE
mIERARAABERAFE  LHEEA

2017 % K 2018F 12 A31H » fi X F &
MREMECHBIEXMEMER
Thai Property Appraisal Lynn Philips Co., Ltd.
REARERBEEETNRAFAMESER-
REMEBEMBOTIERABIEZ —
RASEREMEMODERYENT
B-MEBLESEHRENENLIAE
B8 me HRFME  FhEmeE L
ZRAEMENEAEEESE  fl0%
RENE TEETHENAREAL
HEHNRERRER  —RMA -

R £ B R2018F 12 A31 B K20174
12ABZHREMEFBREBLAR
BEZNZERFEIWT

Fair value Fair value

as at as at

31 December 31 December
2018 Level 3 2017

H2018 5 H2017 F
12A31H 12H31H
ZAREHE E3® 2 nfBEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FARE FARME
35,426 32,896 32,896

RERAEYELEIRBARE L -

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

19 Inventories 19 7 &
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM FARK
Raw Materials R R 42,484
Work in Progress y e R 23,913
Finished goods Bk T 17,142
83,539
20 Investments in associates 20 REERNTRI 2R
As at 31 December
M12A31H

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM TFARE
At 1 January w1 A1H 287,142 84,305
Additions NE - 209,556
Share of losses for the year JE(E FE N E1E (4,394) (2,450)
Currency translation differences & H Z % 10,227 (4,269)
At 31 December W12 A31H 292,975 287,142
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

20 Investments in associates (Continued)

Details of the Group’s associates as at 31 December 2018 are as

follows:
Place of business/country
Name of entity of incorporation
BEREE LewE MR LER
Qidiantongzhou Restaurant Management The PRC
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“Qidiantongzhou”) (Note1)
FUHRABHRERCGER)ERAA i

([ B[R A1) (B EE)

Guangzhou yujian xiaomian catering Management ~ The PRC

Company Limited
BMNEBER NEEREEFRLDA o B
Shenzhen Love’s Kitchen Internet and Technology ~ The PRC
Limited Company
ANBFEFBENRBER DA &
Jiezhi Restaurant Management Limited The PRC
AINTHEERERFRAF rh 5
Yuepin Restaurant Management Limited The PRC
AT HREREEFRAA o B

Tianshuilai (Beijing) Catering Trade Management Co. The PRC
Ltd (“Tianshuilai”)
ERRKKREREBERAR(TRKK])  FEH

Shanghai Seesaw Coffee Company Limited The PRC
(“Seesaw”)

PEmEEmHERAR(EE]) ]

Xinyi Technology (Beijing) Company Limited The PRC

BHRFRUER)BRAF B

Shenzhen SpicyFoook Food Chain Service Co., Ltd. The PRC
AINTMRBEEFEHEREERAA 5

Note 1: Although the Group’s shareholding in Qidiantongzhou is less than 20%, the
Group is able to exercise significant influence over Qidiantongzhou, because it
has the power to appoint one out of seven directors of that company under the
Articles of Association of that company.

BT

BEZERERAE

20 REEE D7) 2 & m)

AEEBE ARR2018F 1283182
REMT -
Measurement
% of ownership interest method
BERE AL SFEFR
2018 2017
18.92% 18.92%  Equity
@A
20.00% 20.00%  Equity
e b
21.43% 21.43%  Equity
R m A
20.00% 20.00%  Equity
R
20.00% 20.00%  Equity
A
26.26% 26.26%  Equity
Rk
25.00% 25.00%  Equity
A
42.86% 42.86%  Equity
REm A
25.00% 25.00%  Equity
R %

i B N S 5N A B R R A 50 20% -
AEEAETHRANTREATZE S
THRARBEZATERME FEEH
BEEZRAALtREETET —2E

=

—E-NEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

20 Investments in associates (Continued)

(a) The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of Qidiantongzhou, Seesaw and Tianshuilai that

are individually material to the Group:

Current assets RENEE
Non-current assets ~ JER &N & &=
Current liabilities wEBE
Non-current liabilities  3E i &) & &
Net assets FEE
Revenue A

Loss for the year FEEIE
Total comprehensive 2 & &5 18 44 58

loss

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018

20 REtE QR 2 i)

(@ TERIRFHERMA A RRK
K(ZFEHEAEENSBEAN) W

MBERBE -
Qidiantongzhou Seesaw Tianshuilai
FEE il RIK K

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY TAR®E TAR® TARE TAR® TARH
46,012 79,570 23,647 49,585 26,807 45,660
PORZIN 191,377 EREPRLTA 140,229 BRELXr#8 102,006
(PR (19,207) (CELIN (16,818) BMPINCEIN  (23,244)
(CEWEIIN  (42,950) BMELEYGN  (30,475) BMPERPROR  (23,125)
Y@yl 208,790 ERERINZEE 142 521 CPAN 101,297
149,934 99,197 57,459 35,485 EERELNLL) 62,967
(CEPON  (12,686) (6,517) (903) (4,638) (3,396)
(GO (12,686) (6,517) (903) (4,638) (3,396)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

20 Investments in associates (Continued)

(a) (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interest in associate recognised
in the consolidated financial statements:

Qidiantongzhou
HEHE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FAR® TAEE

Net assets of the BENRZEE

associates FE T#rcl 208,790
Proportion of the REBREE QT

Group’s direct ZETR e %

ownership interests 1 25 Z8 15

in the associates g 18.92%
Net assets of interest 7 £ [&] fiE {5 Bt &

in associate RAERZEE

attributable to the FE

Group 5 39,503
Goodwill RS s 20,176
Effect on foreign HNEETE 2= 55 A

currency difference £ 5 (882)

Carrying amount of 7N £ [& pA B & A &)
the Group’s interest  # 25 > BRI 1A
in the associate

20 REtE NP 2 i)

(a)
L@Jﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬂﬁ EA A B R A
R e Rk ERZER
Bz ﬂ BR
Seesaw Tianshuilai
Fidk=S X 7k 3
2018 2017 2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
TAR® TARE TAR® TARR

RN 142 521 . 101,297

26.26%

35,630 ) 26,601
17,520 ; 14,593
585 ; 634
41,828

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

148 For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

20 Investments in associates (Continued) 20 REEERRIZ2ER @)
(b) Individually immaterial associates (b) EFBIAERNEEE QA
In addition to the interests in associates disclosed above, the M EXFrIEEEIN  KREB TR
Group also has interests in a number of individually immaterial AT RERFEFAEEEBIAE
associates that are accounted for using the equity method. RKH B S ARl B REZ -

As at 31 December

R12H31H

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE

Aggregate carrying amount of individually BRI NERNEE QAR

immaterial associates R4 136,970 171,712
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of: 53 B X 748 & B A9 LA T 48 %58 -

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(BE),HEF (482) 90
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2HE (B8 BARE (482) 90
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21 Goodwill and intangible assets

21 BEREFLEE

Computer
Goodwill software Trademark Total
GES E [ & &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FAR® FAR® TFARE
At January 1, 2017 M2017F1 811
Cost DN 45,495 2,120 87,200 134,815
Accumulated amortisation 2 51 85 & R (E
and impairment — (121) — (121)
Net book amount BRTE FEE 45,495 1,999 87,200 134,694
Year ended HZ2017%12A31H
December 31, 2017 IHEE
Opening net book amount 4 %] Bk [ )5 58 45,495 1,999 87,200 134,694
Additions NE — 249 12,469 12,718
Amortisation charge BT — (382) — (382)
Closing net book amount K iR & & 45,495 1,866 99,669 147,030
At December 31, 2017 A2017%12A31H
Cost BN 45,495 2,369 99,669 147,533
Accumulated amortisation 2 &t 54 KO E
and impairment - (503) — (503)
Net book amount BRH 28 45,495 1,866 99,669 147,030




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

150 For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (continued) 21 BEREFEE @

Computer
Goodwill software  Trademark Total
GRS B4 BmE a5t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TARM TAR® TAR® TARM

Year ended HZ=2018%F12H31H

December 31, 2018 HEE
Opening net book amount 4 %] Bk [ J% 58 147,030
Additions NE 1,585
Acquisition of subsidiaries Y B Bff B A 7]

(Note 37) (Ff¥ 5E37) 538,436 399,677 944,178
Amortisation charge B - - (756)
Closing net book amount £ 5 B [ /% 88 583,931 499,346 1,092,037

At December 31, 2018 R 2018 12H31H

Cost B A 583,931 10,019 499,346 1,093,296
Accumulated amortisation 2 5 # i R (&
and impairment (1,259) (1,259)

Net book amount BREFE 583,931 8,760 499,346 1,092,037

(a) Useful life of intangible assets (@) BEEETHEH
Computer software is amortised on a straight-line basis over BB RBIERAFEFHIFR
the expected useful life of 5 years. NEGE# -
The trademarks have a legal life of 10 years and is renewable PEETE FH AB104F » 30 7] LAY
every 10 years at minimal cost. The directors of the Company THBMMOKARFGI0OFELE R -
are of the opinion that the Group would renew the trademark RRAREERE AKEEAFE
continuously and has the ability to do so. Various studies BEME TRR/REBENUL
including product life cycle studies, market, competitive and TE- AEEEBRECETZHE
environmental trends and brand extension opportunities have WE BEERSHRBAFE -
been performed by management of the Group, which support mE BELEREEBBERER SR
that the trademarks have no foreseeable limit to the period Pt e o LA TS ER
over which the trademarked products are expected to EEHEEREHAAEEESE
generate net cash flows for the Group. FREMEW MBI MATERR

i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A %R R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

21 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Useful life of intangible assets (continued)

As a result, the trademarks are considered by the
management of the Group as having an indefinite useful life.
The trademarks will not be amortised until the useful life is
determined to be finite. Instead they will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired.

Impairment tests for goodwill and
trademarks

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill and
trademarks with indefinite useful life have been allocated to
groups of CGUs in the food and beverage business segment,
which comprise: (1) Beijing HHG Restaurant Management
Co., Ltd. (“HHG") and its subsidiaries (the “HHG Group”); and
(2) Beijing New Spicy Way Catering Management Ltd. (“New
Spicy Way”) and its subsidiaries (the “New Spicy Way
Group”).

For the HHG Group, the recoverable amount of the CGUs
has been determined based on a value in use calculation.
The calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
forecast approved by management covering a five-year
period, and pre-tax discount rate of 17.3% (2017: 17.3%).
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on
the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.

If the pre-tax discount rate had increased by 1.2% or the
average revenue growth rate had decreased by 1.9% during
the forecast period, it would have decreased by 8.4% for the
VIU of the CGU, which would approximate its carrying
amount. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount of the CGU to exceed its
aggregate recoverable amount.

21 BEREFEEE @

(a)

(b)
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21 Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and

trademarks

For the New Spicy Way Group, the recoverable amount of
the CGUs has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial forecast approved by management covering a
ten-year period, and pre-tax discount rate of 18.0%. Cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a
steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on the
relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.

Cash flow projections during the forecast period for the HHG
Group and the New Spicy Way Group are based on the
expected revenue growth rates and gross margins during the
respective forecast period. Forecasted revenue growth rates
and gross margins were determined based on past
performance and the management’s expectations for the
market development. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the carrying amounts of the CGUs to
exceed their recoverable amounts.

Based on above assessment, management of the Company
are of the view that there is no impairment of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful life as at 31 December
2018.
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#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F & 153

22 Trade and other receivables 2 EWE S REMFHIE
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM FARE
Trade receivables (a) FEWE 5 A (a) 88,857 54,710
Prepayments (b) TE 5 3R IE () - 30,716

Other receivables (c) H fib JfE W X IE (o) 75,122 34177

Total trade and other receivables JEWE 5 & B IR AR 163,979 119,603

Less: provision for impairment OB E R (277) —

Trade and other receivables — net EWE S M EMKRIE — F5 163,702 119,603

Less: Non-current portion B, - JEBNHAEE o (43,379) (19,565)

Trade and other receivables — current portion & Y & 5 & B b 7838 — BN ER & 120,323 100,038

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

22 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(@) Trade receivables

22 EWE 5K HMKE @
(a) EWE ZIE

As at 31 December

MW12A318
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARY
Related parties (Note 39(b)) B & 75 (M 7E39(b)) -
Third parties F=h 54,710
Subtotal INE 54,710
Less: provision for impairment W R ERE -
Trade receivables — net FEWE S FIE — F 8 54,710

The aging analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

BREZFTEARBEMRZER

Within 6 months
6 months to 1 year

61E A AR
61EAZE14F

AZERESTHET :
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FAR®
54,710
54,710
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F & 155

22 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 22 EIWE 5 K H M E @)
(@) Trade receivables (Continued) (a) BWE S KE @
Movement for impairment B &

As at 31 December

M12831H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000

TARY TAR®

As at 1 January ®1A1H8 —
Impairment provision BB B -
As at 31 December W12 A31H —
Trade receivables are denominated in the following FEWE SHIEN TG
currencies:
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FAR®
RMB AR 8,765
HKD BT 2,244
uUsb X 43,701
54,710
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22 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(@) Trade receivables (Continued)

For dine-in and take-out revenue of the Group’s food and
beverage business, the Group’s trading terms with its
customers are mainly on cash and credit card settlement. For
other sales transactions, including sales of finished goods to
customers of the food and beverage business and the
manufacturing and sales of handbags business, a credit
period not exceeding 180 days is granted to the majority of
customers. The credit period provided to customers can vary
based on a number of factors including nature of operations
and Target Group’s relationship with the customer.

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their
carrying amount is considered to be the same as their fair
value.

The Group applies HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. The loss
allowance increased by RMB277,000 for trade receivables
during the current reporting period.
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22 EWE 5K HMKE @
(a) BWE S RKE@m
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FONEBAME  AEEEAEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Prepayments

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

22 Trade and other receivables (continued)

22 EWE S K HMKE @

(b) TR

As at 31 December

M12A318
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
Prepayments for rental HEMNTEMN KA 13,473
Prepayments for raw materials R KLY T8 BB 6,717

Prepayments for property, plant and Y WE R&ENTEN KIA

equipment 2,456
Others Hib 8,070
Subtotal /NEE 30,716

As at 31 December 2018, prepayments are included in “other
current assets and other non-current assets” (Note 27) in the
balance sheet to reflect their different nature and the

terminology of HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9.

R2018F12 A31 H » AR I\
ANEEBBERIEMEHEER
HEMIEms & E] (HF27) WA
RMESETRAMNEEREBSTE
HEEBEISREEBYIERE
EBIZE QSR Z T8 °

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

22 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(c) Other receivables

22 EWE 5K HMKE @
(c) HithEWFKIE

As at 31 December

M®12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FARE
Lease deposits HEZe 15,861
Amount due from related parties R L 8 23 75 3B (B 3% 39(b))

(Note 39 (b)) 3,078
Loans receivable due from third parties () &4 2 = 75 & 5% (i) 2,500
Advance to employees 2HTREE 1,384
Franchise fee FREER 445
Deductible VAT input (i A 0338 (8 B TE (i) 6,788
Debenture EREE 335
Others Hb 3,786
Subtotal INEF 34,177
Notes: Bt 3 -

@

(i

M

The balance includes:

Loans receivable of RMB5,260,000 (2017: nil) due from certain
shareholders of an associate of the Group, which are repayable
in March 2021 and bear interest at 7% per annum. The loans
are secured by the equity interests in the associate of the Group
held by the borrowers.

Loans receivable of RMB3,261,000 (2017: RMB2,500,000) due
from a third party controlled by the non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary, which are originally unsecured, repayable on 31
December 2017 and bear no interest. In March 2018, the Group
entered into a supplemental agreement with the borrower and
the loans are extended to 31 December 2019 with annual
interest rate of 4.35%. According to the supplemental
agreement, the Group obtained certain equipment owned by
the borrower as collateral in 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, deductible VAT input balance is included in “other
current assets and other non-current assets” (Note 27) in the balance
sheet to reflect their different nature and the terminology of HKFRS 15
and HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Trade and other receivables (Continued) 22 BIWE 5 K& H it 5E )
(d) As at 31 December 2018, non-current portion mainly (d) #2018 12A318 -+ IEENHEI LR 15
comprised lease deposits and loans receivable. EEEHERE REWER -
(€) As at 31 December 2018, the fair values of trade and other (€) Ro018F12A318  EUWE S K
receivables approximated their carrying amounts. HEftRB s AR BEEEREE
R -
Financial assets at fair value through B.UAREEGELEED
other comprehensive income a‘ﬁl‘% Hm2EKENER
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY FARM
Unlisted investment, at fair value FEMRE  EAREE m:
The balance represents the investment in an unlisted company at EHREHNIELEMRAZRBIRES
an original amount of RMB2,000,000. As at 31 December 2018, #12,000,0007T A R - 22018 F 12 A
the fair value of the investment approximates its carrying amount. 1A KEZAABEEAKEEEMN

3T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

24 Convertible bonds

24 TR ESF

As at 31 December

Current

Bl 48

Put option on issuance of convertible bonds (a) %17 A] # & (& %5 32 5t HA # (a)

MW12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® FARY
1,029
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FAR®

Current BN HA
Convertible bonds (b) AI# AR & % (b)
Non-current JEENHA
Convertible bonds (b) Al AR & % (b)

517,592 —

Notes:

(a)

Derivative financial instruments

The balance represented the fair value of the Company’s put option on
issuance of convertible bonds.

On 18 September 2016 and 10 October 2016, the Company and Sonic
Tycoon Limited (shareholders of the Company) entered into an agreement and
a supplementary agreement (collectively, the “Investment Agreements”) in
relation to the issuance of convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in the
aggregate principal amount up to HK$1,500,000,000 for a total consideration
equal to the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds. The Investment
Agreements was approved by the Company’s shareholders on 13 November
2016.

Pursuant to the Investment Agreements, the Company has the option to issue
all or part of the Convertible Bonds to Sonic Tycoon Limited at any time during
the 2 years commencing from 13 November 2016. As a result, the directors of
the Company are of the view that the above put option constituted a derivative
financial instrument for the Company and should be accounted for as a
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

24 Convertible bonds (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

During the year ended 2018, the Company issued convertible bonds in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$750,000,000 (2017: HK$750,000,000) and
the put option was derecognised as all the convertible bonds had been issued
pursuant to the Investment Agreement. The related loss of RMB1,029,000 was
recognised as a loss on fair value change of derivative financial instrument and
recorded in “other (losses)/gains, net” during the year ended 31 December
2018 (Note 8).

Convertible bonds

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company issued convertible
bonds in an aggregate principal amount of HK$750,000,000 (2017:
HK$750,000,000). The major terms and conditions of the Convertible Bonds
are as follows:

(i) Interest rate:

The Company shall pay an interest on the Convertible Bonds at 3% per
annum.

(ii) Conversion price:

The Convertible Bonds will be convertible into the Company’s shares at
the initial Conversion Price of HK$1.18 per share, subject to
adjustments. The Conversion Price will be subject to adjustment for,
amongst others, consolidation, subdivision or reclassification of shares,
capitalisation of profits or reserves, capital distribution, dividends, rights
issues of shares or options over shares, rights issues of other securities,
modification of rights of conversion and other offers to shareholders.

(iiij)  Availability period for the Company to issue the Convertible
Bonds

The availability period for the Company to issue the Convertible Bonds
is a fixed term of two years commencing from 13 November 2016 and
neither party will have the right to extend.

(iv)  Maturity

The fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the Convertible Bonds, or
subject to the agreement of the bondholder, the seventh anniversary of
the date of issue.

v) Redemption on maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled,
the Company will redeem the Convertible Bond at an amount equal to
the principal amount on the maturity date, plus accrued interest and all
other amounts accrued or outstanding under the Convertible Bonds
which remain unpaid on the maturity date. The Company may not
redeem the Convertible Bonds at its option prior to the maturity date,
except on redemption on change of control and redemption on delisting
as described below.

24 BB EF @)

BeE : ()

(a)

(b)

fTEEMTI A E
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A & % A #£750,000,0007% It (2017 4F :
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BRI B 1 R E B 1T - 1,029,000 7T A R #
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BEHEL WEHXEZ2018F12A31H
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HZE2018F12A31BIEFE  AREIE %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

162 For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

24 BB EF @

BeE : ()

24 Convertible bonds (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  Convertible bonds (Continued) (b) ] R AR fE 35 ()
(vi  Redemption at the option of the bondholder (i) EFEHFEARERED
) Redemption on change of control (1) o hi| 48 % 5 B fE [

@

Following the occurrence of a change of control, the bondholder
will have the right at its option, to require the Company to
redeem in whole but not in part such holder's Convertible
Bonds. The redemption price is the HK dollar equivalent amount
which is the outstanding principal amount, plus the amount of
interest representing 8% of the internal rate of return of the
principal amount of the Bond from the date of issue to the
payment date (the “Early Redemption Amount”).

Redemption on Delisting

In the event that the Company’s shares cease to be listed or
admitted to trading on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the
bondholder shall have the right, at its option, to require the
Company to redeem, in whole but not in part only, such
bondholder’s Convertible Bonds at the Early Redemption
Amount.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using a
market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond at
the issue date. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to
the conversion option and recognised in shareholders’ equity on
special reserve.

The movement in the components of the Convertible Bonds during the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 are as follows:

BARGEZER  BHF
BABRBITERERAR
AL 2 (EX D) %
BEHEFHEANATRBRES -
BRERSKREELADEDN
BLEESEMNEESFA#
THHRENKBHESAS
AN ERE%AFE D
HRAEESED -

B 14 B B o]

AR B R TBEE B
R LM N EEER B
RETRS  BESFKA
AEREBTREERARA
BRAEDNSHEBELZES
FHEANZHUEILIFHD)
BRI R BB 5

BEHIM AR BEZRRE
17 B B AT LE IR AT MR R SR A
W5 ARG E - RIS K
AN ES: B L R AL Rl
FREERRERTER -

H Z20174F K2018F 12 A318 Ik F E -
ARRESFEKRTD 2 EBHMT

Liability Equity

component component Total

EEHD ERBD &t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

FARE FARE FARE

As at 1 January 2017 MH2017F1A1H — — —
Issuance of Convertible bonds (i) AT R BEE() 559,522 88,930 648,452
Interest expenses (i) I8 B 3 (i) 7,434 — 7,434
Conversion of Convertible bonds (iii) B 4% 0] 2 i% (F 2 (i) (547,020) (88,930) (635,950)
Exchange difference & 5 =58 (19,936) — (19,936)

As at 31 December 2017

M2017F 128381 H

As at 1 January 2018

720181 A1 H

Issuance of Convertible bonds (i) AT RIES() 537,933 128,088 666,021
Interest expenses (i) B R X (i) 4,125 - 4,125
Exchange difference IEH =% (4,666) - (4,666)

As at 31 December 2018

#2018 12 A31H
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Notes: (Continued)

(b) Convertible bonds (Continued)

24 Convertible bonds (Continued)

24

AR ESH @

M EE ()

(b) TR E S (H)

Notes: Pt EE -
[0} Details of the Convertible Bonds issued and converted during the years 0] W H 220174 k2018412 A31H
ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 are as follows: IFERTREBZATBRESF
BT
Number of
Issue date Principal issued Conversion date shares converted
BTRH BITEESHE WA =R :¢:d
ROEE
1st issuance 4 January 2017 HK$160,000,000 22 September 2017 135,593,220
8B — KRBT 201741 A4H 160,000,000 7T 201749 A 22H
2nd issuance 31 May 2017 HK$110,000,000 22 September 2017 93,220,339
EIREBAT 201745A31H 110,000,000/ 7T 201749 A22H
3rd issuance 13 November 2017 HK$480,000,000 13 November 2017 406,779,661
B =IREAT 2017411 A13H 480,000,000 7T 2017411 A13H
4th issuance 23 November 2018 HK$750,000,000 — —
SR ET 2018411 A23H 750,000,000 7T - -

(iii)

The interest expense of RMB4,125,000 (2017: RMB7,434,000) was
calculated using the effective interest method.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Convertible Bonds with
principal amount of HK$750,000,000 were converted into 635,593,000
ordinary shares of the Company, which resulted in an increase in share
capital of HK$63,559,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB53,894,000)
and share premium of HK$690,564,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB582,056,000), respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the Convertible
Bonds was converted.

As at 31 December 2018, current portion of the Convertible Bonds
represented interest payable calculated at the coupon rate of 3% per
annum, which amounted to HK$22,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB19,800,000). The remaining amount of the
Convertible Bonds were classified as non-current liabilities.

(i)

(iv)

F B 5 % 4,125,0007T A B ¥ (2017
F 7434000 ARE) HIRAE
BRFREFE -

HZE017F12ABLEE A28 A
750,000,000 T AT R EH B ER A
A 7]635,503,0000 F AR - EHRA R
B% 15 ¥ (B 9 7l 3 /163,559,000 7t (1 %
14 4753,894,0007C A & %) % 690,564,000
7T (1857 #582,056,0007T A R #) -

HZE2018F12AHLEFEE  WEA
BREFESHR

M2018F 128310 AR EF T
BHIRINE B KRG EI%:TE K FEL A
B & % 522,500,000 7T (18 % R 4
19,800,0007C A R#) o AT E 5 R
ENEAERBER-




164

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

25 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and
short term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. The deposits carry prevailing market interest rates which
range from 0.01% to 0.35% (2017: 0.01% to 0.35%) per annum.

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following

25 BERBREEEY

Re MRS EEBENREAEEREZ
RENRINBEHAE=ZBAXNUNAZ
HBRTER - ZEGFHRIEE TS
F R RN F0.01% % 0.35% (2017 4F -

0.01% £ 0.35%) 5T & °

BekBeEEBMATINEEE:

2017
RMB’000
TAR®

21,282
35,048
340,093
1,638
17

currencies:
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2018
RMB’000
FAR%
HKD BT 206,499
RMB AR 57,506
usD EV 35,275
MMK T 2,967
THB =k 17
Euro B T 13

302,277
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

26 Financial assets at fair value through 26
profit or loss

UAnEBETFTEBEHEEF
FTABERZERMEE
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FAR®

Investment in wealth management products R IBBIE R EVIRE

27,000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are all
denominated in RMB.

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent
investment in wealth management products issued by listed banks
in the PRC and redeemable within one year.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of these financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

None of these financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
either past due or impaired.

MArRBEFEAEZHFAREZ
CREEAUNAREHE:

NARBEFELEZHFABEZ
TREEENTE LMRITHITHE
MERNKRE YAE—FRER -

RBEBRB - ERRARYN & ]
J//(Z\\/Lt{ﬁfgu‘fiﬂﬁiﬂ uﬂ»}\?ﬁﬁﬁz
TREENKREE-

=113

2EARAAREBEFEBEZEHFT AR
B2 EREEDREBHSRE -

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

27 Other current assets and other non-
current assets

HttABHEERHLMIER
E’Jﬁfé

As at 31 December

R12H31H

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FAR®

Prepayments (a) TE 5K TE (a) —
Deductible VAT input BT HRE (8 B 18 —
As at 31 December
R12H31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
Non-current ERB —
Current V) -

As at 31 December 2018, prepayments and deductible VAT input
balances are included in “other current assets and other non-
current assets” in the balance sheet to reflect their different nature
and the terminology of HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9. As at 31
December 2017, these balances were included in “trade and other
receivables”.
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27 Other current assets and other non-

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

current assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Prepayments

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

27 HRBEERHMIER
BHEE®@

(a) ENFE

As at 31 December

Prepayments for rental

Prepayments for raw materials

Prepayment for property, plant and
equipment

Prepayments for software services

Amounts due from related parties(Note 39(b))

Others

M12831H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FAR®E
MAEMESFE —
[ k89 T8 1+ FOE —

W BB REEBHEN

KIA —
RIS M TR E —

& Ui 88 22 75 3R (Y &E39(b))
H At

As at 31 December 2018, non-current portion mainly
comprised prepayments for property, plant and equipment.

(b) ®o0185 128318 « FEEEZH
TERREME BMEMRENTE
fHFR0E -

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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28 Trade and other payables

28 BENEZRHEMRE

Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding ENESLEMFBETERIEE 5
for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period ENEERYKRAZANESRE B S

obtained for trade purchases is 7 to 180 days.

BEZFHREMA7TEISOKR

As at 31 December

Trade payables(a)
Other payables and accruals (b)

MW12831H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
JERE 53 TE () 91,413 73,655
HtfERsIE RTEIRE A () 274,999 73,823

366,412 147,478




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F & 169

28 Trade and other payables (Continued) 28 ENE S K HMRIE @
(a) Trade payables (a) EHE ZRIE
The aging analysis of trade and bills receivables based on the BRESRIBELBEEEZEAH
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: NEIEHRRZEBR ST T -

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FARE
Within 6 months 61E A LAA 73,655
Over 6 months 61& A A = —
73,655
Trade payables are denominated in the following currencies: FENEB SHIBEIN T EEAE
As at 31 December
R12H31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR®E FAR®
RMB AR 56,618
HKD AT 4,616
usD ETT 12,421
73,655

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 H31 B - F £

28 Trade and other payables (Continued)

(b) Other payables and accruals

28 ERNESKHMKE @
(b) EtENREREAREH

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
Consideration payable for acquisition of WEEKT B A R BN R E
subsidiaries (Note37) (P 5E37) 142,500 -
Wages, salaries and other employee benefits T & - 4 M H #h 8 T8 7 48,364 26,927
Payables for rental expenses ERNHEESER 25,641 14,727
Payables for renovation costs FE5F BB B AX 27,957 4,905
Interest payable FEAS F) B 6,393 3,501
Payables for franchisee FE A< O B2 7 BB 4,613 754
Payables for transportation expenses ERRBEA 2,895 1,733
Tax payables (excluding current income eI B IE (N BRI P&
tax liabilities) Mar) 1,456 335
Dividend payable JE - IR B 363 —
Advance from customers and prepaid card () & P £ 2 & 38 {+f = (i) - 16,387
Others Hib 14,817 4,554

274,999 73,823

(i) As at 31 December 2018, prepaid card, advance from third parties and
related parties are included in “contract liabilities” (Note 31) in the
balance sheet as result of the adoption of HKFRS 15 from 1 January
2018.

(C) As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of trade and other
payables approximated their carrying amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

29 Deferred taxation

The analysis of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

29 EEFIE

BEEMRSREE/(BE)DTHOT :

As at 31 December

M12A31H

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE

Deferred income tax assets ELEFTESHREE
Deferred income tax liabilities REFFEREE

31,338 10,805
(124,868) (24,584)

The movement in deferred income tax assets during the year is as

FRELEHABHREELZSHBFERNT :

follows:
Payroll and Customer
accrued Amortisation  Unused tax loyalty
expenses differences losses programme Others Total
IR ABA BHEF
EER BEER BREE B Hity At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY TAR® FARE FTARY FTAR® FTARE
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1H1A 8,505 6,255 — — 306 15,066
Acquisition of a subsidiary & B i B 2 &) — 414 _ _ _ 414
(Charged)/credited to (Rigzmer),/~
profit or loss B (5,023) 76 201 - 172 (4,574)
Currency translation fEH =%
differences (101) — — — — (101)
At 31 December 2017 420175128 31H 3,381 6,745 201 — 478 10,805
Acquisition of subsidiaries 4 B Fft B 2 7]
(Note 37(0)) (Pt 5£37(b)) 5,449 4,386 8,870 3,296 511 22,512
(Charged)/credited to (REZ=NR)/
profit or loss HAER (3,319) (1,223) 3,004 (86) (117) (1,741)
Currency translation &N =%
differences (188) — — — (188)
At 31 December 2018 42018 12H31H 5,323 9,908 12,075 3,210 872 31,338

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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29 Deferred taxation (continued)

The movement in deferred income tax liabilities during the year is as

29 JE B E @)

FRRLEMSHAEZBERET

follows:
Fair value Fair value
adjustment change on
on intangible investment
assets property Others Total
BREE REWE
AABEA L2ALEES
B B Hitb Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FAR FAR FAR
At 1 January 2017 M"2017F1H1H (21,800) (2,580) — (24,380)
Charged to profit or loss KRBT — (101) — (101)
Currency translation b 5 Z 58

differences — (103) — (103)
At 31 December 2017 A2017%12A31H (21,800) (2,784) — (24,584)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Y 8% i1 & 2 &)

(Note 37(b)) (P 5E37(0)) (99,919) — — (99,919)
Credited to profit or loss FFAEE 80 42 122
Currency translation e =%

differences — (487) - (487)
At 31 December 2018 A2018412A31H (121,719) (3,191) 42 (124,868)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

29 Deferred taxation (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2018, the Group had tax losses of RMB41,186,000 (2017:
RMB29,086,000) to carry forward, which were not recognised as
deferred tax assets as management considered that the utilisation
of these tax losses in the foreseeable future is not probable, of
which an amount of RMB20,095,000 would expire through year
2019 to 2023 (2017: RMB10,373,000 would expire through year
2018 to 2022), the amount of RMB21,199,000 (2017:
RMB18,713,000) with no expiry date.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary difference attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to RMB15,733,000 (2017:
RMB8,061,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

29 IE 7 B 18 ()

HRIEEBEBERABELEHNBHREEZ
HE REEBBRAUEELEZARANKE
R AEER 2 EEE R & g
Z o N2018F12A31H  AEEHNH
% &5 18 A41,186,0007T A K # (2017
120,086,000, A R¥) - AR E 2
EREEANBEMNRREBZEHB
BEOAEEEN  RMIEXABEER
RIEER 7% B EE o H F20,095,0007T A
R ¥ #5 72 20194F = 2023 % f& i (2017
F 110,373,000 A R & #& 702018 4F
F 20224 & ) * 21,199,0007T A K #&
(20174 : 18,713,0007T A B ) & |
HIR o

1B R B BT 15 FOE - #2008 F 1
R1B 8 FEK B AR BRIV M M
ERZEEVYEHMMBIRERTE - AR
NEBEL AT RO TR ERAR
- R A R 2R A% AT e T & 5 B &
BHEERE WAV BRELELS
BRAPRWBARREMN 2 Gk
7 %8 3£15,733,0007C A R ¥ (2017 4F -
8,061,0007T A R ) 5 12 1% % %4 18 #
1 o

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

30 Borrowings

30 f&®

As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2018

RMB’000

TARY

Current

Unsecured

Bank borrowings

Loans from third parties (c)

BN EA

i
RITIE X
E=ZHEFH(C)

2017
RMB’000
TAR®

221,000

221,000

2017
RMB’000
TAR®

221,000

Non-current Ik B &
Unsecured i
Loans from third parties (c) FE=FER(©) 229,742
Total borrowings CE Y 234,742
(a) Maturity of borrowings (@) ERZEHA
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2018
RMB’000
FTARY
6-12 months 61218 A 5,000
1-2 years 1224 228,542
2-5 years 2&E54F 1,200

234,742

(b) Weighted average annual interest rates

(b) fnAEF 33 F R R

221,000

As at 31 December

M12831H

2018
RMB’000
FAR%

Bank borrowings
Loans from third parties

RITER
FE=TEXK

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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30 Borrowings (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

(c) Loans from third parties

30 B @

(c) F=FERNK

A former director of the Company (i) KANB—ZBATEF()
Other third parties (ii) H b 5 = 75 (i)

(i)

The amount represent a loan from a former director of
the Company of HK$260,000,000 (2017:
HK$260,000,000). The loan bears interest at 1.25% per
annum during the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017:1.25%). The origin maturity date of the loan is 30
September 2018, which is extended to 31 December
2020 during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Loans from other third parties are unsecured and bear
interest at 10% per annum. The maturity of the loans is
5 years.

(i

As at 31 December

M12A31H

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARHE

228,542 221,000
1,200 —

229,742 221,000

ZeBEBRBARAE %
Al & % A & 5260,000,000
7 7t (2017 4 : 260,000,000
BT ) e B 22018412 A
J1BLEFE  ERIEZFF
E125[E F B (20174 :
1.25%) c Z B R K R % E
BIH A2018%F9AH30H © B
R E E2018F12 8318 It
4 E AT HA 20204 12 A 31
E| o

KEEME=ZTTHNERR
EEA - WIRF N E10%E
B BRMRREF -

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

31 Contract liabilities

31 SEAE

As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000
TARY

RMB’000
TAR®

Prepaid card (j)
Customer loyalty programme (i)
Advance from customers

Advances from Group-purchasing websites
Amounts due to related parties (Note 39 (b))

Others

BT R ()

=R EHEEE)

BE#X

REBMEBR —BERAW
JE A B 3 5 3 (B 5E39(b))
Hth

(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities:

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-

forward contract liabilities.

AERABERROKA :

TRETRAREHEROW AP
HEEARAERENEHE -

Year ended
31 December
BZ12A31H
LtFEE
2018
RMB’000
TAR®
Revenue recognised that was included in the 5+ A Bi#] 4 ] B (& 62 88 79 2 #E 57 KA
contract liability balance at the beginning of
the period
Prepaid card AN 10,839
Customer loyalty programme ®P B E 344
(i)  Asat 31 December 2018, prepaid card, advance from third () MBRBE08F1ATHEENSE

parties and related parties are included in “contract liabilities”
in the balance sheet as result of the adoption of HKFRS
15 from 1 January 2018. As at 31 December 2017, these
balances were included in “trade and other payables” .

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018

BB SRS XE R 1558 - 722018
F12H31IB BN R -B=A K
BEFBFIAEERERIA
A&l R2017F12H318 -
ZEEBDTATENE S L E
fFRIE] -



32

33

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

Deferred government grants

32

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

FTARY FARY

Opening net amount of the year FAF5 1,672
Additions NE 757
Amortisation B8 (154)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37) e B B 8 A B (BT 5E37) -
2,175

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group received
government grants amounting to RMB145,000 (2017:
RMB757,000), mainly for the establishment of restaurants and
purchase of manufacturing machineries. Such government grants
were recorded as deferred government grants and would be
credited to the statement of comprehensive income over the useful
life of the corresponding assets using straight-line method.

Share option scheme

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 18 May 2011 for the
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible persons.
The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years from
adoption of such scheme and will expire on 17 May 2021.

33

HE2018F12A31BIEFE  AEH
W B B I %6 B 145,000 7T A R ¥ (2017
F:757,000L AR®E) T EARNHE
REBMEEEEMW - ZEHITH
MEFFABRTERT@E - YiSERE
BECHREEENFEAFRAGTAZ
AR EE o

BRESE

ARBIRE—IBR2011F518H &
B RER CEMERETE(H
) UREEERAEER AT G
SR Mz AR 10FRAB K - I
PR2021F5 17 B fg@m »

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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33 Share option scheme (continued)

Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company could at
their discretion grant options to () any director, employee or
consultant of the Company or a company in which the Company
holds an equity interest or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”);
or (i) any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include
Any director, employee or consultant of the Company or an Affiliate;
or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee or
consultant of the Company or an Affiliate; or (iv) any customer,
supplier or adviser as may be determined by the directors of the
Company from time to time to subscribe for the shares of the
Company.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options might be granted under the Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company any point
in time. The maximum number of the shares of the Company in
respect of which options might be granted to any individual in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless
approval of the shareholders of the Company was obtained in
accordance with the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

Options may be exercised during such period (including the
minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held before it
could be exercised) as may be determined by the directors of the
Company (which shall be less than ten years from the date of issue
of the relevant option). Options may be granted without initial
payment. The exercise price was equal to the highest of (i) nominal
value of the shares of the Company; (i) the closing price per share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the
date of the grant of the options; and (jii) the average closing price
per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
the grant of the options.

No share options were granted since the adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

33 BERESE @

BRIBFTE AR2RESEEHBEMRI
KRB ARNREI B RAER 2 DA
gZARZHBAR(BBAR] Z
ARMES - EEHERB: HHZTm A
BIEARAKBE AR ZERES
EE RN A 2EERT s
ARmlEBARIZEMNEE B8
SEMEEHRA AT HVBEAEARD
AEEERTRAEZERAEF - #
FERmSERER THERENERBERA

TR

BRTz2EBRELARERE AL
ARAEM - BERAREBFEMRLZ
BEREMP R 2 ANRABRMNER &
EFARERESHTIEEBBARRE#
TN Z10% ° BRIERIBBE X P £ 7h
RAESARRRRRILAE  TRRE
128 A AR FEMENALZE
MRz EREARARNDEAE
TRBENRZI12E A ME 2 &E—H
ZEBETARBBRN Z1% °

EREIRARFEEETZEBH
MM EmBETEEEREE A
B +FR TREBEBREY FITE
M EBEREZERHAR(NAE)) AT
FoBRENEFAELEVBANRZ
BRATRE  WAE TR =T8F 7 &
REERTEEROIANRGRM 2HE
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BMmEMI TR TE : Rii)kHm
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F & 179

34 Cash flow information 34 WERERER
(a) Cash generated from operation (a) REEKMBEE
For the year ended 31
December
BZ12A31BLEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FTARY FARY
Profit before taxation B 755 B 4 (3,235) 34,704
Adjustments for: FEE
Depreciation and amortisation T E B 28,724 20,768
Amortisation of deferred government grants 3 XE U5 T 45 B 2t 8 (1,054) (361)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment T8 15 70 & F1E 2 8 1,045 3,233
Finance expenses-net (Note 10) B 75 & B F R (M 52 10) 6,770 9,330
Share of loss of associates (Note 20) FER B & A RS 1E
(M 5£20) 4,394 2,450
Fair value adjustment to derivatives (Note 8)  #TETLEKM AR EE
FE (M 5E8) 1,029 (385)
Fair value adjustment to investment property HEWE AR EEHE
(Note 8) (Mf5E8) 402 (404)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant HEME BELEREY
and equipment (Note 8) B8, (Yz) (M sE8) 650 (295)
Net impairment losses on financial assets SREERBEBEFE
(Note 22) (B 5£22) 277 —
Net exchange differences b N =R F 5 2,086 —
Interest income on financial assets at fair BARBEGT=EAEEE
value through profit or loss (Note 7) it ABmZ oA
ENBWA (FFFE7) (883) —
Interest income on loans B2 HB WA (397) —
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other U E 5 N E b FIAE
receivables (38 A0) 60,412 (21,619)
Increase in other operating assets oAb 45 2 8 B 1 N (86,812) —
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEERAD,/(8m) 8,795 (24,072)
Increase in contract liabilities AREEE M 79,261 —
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other ERE 5 R H I8
payables CRL ),/ 38 1N (164,393) 18,366
Cash (used in)/generated from operations KEE (TR 3
B (62,929) 41,715

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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34 Cash flow information (Continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

4 BEREREE @

(b) FEEHK

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR% FARHE
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIReEEBY 302,277 398,033
Borrowings — repayable within one year BER——FREE (5,000) (221,000)
Borrowings — repayable after one year BR——FREE (229,742) —
Net cash FIE S 67,535 177,033
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBELZEY 302,277 398,033
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BEABE-TER (228,542) (221,000)
Gross debt — variable interest rates BERE - Z8 (6,200)
Net cash FIRE 67,535 177,033
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

34 Cash flow information (Continued)

(b) Net debt reconciliation (continued)

(c)

34 BEREREE @
b) FEEHEER@®

Borrowings Borrowings

due within due after
Cash 1 year 1 year Total
—FR  —ENE
RB& E|HRfERK | HRERK &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FAR® FARK TFARK
Net cash as at 1 January 2017518182
2017 SERS 108,264 — (228,800) (120,536)
Cash flows WEm 299,982 - — 299,982
Currency translation E R =%
differences (10,213) 7,800 — (2,413)
Other non-cash movements £ 1th JF I8 & & — (228,800) 228,800 —
Net cash as at A2017F12831H
31 December 2017 ZERE 398,033 (221,000) — 177,033
Cash flows Ben (123,983) 33,680 — (90,303)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U % [t /& A 7]
(Note 37) (M 3E37) 17,964 (38,680) (1,200) (21,916)
Currency translation 5 =%
differences 10,263 — (7,542) 2,721
Other non-cash movements £ th 3E IR & & — 221,000 (221,000) —
Net cash as at A2018E12 831 H
31 December 2018 ZEBS 302,277 (5,000) (229,742) 67,535

Non-cash transactions

()  The consideration for acquisition of subsidiaries 0]
amounting to RMB142,500,000 have not been settled

as at 31 December 2018, see Note 37.

(i)  The purchase of property, plant and equipment (i)
amounting to RMB27,957,000 have not been settled as
at 31 December 2018 (2017: RMB4,905,000).

(c) ¥REXRS

M 20184 12 A 31 H -
WeEWB-REMNRKIE
142,500,000 7T A B # 5 &
5 R MR -

W 2018412 A 31 H -
BEDE BELXE
27,957,0007t A R # (2017
F 1 4,905,000 A R #) 14
REETE ©

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e R R MR (')

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

35 Share capital 35 &
Number of
ordinary

shares Amount
ZEREAE k|
HKD’000
FET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: BREEC10B T2 BBA

Authorized: YETE

At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 R2017F1 A1H 20174

and 31 December 2018 12 A31H K&2018%F 12 A31 H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount Amount
ZEREB £ ok}
HKD’000 RMB’000
FET TFARE
As at 31 December 2017 R2017%12 A31 H 1,460,593,220 146,059 122,949
As at 31 December 2018 R2018%F12 A31 H 1,460,593,220 146,059 122,949
36 Commitments 36 HiE

(a) Operating lease commitments — Group (a) BEHERE — K&

as lease

The Group leases office buildings under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements. The lease terms are between 3
and 10 years, and the lease agreement is renewable at the
end of the lease period at market rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

36 Commitments (Continued)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

36 &IE @)

(a) Operating lease commitments — Group

(b)

as lease (Continued)

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are as follows:

(a) REFERE —X£H
AAEME AN @

RETATHEEEHEN KL R
EHEEMFAREWT

As at 31 December

No later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but

not yet incurred is as follows:

M12H31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM FARK
—F QA 140,213 43,694
—FUEBERAFR 301,405 90,290
HEE 22,686 15,051
464,304 149,035
(b) BEAREIE
RERBITNEREENERN K
XHWAT
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM FARK

Property, plant and equipment

BEZERERAE

7,747

—E-NEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

37 Business combination

On 19 June 2018, Delightful Year Holdings Limited (“Delightful
Year”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA”) with Mr. Li Jian, Mr.Xu
Bochun and other individuals (collectively, “the Seller”), pursuant to
which:

(1)

The Group agreed to purchase and the Seller agreed to sell
72% equity interest in New Spicy Way for a cash
consideration of RMB 696,143,000 (the “Tranche |
Acquisition”);

Subject to the occurrence of the Tranche | Acquisition, the
Group agreed to purchase and the Seller agreed to sell an
aggregate of 15% equity interest in Beijing New Spicy Way
on or before 31 March 31 2019 at specific consideration
stipulated in the SPA with a minimum amount of
RMB142,500,000 and a cap amount of RMB330,000,000 (the
“Tranche Il Acquisition”); and

In addition to the Tranche | Acquisition and the Tranche |l
Acquisition, the Group has granted the right in favour of Mr.
Li Jian and Mr. Xu Bochun (collectively, the “Remaining
Shareholders”), pursuant to which the Remaining
Shareholders will have the right, but not an obligation, to
require the Group to purchase 13% equity interest in Beijing
New Spicy Way from the Remaining Shareholders at specific
consideration stipulated in the SPA with a minimum amount
of RMB123,500,000 and a cap amount of RMB286,000,000,
if the net profit of Beijing New Spice Way for any of the years
ended 31 December 2019, 2020 and 2021 exceeds
RMB41,000,000 (the “Put Right”).

The Tranche | Acquisition was completed on 30 November 2018 (the
“Completion Date”).
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37 ¥ 56

R2018F6 4198 AR B 2B E
RAIEFERBERAG(EF))ESE
BEE BRATEEREMAL(ATE
(BErRDiIvEERE([EEHED -
Bt

(1)

AEBEREBERBESREDN
EMRERHEE BeRER
696,143,000 7T A F#& ([ % —HA L
Bl

FE-—HHKEEER ~AEE
[l & 2019F3H31H =X 2 Al
BEMESTRENZAHK 2
AT EILL RFHEAS £15%0%
- REAEEMEFIHA IR
1£.142,500,0007T A R #& & E R
330,000,0007T A R#& ([5 = H#f Uk
Bl Rk

BRE—HRE RS —HUREN
REFEBERBUEZGEERKA
HEhREGEBINGREDAX D
ANZ R R - Wit R FTERE
B ZE 20194 ~ 2020 [ 2021
128318 LR FE 24 F 1
#141,000,0007T A R ¥+ % #4 B
HEHmAIEE T ZERNLESR K
EERANGREBETHREER
13%EHE REABEEHBERFR
R 7 5 1X123,500,000 7T A R # &
B8 286,000,000 7T A R ([3R58
#]) .

F—HULEE B 7 2018%F 11 A30H X
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

37 Business combination (Continued)

Based on the assessment performed on the Completion Date,
management of the Group determined that the significant risk and
reward of ownership relating to the 15% equity interest in relation to
the Tranche Il Acquisition has been transferred to the Group upon
the completion of the Tranche | Acquisition. As a result, the Tranche
I Acquisition and the Tranche Il Acquisition are considered as linked
transactions for the purpose of accounting for business
combination. As at the Completion date and 31 December 2018,
management of the Group estimates that the consideration for the
Tranche Il Acquisition was RMB142,500,000, which was included
in “trade and other payables” in the consolidated balance sheet.

To reflect the amount payable in relation to the Put Right based on
management’s estimate of the possibility for the Remaining
Shareholders to exercise the Put Right, the present value of the
estimated amount payable of RMB102,850,000 is recognised as a
financial liability with the corresponding amount debited to special
reserve on the Completion Date. The amount is calculated based
on the consideration of RMB123,500,000 and discounted at the
cost of debt of the Company. The subsequent changes to the
liabilities (other than the cash settlement) are recognised in profit or
loss. For the year ended 31 December 2018, finance expenses
amounting to RMB646,000 (Note 10) are recognised in profit or
loss to accrete the liabilities at the discount rate in arriving at their
present values. As at 31 December 2018, the payable in relation to
the Put Right amounted to RMB103,496,000, which was recorded
as a non-current liability in the consolidated balance sheet.

The effect of the Tranche | Acquisition and the Tranche Il
Acquisition is summarised as follows:

(@) Consideration transferred

37 ¥¥ 5 6twm

BERTKBETZHMG  AEEE
BERABEME —BIEZ15%
ZHEHBERRREEAERFE R
F-HREZTKNEERETAER - F
b F—HWE R E —HNERERS
AHZEAREMEERABER
5o RER B K2018F 12 A31H » &
EEEEBGAE _HREZREAR
142,500,0007T A R ¥ sz s B 2 &
AGREEEABRIENES REM
FRIE] -

BREEEEGMFTHNBGREITER
HREZ AR ARB R E 2N
BEMNNKE HiEMREBEZRE
102,850,000t A REE R B & &
BE MEELBER KB BEE
Bl ER MR ZRERERE
128,500,0007T A REFHE W R4 Q7]
BERKAFER - BEAAEBEGES
EBRBRINZHEREHONESER -
HE2018F12A31B ILFE - K&
Fi646,0007C A R (15E10) E RiE s
MR UWEEZERERNETR K
MMAEE- R2018FE12A31H - Rih#E
2 +8 8 &+ 31 1H 5 108,496,000 T A R
B OWERGEEEBBERANTAR
ERBEE-

S KBRS HKEY EE
mF -

(@ EBEBRE

RMB’000

FARM

Cash consideration paid for the Tranche | Acquisition £ — EfUK i B & (38 & (8 696,143
Consideration payable for the Tranche Il Acquisition E_HIWEENKE 142,500
838,643

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B35 AR M (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

37 Business combination (Continued)

(b) Recognised amounts of identifiable (b) TERFKBEEREE
assets acquired and liabilities assumed EENERSEHE
The fair value of net assets of New Spice Way Group MHEBEEERTERKHEHMNFEER
acquired as at the date of completion is as follows: AEBEAT
Fair value
AREE
RMB’000
FARE
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T8 19,458
Trade and other receivables (i) JEWE 5 K H b FRIE () 130,368
Cash and cash equivalents HeEMREZEY 17,964
Other current assets HEmmehEE 16,988
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y 81,827
Intangible assets-computer software BMZAE — BT 6,065
Intangible assets-trademark (i) BmEAE — BR) 399,677
Trade and other receivables — JEWE 5 K H b3k 18 — JEBIERE0 9 (i)
non-current portion (i) 36,343
Deferred tax assets BEERIBE E 22,512
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowing &= (38,680)
Trade and other payables BB S Kk H M FRIE (167,273)
Tax payable e B IE (3,298)
Contract liabilities ERAEE (72,903)
Non-current liabilities FERBARE
Borrowing B (1,200)
Deferred government grant i JE U i B (2,499)
Deferred tax liabilities (i) BT B 7% B & (i) (99,919)
Total identifiable net assets ARBFEERRE 345,434
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A %R R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

37 Business combination (Continued)

(b) Recognised amounts of identifiable

(c)

assets acquired and liabilities assumed
(Continued)

Notes:
(i) Acquired trade and other receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables was RMB166,711,000,
including trade receivables with a fair value of RMB22,634,000. The
gross contractual amount for trade receivables was RMB22,634,000,
of which none was expected to be uncollectible.

(ii) Intangible assets and deferred income tax liabilities

The acquired identifiable intangible assets of RMB399,677,000
represented the trademark of the New Spicy Way Group. Deferred
income tax liabilities of RMB99,919,000 had been provided in relation
to these fair value adjustments.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition

The excess amount of the total consideration for the Tranche
I Acquisition and the Tranche Il Acquisition over the fair value
of the net identifiable assets of New Spicy Group acquired by
the Group is recognised as goodwill which amounted to
RMB538,436,000 and is considered as the synergy with the
Group and work force that did not meet the criteria for
recognition as intangible assets. None of the goodwill
recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax
purposes.

(c)

0 U B FE UL E 5 & E A OB

BREZGREMREZAABER
166,711,000t AR ¥ - BIE A R &
8422634000t AR 2 [EWLE 5
FE-EHESHRBEBZEMELE
44 % 522,634,000 A R - FEET
#% AT 2 UL [E -

(i BREERELEMERAE

BRAKBESNTHENELEE
399,677,0007C A R AT miE £ E
#) A o iR T B & 599,919,000
TARBERUHEARBERAEE
o -

WREEHE

FHRBEERF _HREZER
EHARNSEKEFRESEA
BRAFEEAARBEZ CREER
B2 £ % 5538,436,0007T A
RE WEAEAEEREIATE
B EAERREEZEB I 2
[B R0 fE - FEFT AT RR 2 BN %
BUMETIS®L

As at the date
of acquisition

BZWEBB
RMB’000
FARK
Total cash consideration AR S REB 838,643

Less: total fair value of net assets of the W HREEBFEEANEEMERE
New Spicy Way Group (845,434)

Add: Non-controlling interests in net assets i : FEEE EEEIFERER

of the New Spicy Way Group 45,227
Goodwill S 538,436
BREERERAT ZZ—-—NEFERK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

37 Business combination (Continued)

(d) Cash outflow for the acquisition

(e)

(f)

37 ¥¥ 8 6twm

d WBELEZRTRE

Year ended

31 December
2018

B Z20185
128318 ILFE
RMB’000
FAR%

Outflow of cash for the acquisition,

WHBELZHRSRE - Mk

net of cash acquired BAZHES

— Cash consideration paid to the Seller — YN FEHFZEREEKE 696,143

— Bank balances and cash acquired —RITEBREARS (17,964)
Cash outflow for the acquisition during the year F R EE £ 2 H 4K H 678,179
Transaction cost (e) XBHA
Transaction cost of RMB5,099,000 was included in general 5,099,000 T AR ¥ Z X BFKAE
and administrative expenses in the statement of BREREERER —BRITR
comprehensive income and in operating cash flows in the HYULRBEERERIRER S
statement of cash flows. Viike
Revenue and profit contribution impact H WARGHNEREE

Included in the statement of comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2018 were revenue of
RMB48,836,000 and profit of RMB6,688,000 contributed by
New Spicy Group.

Had the New Spicy Way Group been consolidated from 1
January 2018, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income would show pro-forma revenue of RMB1,388,769,000
and net loss of RMB16,801,000 respectively, which are
calculated by aggregating the financial information of the New
Spicy Way Group and the Group.
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2018F12A31BLEFE 22 ®E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

38 Retirement benefit schemes

Defined benefit scheme

The Group is a member of a defined benefit scheme which was
open to qualified employees of the Group’s subsidiaries. In
December 2000, all the then existing members of the defined
benefit scheme were enrolled into the MPF Scheme and their
accrued benefits for the past services under the defined benefit
scheme were frozen as at 30 November 2000. The defined benefit
scheme was closed to new employees from December 2000
onwards.

Under the defined benefit scheme, employees are entitled to
retirement benefits varying between 0% and 100% of their salaries
as at 30 November 2000 multiplied by the pensionable service up
to 30 November 2000 on attainment of a retirement age of 55. No
other post-retirement benefits are provided.

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as investment
risk and interest rate risk.

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
using a discount rate determined by reference to the yields of the
Hong Kong Government Exchange Fund Notes; if the return on
plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability;
however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on
the plan’s debt investments.

The risk relating to benefits to be paid to the dependents of plan
members (widow and orphan benefits) is re-insured by an external
insurance company.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out as at
31 December 2018 by Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation, the related current
service cost and past service cost were measured using the
projected unit credit method.

38 RIKERIFTE

5 E M = 5t &

AEBA—EBRAEMNMETE 2KE -
FZETENDALAEEZHNBRARZEE
BB MmaR - 2000F12 A 7 E 7
*%%%%ZWEWEE§EMA%
EaitE ERATAEFETHBE
%%Z%EMEEMmmiﬁﬂ%H
R 4 o FE % 5 8 I8 B 20004F 12
ﬂtTE SEEEMA -

REREN=ETE - B BN FE55%
EWZ REF - AT UER Z R IKAE R TH AR
Z N E 2000411 A30H Z # Bl 2 0%
i1oo%Tw A 3 LA E = 20004 11 A
OB EFERRKEZREFEE -
REEWAREBHEAMRKERF o

zﬁ%@$%@ﬁ&%” % Wi
AR R F AR

RERR
REMBSHUEEZRENLEER
B 91 I 2 6 3% 4 2 Wi K R E 2

?ﬁii—v—u = Thﬁ%ﬁEZ@#&ﬁb"\
ZEE - BEEEIEH -

BEHEMEREHSENFEEE R
- &80 e mat Bl ERKKRE R R
ZEREMDIE

BERRAIXNERBCERMMR) X
R zEREINERER AR EHNE
& o

EEERATMNEAEREBE &R
HBEENETHEEERBEEERA

AIA2018F 12 A3 HEE L - A F
FamAERME - P2 RERBK R
MBARBRATRBBEGBEMEE
EETE o

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

38 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

Defined benefit scheme (continued)

Investment risk (continued)

The main actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

38 R K& F S

REF =25 & a)
J'L /ﬁq J—l, @ (2
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁi{%ﬁ” S S UNNE
2018 2017
Per annum Per annum
5F 5F

Discount rate per annum

FBE

1.80% 1.40%

The actuarial valuation shows that the market value of plan assets
at 31 December 2018 was HK$ 7,634,000 (2017: HK$7,960,000 )
and that the actuarial value of these assets represented 438% (2017:
329%) of the benefits that were accrued to members. The surplus
at 31 December 2018 of HK$ 5,890,000 (2017: HK$5,541,000 ) is
to be cleared over the estimated remaining service period of the

current membership.

Amounts recognised in comprehensive income in respect of these

defined benefit plans are as follows.

1B E BB s AT 8 & E R 2018412
HA318 2z m1{& 47,634,000 T (2017
% :7,960,00087L) MZEFEE IS
HEBEDHEERTEXNEESNE 2
438% (2017 F : 329%) ° 20184 12
A318 z & % 45,890,000/ jT (2017
% 15,541,000/ 70) IR E & FEEE
FerRBEFRHRNGEH -

H

HEEKRF R ARRERER
W EREDT -

2018 2017
RMB’000
TAR®

RMB’000
TAR®

Net interest income

Component of defined benefit assets
recognised in profit or loss

Remeasurement on the net defined
benefit assets

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts

included in net interest expense)
Components of defined benefit assets

recognised in other comprehensive income

%A B A

REBEZETHERAZRENZEE

AP BB 1D

RENDEEFRIEHNAE

AEEERB(TIEEDAA

M B SOFERR)

REMEEEETERZRE

Mz & EHEK D

53

53

293

296

Total

349
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

38 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

Defined benefit scheme (continued)

Investment risk (continued)

The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the Group’s obligation in respect of its defined
benefit retirement benefit plan is as follows:

38 R K& A& @

REFZFE @)

®E =M )
BAAGAMBHRAEPRAEERA
ERIZERBRE B REREELY
EEENE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
TARY TAR®

1,535 2,056
(6,718) (6,766)

Present value of funded defined benefit REMBZSAEZRE
obligations

Fair value of plan assets EEEZAREE

Defined benefit asset AEN=EE

(5,183) (4,710)

Movements in the present value of the funded defined benefit
obligations in the current year were as follows:

FAREMNEAERB2EBWT -

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARY FARM

Opening balance F )48 3,359
Interest income FE WA 18
Benefit paid =ENEIES (1,225)
Actuarial losses EEEE 3)
Currency translation difference &5 =% (93)
Closing balance FREH 2,056

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

38 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

Defined benefit scheme (continued)

Investment risk (continued)
Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year
were as follows

38

BREREE @

REFZFE @)

®E R ke (®)
ENHEEEANABEZ EHMT

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

FARY FAR®E

Opening balance F 7,880
Interest income F B WA 71
Benefit paid BT F &= (1,225)
Actuarial gains 5 EH W = 293
Currency translation difference fE =5 (2593)
Closing balance FRHE 6,766

The major categories of plan assets at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

HEEERBERRZEEZESEN
T

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
TAR® TAR®

Debt instruments BBEITA

6,766

The plan assets do not include any equity shares in the Company
or property held by the Group.

The fair value of the above debt instruments is determined based
on quoted market price in active markets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e M RRNE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

38 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

Defined benefit scheme (continued)

Investment risk (continued)

The Group also operates the MPF Scheme for all qualifying
employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The
Group contributes monthly the lower of HK$1,500 or 5% of the
relevant monthly payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees. The employees of the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit scheme operated by the government of the PRC.
The Group is required to contribute certain percentage of payroll
costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

38 R K& A& @

REFZFE @)

®E =M )

AEBMAFAEAEBNESRY — &
TS E RHBEERAEE
CEESBEE THRZIEAES-
7 £ W () 38 7 & 5T &) 4% 201,500 7T 8k
EBSAEMRA 5% (AREE A
) MEEZHRX L EER - KEE
2R EW B D E 2R B A B EAT
By EYERBRITEZIKE - &
EEEREMEX Y ETED AR
KA S B2 - A= MY AR K
BR B ETRERET MK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

39 EMNREELIXREZRE

(a) REMEBRLIXS
R RENTRS -

39 Related and connected party disclosures

(@) Transactions with related parties

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

Name of party Relationship Nature of transactions 2018 2017
B BB ke XHEME RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR®E TAEE
Sonic Tycoon Limited Parent company Issuance of convertible 666,021 648,452
bonds
EZARAF (SN BATAI R E 5
Sonic Tycoon Limited Parent company Interest on convertible 4,125 7,434

bonds

EFABRRA [SENS] AR B 5 T B
Shanghai Seesaw Coffee Associate Interest income —
Company Limited
FETESMBEER QA /NS MR A
Interest income —
Shenzhen Love’s Kitchen Internet Associate
and Technology Limited
Company
A B FEFHERR /NS MR A
BRAF]

Beijing Li Gao Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd.

(“Li Gao”) interests of New Spicy Way
IRBECEEREREMTE HIRBZIFZERE B A
~E([Bs)) nEmERZAA

Xin Liang Ji Food Technology
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Company beneficially
owned by non-controlling

Fellow subsidiary of Li Gao

Interest income

Interest income

(“Xin Liang Ji”)
EREZRMBEUER) ez RRMER A B YA
BERAF(MERED
Xin Liang Ji Fellow subsidiary of Li Gao  Sales of goods —
ERE =z FRHER A Bl s
Xin Liang Ji Fellow subsidiary of Li Gao ~ Purchase of goods —
ERAE B2 R 2 &R A BEEM
Zigong Yanweiyuan Food Fellow subsidiary of Li Gao ~ Purchase of goods —
Co., Ltd.

BEEERKRERBERAF
China BBQ Limited

China BBQ Limited

RSN PN
Significantly influenced
by key managements of
the Company
RARAREEERAER
EWN-2 -

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

39 Related and connected party disclosures

(Continued)

(b) Outstanding balances arising from (b)

transaction with related parties

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the
reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties:

39 BABKRBEIRRZIBEEm@®

BT R Z A &SRR

As at 31 December

Assets

Trade receivables

Other receivables — current (i)
Other receivables — non current (ii)
Other current assets

BE

FEW & 5 FKIA

H i & WK IR — BIHA()

H i & WK IR — FE BN HA (i)
HitREHEE

Notes:

(i) The balance includes:

(1) Other receivables of RMB14,548,000 represented loans
receivable due from related parties, which were unsecured, bear
interest at 1.25%-5.20% per annum and repayable in 2019.

) Other receivable of RMB2,500,000 represented management
service fees receivable due from a related party (Note 39(a)).

(ii) The amount represented loans receivable due from an associate, which

was unsecured, interest free and repayable in 2028.

Liabilities
Trade payables
Contract liabilities

&8\
FEH 8 558
ERAE

M12HA31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARM FARE
2,317
2,317
W3t
[0} HEHRBE

(1) H b & YR 7K 18 14,548,000 7T
AR GRIEBETER
B AR - 1% E R R 1.25%
5.20% &t 2 & 7B 120194 (&
8o

@  E WK IE 2,500,000 7T A
R A el B E 7 e k& 1
R 7% & (M 5£39(a)) ©

(i ZEHEEREBEARNERE
Mo REEIR . 2B RAR2028F

BE-

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

39 Related and connected party disclosures
(Continued)

(c) Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

39 BEHKRBEIRRSZEE @

c) TEEEEMS

EEREMTIBEEEBRENE
AzM&nT :

As at 31 December

Short term employee benefits WMEE TWwF
Post employment benefits ERINERF

R12HA31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
6,001
233
6,234

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company

(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 and
2017 are as follows:

Place and date of

incorporation/ Issued and fully paid share
Name of company establishment capital/registered capital
HMRY /R EBERTRAZRARS
DNRER kB ERLE-:N
Dongguan Deluxe Handbag The PRC Paid-in capital
Manufacturing Limited* 11 January 2012 HK$1,000,000
RESRFRAMAAN)
REERFRERDA) & BWER
20121 A11H 1,000,000 7T
Dongguan Jia Xin Handbag Company The PRC Registered and paid-in capital
Limited* SR 52525 FRBM A A () 25 February 2014 HK$10,000,000
REREFRARRF() i E S R E B AR

Dongguan Lee Wai Handbag Co.
Ltd* REFEFRERAQF ()
REMEFRBERAF()

Dongguan Wei Hua Company

Limited B EFRABRRF ()

REAEFRARAA)

Harvey Handbags Company Limited

Harvey Handbags Company Limited

Lee & Man Company Limited

BT AR AR

Lee & Man Handbag
(Thailand) Company Limited

Lee & Man Handbag (Thailand)
Company Limited

Lee & Man Handbag Manufacturing

Limited Company
EXFRMERLDA
Lee & Man Management

Company Limited

EBYEBRAERAR

201452250

The PRC

25 September 2009
Bl

200969 H25H

The PRC

28 January 2014
H

201461 A28H

Myanmar

19 August 2015
)|

2015F 8 A19H

Hong Kong
21 November 1978

&
197811 A21H

Thailand

11 November 1997
ES

1997 F 11 A11 8

Hong Kong
20 August 1976

A
19768 420 A

Hong Kong
24 November 1992

B5
1992411 A24 H

10,000,000 7T

Registered and paid-in capital
HK$6,000,000
AMEERER
6,000,000 7T

Registered and paid-in capital
HK$10,000,000

AR REWRER
10,000,0007% 7T

Registered and paid-in capital
USD1,500,000

T RBRER
1,500,000 7T

Ordinary 100% HK$1,000,000
Non-voting deferred
HK$1,000,000

& 3 A% 100%

1,000,0007% 7T £ & S
iR R A% 17 1,000,000 7T

Ordinary Baht 30,000,000

3/ % 30,000,000 % &

Ordinary HK$10,000
Non-voting deferred
HK$500,000

LB A% 10,0008 T & 1R E 8
i JE A% 1 500,000 78 7T

Ordinary HK$2

LRBR2E T

40ﬁﬁﬂZI§W%Qﬂﬁ
B

(@ XLXBZEEHBE
R 2018 F % 2017 F

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

N\,

AN
12 8

SIHZHBWOT :

Principal activities

ETRER

Attributable equity
interest held by the
Group
rEEREZ
PEfh R AR &
2018 2017
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

BEZERERAE

Manufacture and sale

Manufacture of handbags

BEFR

Manufacture and sale of
handbags

HERHEFR

Manufacture of handbags

BETFR

Manufacture of handbags

REFR

Manufacture and sale of
handbags

BENHEFR

Property holding in
Thailand
RRBEFAME

Manufacture and sale of
handbags

BEREEFR

Provision of management
and administrative on

services

RUEERITHRS

—E-NEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
n 6 B3 Rk Y & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

40 XAFZXTEH B D A
15 ()

(@ AR2FZETEHE QT
A 20184 K% 2017F12 8
SIHZHBWOT : @

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 and
2017 are as follows: (Continued)

Place and date of Attributable equity
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid share interest held by the
Name of company establishment capital/registered capital Group Principal activities
HMRY/RIBE EBERTRAZRES rEEREEZ
DNEER RBH# g A BERAER TEEH
2018 2017
HHG The PRC Registered and paid-in capital 87.50% 87.50%  Chinese fast food
02 December 2003 RMB10,000,000 restaurants chain
MEA R GRINE EE=¥N B S RE R
2003412 H2H 10,000,00070 A R #
Tianjin HHG Restaurant Management The PRC Registered and paid-in capital 87.50% 87.50%  Chinese fast food

Co. Ltd.
AENEARREEZFRAF

11 September 2013
f
20135 9A11H

RMB500,000
R B R A A
500,000 A R %

restaurants chain
HEEHREE

Tianjin Han Fang Wei Ye Food The PRC Registered and paid-in capital 82.25% 82.25%  Chinese fast food
Co. Ltd 19 June 2014 RMB27,368,400 restaurants chain
RETMEFBERMBRDA L24c] T RBRER FEEEREE
20146 A19H 27,368,4007T A R ¥
New Spicy Way (Note ii) The PRC Registered and paid-in capital —  Chinese hot pot chain
30 December 2005 RMB15,000,000 restaurant
FaRid (st H MR EREXR TEEHNREE
2005412 A30H 15,000,000 7C A R #
Shanghai New Spicy Way Catering ~ The PRC Registered and paid-in capital —  Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd. (Note ii) 05 July 2010 RMB1,000,000 restaurant
LERREERERERAA FE A kERER HEEENRERE
(Pff i) 2010%7A5A 1,000,0007C A B #
Tianjin New Spicy Way Catering The PRC Registered and paid-in capital —  Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd. (Note ii) 20 October 2010 RMB1,000,000 restaurant
RENREEREEERAA FE M RERER REEENRERE
(Fff i) 2010410 A20H 1,000,000 A R #
Xi'an la Zhi Dao Catering The PRC Registered and paid-in capital —  Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd. (Note ii) 11 October 2011 RMB100,000 restaurant
BARRZBEREEERRA FE MR B YW E R TEEHNRERE
(Ff i) 201110 A 11H 100,0007T A R #&

Shijiazhuang New Spicy Way The PRC Registered and paid-in capital —  Chinese hot pot chain
Catering Management Ltd. 26 October 2011 RMB500,000 restaurant
(Note ii)

AXREMREEREBARAR HE MR E YR E R TEEHNRERE
(Pf i) 2011410 A 26 A 500,000 A R #

Langfang New Spicy Way Catering ~ The PRC Registered and paid-in capital —  Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd. (Note ii) 31 October 2011 RMB100,000 restaurant

BHMREEREEERAA FE M RERER HEEHENRERE

(B i) 2011 10A31H 100,0007 A R #&

Zhengzhou New Spicy Way Catering

The PRC

Registered and paid-in capital

Chinese hot pot chain

Management Ltd. (Note ii) 09 December 2011 RMB100,000 restaurant
BN REEREEERAA HE HMRERER hEEHENRERE
(Ff i) 201112 A9 A 100,0007C A R #&

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F & 199

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries ofthe 40 XA T 2T EKM B A 7 &
Company (continued) 5 @

(@ AR2FZETEHE QT
A 20184 K% 2017F12 8
SIHZHBWOT : @

(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 and
2017 are as follows: (Continued)

Place and date of Attributable equity
incorporation/ Issued and fully paid share interest held by the
Name of company establishment capital/registered capital Group Principal activities
HMRY/RIBE EBERTRAZRES rEEREEZ
DNEER RBH# g A BERAER TEEH
2018 2017
Tangshan New Spicy Way Catering  The PRC Registered and paid-in capital —  Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd. (Note ii) 16 December 2011 RMB100,000 restaurant
B REEREEBRLA a2pc] AR B E AR FEEHENRER
(PR EEi) 201112 4164 100,0007C A R #
Huhehaote New Spicy Way Catering  The PRC Registered and paid-in capital —  Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd. (Note ii) 12 March 2012 RMB100,000 restaurant
HAESERERERAR R R E Y E R TEEHANREE
(Fff i) 201237128 100,0007T A R #
Beijing Hong Ri Hong Yuan Food The PRC Registered and paid-in capital 81.78% —  Manufacturing
Co., Ltd (Note ii) 28 March 2012 RMB1,064,000 condiments
IEtRBEEBRREMAERAR F A kERER HE SRR
(PR i) 201243 A28 H 1,064,0007C A B #
Shenyang New Spicy Way Catering  The PRC Registered and paid-in capital —  Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd. (Note ii) 31 May 2012 RMB100,000 restaurant
BB REEREEERRA H R EUE AR hEEENRERE
(P 3Ei) 20125 A31 A 100,0007T A R #
Hefei New Spicy Way Catering The PRC Registered and paid-in capital —  Chinese hot pot chain
Management Ltd. (Note ii) 16 October 2012 RMB100,000 restaurant
BRMREEREEERRA FE Mk ERER TEEHNREE
(M 3Eii) 20124 10A16H 100,0007T A R #&
Beijing Lapindao Catering The PRC Registered and paid-in capital —  Leasing and business
Management Co., Ltd (Note ii) 30 September 2013 RMB100,000 services
LR RREERERERAA F ZMERERER BEREERS
GED) 20136 9A30H 100,000 A K #&
Beijing New Spicy Way Catering The PRC Registered and paid-in capital —  Leasing and business
Management Co., Ltd (Note ii) 18 January 2016 RMB500,000 services
IR RECEEEERRA HE AR E U ER HE LB ERS
(Ff i) 201641 A18H 500,000 A R #
Beijing Tongbeitiancheng Catering The PRC Registered and paid-in capital —  Leasing and business
Management Co., Ltd (“Tong Bei 31 January 2016 RMB5,000,000 services
Tian Cheng”) (Note ii)
TRBERKERERAERAF FHE A RERER HE LB ERS
(M@A R (i) 201641 A31H 5,000,0007T A R #

Beijing New Spicy Way Trading Co., The PRC Registered and paid-in capital —  Wholesale and retail
Ltd (Note ii) 17 October 2017 RMB1,000,000
RFRENEARA R Fi) HE AR E Y E R HEREE
2017410 A17H 1,000,0007T A R #

BEZERERAE

—E-NEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 and
2017 are as follows: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The companies are registered in the form of wholly-owned foreign
investment enterprises.

(ii) These group entities were newly acquired during the year ended 31
December 2018.

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI)

Set out below is summarized financial information for the
HHG Group that has non-controlling interests that are
material to the Group. The amounts disclosed for the HHG
Group are before inter-company eliminations.

Summarised balance sheet

40 XAFZXTEH B D A
15 ()

(@ XATBZEENRE D T
MR 2018F K 2017F 12 A
SIHZHBWOT : @

B -

() ZERANIIEBELERAF
e

(ii) ZEBEBEBE IR EE2018F124
31HIEFEHUKE -

(b) FEEZRER

TXHIMEAEE 2T HER
ME ZEERBEHAEEMS
BEANFERED MERE
B /£ T A B A R

EEREBREE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
TARY TARE

4

Current assets
Current liabilities

4

\
A

w P

X
=

128,391 175,432
(88,687) (89,719)

39,704 85,713

207,978 188,818
(23,365) (59,667)

184,613 129,151

224,317 214,864

Current net assets REBEEFH
Non-current assets ERBEE
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE
Non-current net assets RBEERE
Net assets FEE
Accumulated NCI ZEFEERE R

38,185 36,755

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the

Company (Continued)

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI) (continued)

CLEE SR )

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F &

40 ARTRZ2EEME R AF

15 (&)

(b) FEI= AR = )

Summarised statement of comprehensive 2EHKBZERE
income
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FARY FARE
Revenue I'@N 421,344 409,524
Profit for the year FREN 8,834 31,257
Total comprehensive income 2HEIKNZETE 8,834 31,257

Profit allocated to NCI
Dividends paid to NCI

[F) FE 4% A A 21 0 B #9 ) M)
ST SRR RS R AR R

1,430 5,398

Summarised cash flows

BERERE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
FTARY TAR®E

Cash flows (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows generated from financing
activities

rEEHFR)/FERE
mE

REEHAABESRE

METHFBEESRE

D
Vi

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

ReRkBReEEY
O 4),/ 48 0% 88

(19,658) 65,387
(39,315) (74,236)

50,382
(58,973) 41,533

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries ofthe 40 XA T 2T EKME A 7 &

Company (Continued)

(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI) (Continued)

Set out below is summarized financial information for the New
Spicy Way Group that has non-controlling interests that are
material to the Group. The amounts disclosed for the New
Spicy Way Group are before inter-company eliminations.

Summarised balance sheet

15 @)

(b) FEI= RS @)

TXEIHREEE M HEER
BE ZEEREYAKEMS
BEANFERER FREE
EEeREAFMEHEATNE -

EEEERAE

2018
RMB’000
TAR®

135,262
(212,491)

(77,229)

533,312
(103,545)

429,767

352,538

Current assets MEEE
Current liabilities nEBE
Current net assets REBEEFE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Non-current liabilities el UN=E
Non-current net assets I RBEEFE
Net assets BEE
Accumulated NCI BEr IR E S

46,034

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F & 203

40 Particulars of principal subsidiaries ofthe 40 XA T 2T EKME A 7 &

Company (continued) 5@
(b) Non-controlling interests (NCI) (Continued) (b) =R #E %= (@)
Summarised statement of comprehensive PHUERFBE
income
2018
RMB’000
FTARM
Revenue WA
Profit for the year FRER
Total comprehensive income ZHKFEEE
Profit allocated to NCI ) FE 22 A% 75 5 e /9 U )
Dividends paid to NCI AN S R PR b A B AR
Summarised cash flows REREWE
2018
RMB’000
FTARY
Cash flows used in operating activities KEEBMARESRE (24,455)
Cash flows generated from investing activities & EEBEHE SR E 80,150
Cash flows used in financing activities RETZEMAERESAESE (33,680)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R4 R RS EEY L N FEE 22,015

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR RN E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

41 Balance sheet and reserve movement of
the Company

N ARFREEREREFER
2E

Balance sheet of the Company APpEEERAER
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
TFARE TFARE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS HRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries BB AR E
— investment cost — B KA 16,360 15,802
— assets due from subsidiaries —EWNB AR EE 1,340,315 577,208
1,356,675 593,005
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Cash and cash equivalents e RIMESEEY 186,581 285,116
Other receivables H fth i U R IE 2,500 -
Derivative financial instrument mEemIT A = 1,029
189,081 286,145
TOTAL ASSETS EERS 1,545,756 879,150
CURRENT LIABILITY mEEE
Other payables H b & 5 5RIB 10,080 4,601
Amount due to subsidiaries AN EENETE ] 1,502 1,293
Convertible bonds Al 2 f% 1 5 19,800 -
Loan from a third party EFEZFER 207,422 200,600
238,804 206,494

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
#r 6 B3 Rk B & ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £2018F 12 31 H It F & 205

41 Balance sheet and reserve movement of 41 KRR EEEERNLES

the Company (Continued) @ E] (48)
Balance sheet of the Company (Continued) EAREEEEBER@®
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FAR®E
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEE
Convertible bonds ARk ES 517,592 -
517,592 —
TOTAL LIABILITY BEHE 756,376 206,494
CAPITAL AND RESERVE BARRGHE
Share capital B& 7 122,949 122,949
Reserves &% 666,411 549,707
TOTAL EQUITY DR 789,360 672,656
TOTAL LIABILITY AND EQUITY EBERERBAE 1,545,756 879,150
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of ARAEEBERER2019F3 H29
Directors on 29 March 2019 and was signed on its behallf: BgEsed g TH NIESAEK
=E:
Zhao John Huan Wang Xiaolong
HSE T
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR
Ex -

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
6 B3 Rk B (R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & £2018F 12 A31 B - F £

41 Balance sheet and reserve movement of

42

41%&%§Eﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁ

the Company (Continued) E] (48)
Reserve movement of the Company AR ESE
Retained
earnings/
(accumulated Other
deficit) reserves Total
Bl
(RFTE#8) Hfth % 15 et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FAR® FAR® FAR®
At 1 January 2017 R20174%1 818 4,782 (38,450) (33,668)
Profit for the year F A ) 617 — 617
Issuance of convertible bonds BT BRES — 88,930 88,930
Shares converted from convertible 7] # j% (& F & 7 & 5
bonds — 493,126 493,126
Currency translation differences PEH ZRE — 702 702
At 31 December 2017 A2017E12831H 5,399 544,308 549,707
Loss for the year FRNEE (13,682) - (13,682)
Issuance of convertible bonds BT BRES — 128,088 128,088
Currency translation differences [E X Z%8 — 2,298 2,298
At 31 December 2018 A2018E12HA31H (8,283) 674,694 666,411

Events after the balance sheet date

42 HEHEREE

On 15 March 2019, the Company has received a conversion notice R2019%F 38158 AR R EE KR E
from Sonic Tycoon Limited in respect of the exercise of the RTAERARBBITEAIBRIRESFT
conversion rights attached to the Convertible Bonds in an s s BRmm- 2R E
aggregate principal amount of HK$139,323,520 at the Conversion 5 7 N4 #5 5139,323,52078 7T
Price of HK$1.18 per Share (the’Conversion”). As a result of the BEAGERRM1IA8E T([EH#]) -
Conversion, the Company allotted and issued a total of B 7 M KR A R2019F3 A 22
118,070,780 Conversion Shares on 22 March 2019 to Sonic HREZABRAARRE LETA R

Tycoon Limited.

Best Food Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2018
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Year ended 31 December
BZE12BA31BLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARE FARE FARE FARE FARY

(Restated)
(Eu)
RESULTS 4
Revenue S 647,721 529,260 477,587 751,801 854,080
Profit/(loss) before B B A5 F1L
taxation (E518) 26,642 12,471 16,608 34,704 (3,235)
Income tax expenses Fris iz i (191) (4,427) (6,739) (14,018) (5,672)
Profit/(loss) for FRER
the year (E518) 26,451 8,044 9,869 20,686 (8,907)

At 31 December
M®12A31H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FARYE FARYE FARYE FARY FARY

(Restated) (Restated)
(E) (E)
ASSETSANDLIABILITIES ¥ERAE
Total assets BEHBT 311,300 507,546 722,250 1,325,752 2,438,434
Total liabilities BERE (87,199 (275,917) (419,126) (399,800) MNEMELREL)
Net assets BEFE 224,101 231,629 303,124 925,862 983,296

BEERERAE =ZE-NFERHR



Investment Property

REWF

Group’s
Location Area Use ownership
ok HE Az sEEAE
No. 189 Chachoengsao-Nakornratchasima Road, 16,194 square wahs Held for capital appreciation 100%

LLad-Takien Sub-district, Kabinburi District,
Prachinburi Province

16,194 751}

FFEARIEE




Environmental, Social and

Governance Report

RE #HEREBERSE

About the Report

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (“the Report”)
is prepared by Best Food Holding Company Limited (“the Company” or
“We”) to review and summarize the Company’s ESG work in 2018. The
reporting scope includes the ESG work of Beiing HHG Restaurant
Management Co., Ltd. and Tianjin HHG Restaurant Management Co.,
Ltd. (“HHG"); Dongguan Deluxe Handbag Manufacturing Limited,
Dongguan Jia Xin Handbag Company Limited, Dongguan Lee Wai
Handbag Co., Ltd., and Dongguan Wei Hua Company Limited (‘Lee &
Man”); and Beijing New Spicy Way Catering Management Ltd. (“New
Spicy Way”) in the mainland of People’s Republic of China. The Report
covers the period from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018. The
information disclosed by this Report is the “general disclosures” and the
environmental KPIs set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”), Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities released by Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited.

ESG Management System

Harmony. It is the Company’s ESG vision to realize harmonious
coexistence with the environment and the society. We firmly and actively
fulfill corporate social responsibility, and strive to build a harmonious
relationship between the Company and the environment, employees and
the society through our constant efforts.

Team Cooperation. Team cooperation is a key attribute for the
Company to achieve good ESG performance. As the business line of the
Company includes both catering industry and manufacturing industry, we
are faced with more complicated challenges in ESG management. To
overcome such challenges, it is critical to collaborate as a team within the
Company to realize its vision of harmony.

Scientific management. It is an effective way for the Company to
realize good ESG performance. The Company insists on promoting
scientific management methodologies and creating a more efficient ESG
management model.

B AR &

ARERERBZERABRAR(BHIAF]K
[(BMDE —_T-—NFRE LERERT
EMEEEBE REHABEREETILER
MERERERERRARALERENEGEAE
HRERAR (HFHEIMEA]D) BRxeRBFH
BRAR REREFRERAF - REF)
EERABERRZEREFRER A A (HHE
B AR FHREEREEBRA
A (AR RENDEPHAEMNIRE g
MERIIEBR - HEB R2018F1H1H
F2018F12H31H - AR EFEFEANR A(E
BEARXHAER QR ESF MR B)H &
TZCORBE g REAMEEIDNI—K
FEIFERREIBRESEEIZE -

R #HERER/ER

Mg -BRERBRHEEONEREL AN
ARAIEHRRE HEMEARHFRANE
RES BZMABEMBESBETLELS
B - #AE2REEBENTEHE N HEoXHA
RE BINRHEZHEENMEREZ
BAI%

BEESE - BEFAERARRERETR
B -HEREARRGRANBETH - X
ARAEBHEERBEEREEIEE AR
B -HekERATIHEEREE REM
MkE - AEBBRAIRNCHEBREE 7
BEEREEMEARE CBERR -

NBEE-HEERRARAERES i
EREARBRANAMAE - KA AR
BREENEAENEES L KHAEE
M MEIRIR - i B REAETRER -

BRERERA2TE —ZT-N\FFR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (CONTINUED)

BoHERER

In order to promote ESG work effectively, we have established a
comprehensive ESG management system. The Board of Directors of the
Company is responsible for the establishment and oversight of the ESG
strategy and risk management; the management of HHG, Lee & Man and
New Spicy Way develop ESG plan and manage their respective ESG
roles; at the same time, all departments carry out their specific measures
to ensure the implementation of ESG work according to the approved
ESG plan and assigned roles.

The Company actively identifies key stakeholders based on its business
operations in obtaining and evaluating their views and expectations. We
have established a variety of communication channels to encourage
participation of our key stakeholders to provide valuable and constructive

HE (&)

ideas and recommendations for our ESG development.

Major Stakeholders
FTERREES

Key Expectations

EFRFR

BTERHERELER M“IW ﬁﬁ
BYTEZENRE HLEhERE?
R-ARRAIEZSLBERE %iaﬁﬁimﬁi
E%W%'JE%H??WE’JTETW?ﬂ/—\”*ﬁﬁ X
FHREEEEALAIRE LS RERG
SlmelTEE S MEEITIFETER:
BF S HSEEXMR L AEBTE
MEITE  BRIER HgREARIENE

g o

RTEBERNECRELR S RNER NS
M R ERRFR ARAHE R m
MR TETEERA - RMEZT ZHAL
HBBERE BMMEHEEINSEE (£
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Modes of Communication

Government and regulators

KRR EE R

Shareholders and investors

RERRIZREE

Employees
BT

Compliance operation
BREE
Compliance with laws
B <Pk

Energy conservation

B B8 R B

Investment returns

2 & Bl 5

Transparent governance
E /D % Hﬂ

Remuneration and benefits
R

Career development
BEER

Labor rights
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Major conferences, policy consultations, institutional

inspections, official exchanges, information disclosure
BEREHE BERENRN BBER AXEXR -EL
5=

Annual reports and announcements, meetings

FRENE T

Employee satisfaction survey, labor union, employee
activities
BImEERAE ITg BLEH
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RIE-HERERHSE (A)

Major Stakeholders Key Expectations Modes of Communication
FERFERS FEFRR BERK
Suppliers ° Fair competition Site visits, conferences, formal and informal
HER o NEHF communication via telephone calls and email
° Integrity correspondences
s WE RmEeh g% B REMG

o Common development
. HEAER

Clients and customers ° Service value Face-to-face communication, telephone calls and
KPEEEE e R%EME email correspondences
. Product responsibility H ¥ R %« B aE L E

s EmBfE
° Privacy protection

e [BAIRE

Community ° Community development Visits, donation and other charitable activities,

@ o HEHE corporate presentations and internship opportunities
e Public warfare activities B BHEARIHLH PESTEREEH
e NmSH L

During 2018, the Company has conducted detailed evaluation of the
subject matters through communication with its major stakeholders on
views and recommendations and internal and external experts’ analysis,
with reference to the “ESG Reporting Guide”. These are summarized
below.
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Low {& Influence on the Best Food Highs
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g % B1 Employment B2 Health and Safety B3 Training and Development
8 ﬁ? B4 Labour Standards  B5 Supply Chain Management  B6 Product Responsibility

g % B7 Anti-corruption B8 Community Investment
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (CONTINUED)

R #HEBRERHZE (H)

Environmental Protection

The Company always regards legal compliance as its foundation, and
strictly abides by the specific laws and regulations in relation to
environmental protection. The environment-related laws and regulations
that have significant impacts over the Company’s operations include the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Energy Conservation, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Environmental Impact Assessment,
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste and the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Water Pollution Prevention. Based on relevant
laws and regulations, the Company has developed an emissions
management plan. During 2018, Best Food had no material non-
compliance events in respect of fulfiling the relevant environment related
regulations.

The major emissions arising from HHG’s and New Spicy Way’s
operations are GHG arising from energy consumption, and non-
hazardous solid wastes such as kitchen waste. HHG and New Spicy Way
are actively making efforts to optimize energy consumption in their
operations so as to reduce GHG emissions.

The major non-hazardous waste generated by HHG includes waste
paper, waste oil, kitchen waste, etc. HHG implements waste sorting
management to collect and dispose recyclable kitchen waste and waste
paper. For instance, certain kitchen waste is used as fertilizer. HHG
entrusts a qualified third party to help with waste oil recycle and
centralized treatment, and regularly tracks the performance of its
recycling process.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (CONTINUED)

The major non-hazardous waste generated by New Spicy Way includes
used and waste oil, kitchen waste and waste paper. According to the
Kitchen Oil Management System of New Spicy Way, all restaurants
should install qualified oil separators to separate oil and water. The
separated water is to be disposed of after it is filtered to meet certain
relevant requirements, whilst used and waste oil is being stored in
specialized barrels. The used and waste oil generated by all restaurants
and the central factory is recycled by professional government-certified
waste oil recycling companies. The kitchen waste generated by all
restaurants is stored in special capped barrels and is recycled by
professional government-certified treatment companies. The waste paper
is mainly generated from cardboard boxes for transporting food, and it is
collected and disposed of by its local recycling companies. In addition, all
restaurants of New Spicy Way actively promote implementation of “clear
your plate” campaign in order to reduce waste, encouraging customers
to save food and avoid food waste through various communication and
posting reminders such us table cards and table stickers.

Lee & Man has established EHS (Environmental, Health and Safety)
management committee that is responsible for the overall management
of environment, health and safety within the operational process of Lee &
Man. Lee & Man continuously increases environmental protection
investment and enhances its supervision, and constantly promotes the
concept of environmental protection. It requires the factories to correctly
treat and use polluting chemicals according to the rules, and avoid
environment pollution as a result. The major emissions of Lee & Man are
non-hazardous waste, hazardous waste, exhausted gas and waste
water. Hazardous waste mainly includes waste glue and waste barrels
and non-hazardous waste includes scrap, waste cardboards and
domestic waste. Hazardous waste is recycled by qualified recycling
companies entrusted by Lee & Man. Non-hazardous waste is classified
and disposed of by Lee & Man through the local municipal recycling sites
whilst scrap and waste cardboards are collected and recycled by external
recycling companies. The major kind of exhausted gas for Lee & Man
relates to GHG generated by energy consumption, where various
reduction measures through energy-saving activities are conducted to
reduce such emissions. It has operated emission treatment equipment
for its exhausted gas generated from its production. In addition, Lee &
Man has updated its canteen and kitchen during 2018 by replacing the
use of diesel with electricity to reduce gas emissions. Lee & Man has
discharged waste water using a combination of physicochemical and
biochemical treatments to ensure quality of discharged water meets
regional and national emission standards.
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BoHgREREE (A)

The Company proactively takes measures in environmental protection,
and promotes the concept of energy conservation throughout the entire
production process.

All restaurants of HHG are practicing low-carbon operation concepts
through using melamine chopsticks to replace disposable chopsticks
which is a pioneer within the fast-food industry, and applying recyclable
porcelain tableware like bowls, saucers and spoons. LED lighting has
been used in all restaurants. HHG saves resources through selection and
use of energy saving multi-function equipment which is compatible to its
product portfolios. In addition, HHG actively cultivates employees’
awareness of energy conservation, encourages and promotes
conservation measures in daily operations, for example, sweeping floor
with recycled water. HHG has developed a performance management
system for its employees that among others associates with cost
efficiency of restaurants so as to mobilize the enthusiasm of employees
to save resources.

New Spicy Way promotes and centralizes recycling of waste items
including used or discarded office equipment. New Spicy Way
encourages paperless office to reduce the consumption of disposable
office supplies.

New Spicy Way has developed a policy — Administrative Measures for
Water and Electricity Conservation, for its production, and has
communicated this policy with all employees as parts of the training
materials to encourage reasonable and efficient use of energy in the
production. The Equipment Department is responsible for checking and
recording routine data of water meters and electricity meters, and
analyzing the consumption on a monthly basis. New Spicy Way has
replaced its 36W ordinary lamps for the production workshop lighting by
9W LED energy-saving lamps, and has encouraged employees to comply
with the “no people, no light on” principle. In terms of water use, New
Spicy Way avoids water waste caused by equipment damage through
inspection and maintenance of faucets, water pipes and water storage
equipment, as well as timely replacement of deficient equipment. It also
uses solar-powered hot water and plug-in card for use by employees to
achieve energy and water conservation.

All restaurants of New Spicy Way use energy-saving air conditioners, with
dust screens and outdoor heat sink regularly cleaned to reduce electricity
consumption. Through this measures, about 35 kWh electricity can be
saved by each restaurant per day. LED energy-saving lamps are used in
all its restaurants.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (CONTINUED)

7

Lee & Man has used energy-saving lamps and strictly controls its air-
conditioner temperatures at no lower than 26 in summer period and no
higher than 20T in winter period in its production factories to reduce
electricity consumption. Lee & Man requires employees to close doors of
factories to reduce heat transmission, and to timely turn off devices to
reduce standby power consumption. Lee & Man uses intelligent IC card
water supply system to minimize the waste of water. In order to save raw
materials, Lee & Man strictly controls the production process, with
stringent quality control procedures executed prior to processing.
Rigorous checking is conducted for its clipping and typesetting for
machine selection to reduce or minimize raw materials scrap and waste.

The Company mainly impacts environment and natural resources with
emissions and resources-consumed from its daily operations as
described above. We have adopted environmental protection measures
to reduce emissions and resource consumption, and minimize the
impacts on the environment and natural resources from its operations.
We will continue to improve our environmental management system,
formulate and update our environmental policies.

The disclosure of environmental performance data for 2018 presented
below includes all Controlling Brands except for New Spicy Way which
was newly acquired by the Company in November 2018.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (CONTINUED)

BoHgREREE (A)

Table of Key Performance Indicators — HHG MEARBEEVIEER

2018 Data
Indicators EiE 2018 & &
Emissions E2 387
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) (tonnes)! B =meEHrsa 8 (8 E — L& E =) ()’ 8,734.07
GHG emissions per RMB miillion in revenue BETHWAREREHHRME/AET)

(tonnes/RMB million) 20.65
Non-hazardous waste (tonnes) mEREEYESE (HE) 622.00
Non-hazardous waste per RMB million in revenue BETWAREEZEYESE(BE/B587T)

(tonnes/RMB million) 1.47
Energy and resources consumption EiRER
Total energy consumption (MWh)? REREFEAE CkREE)? 11,607.96
Including: Direct energy consumption (MWh) Heh: BB EECKRE) 169.51

Indirect energy consumption (MWh) BRI E KR E) 11,438.45
Energy consumption per RMB million in revenue BETRAEREREKRE/BET)

(MWh/RMB million) 0745
Water consumption (tonnes) FEKE (18) 118,761
Water consumption per RMB million in revenue BETWAEKE (WE/5ET)

(tonnes/RMB million) 280.82
Packing materials (tonnes)® By (HE)° 320.00
Packing materials per RMB million in revenue BETRABEY (ME/ 5&T)

(tonnes/RMB million) 0.76

Notes: EaE

1 Due to its business nature, the significant gas emissions are GHG emissions, arising 1
mainly from electricity generated by burning fossil fuels. The GHG inventory includes
carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide. GHG emissions data is presented in
carbon dioxide equivalent and is based on the 2015 Baseline Emission Factors for
Regional Power Grids in China issued by the National Development and Reform
Commission of China.

2 Energy consumption only includes purchased electricity. 2

3 Packing materials mainly include cartons and plastic bags. 3
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (CONTINUED)
RIE-HERERHSE (A)

Table of Key Performance Indicators — Lee & Man

BXREAVREERR

2018 Data
Indicators BE 2018 & &
Emissions 3871
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and Scope 2) (fonnes)! B =R eEHr4a 8 (8 E — L& E =) ()’ 1,827.59
GHG emissions per HKD million in revenue BETHRAREREHHRME/AET)

(tonnes/HKD million) 4.00
Hazardous waste (tonnes) EEEEYES () 0.57
Hazardous waste per HKD million in revenue BETWABEEZEYESE B/ B587T)

(tonnes/HKD million) 0.0012
Non-hazardous waste (tonnes) mEREYEE (W) 86.00
Non-hazardous waste per HKD million in revenue BETWAEEEEYE=E (/58T

(tonnes/HKD million) 0.19
Energy and resources consumption EiREH
Total energy consumption (MWh)? BEROHFEBE KR R)? 2,899.24
Energy consumption per HKD million in revenue BETWARREFECKERE/ AET)

(MWh/HKD million) 6.34
Water consumption (tonnes) HEFREIK B (WE) 282,534.00
Water consumption per HKD million in revenue BETWAREKE B/ BET)

(tonnes/HKD million) 617.91
Packing materials (tonnes)® B (HE)° 307.00
Packing materials per HKD million in revenue BEBETWRASEY(ME/AET)

(tonnes/HKD million) 0.67

Notes:

1

Due to its business nature, the significant gas emissions are GHG emissions, arising
mainly from electricity generated by burning fossil fuels. The GHG inventory includes
carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide. GHG emissions data is presented in
carbon dioxide equivalent and is based on the 2015 Baseline Emission Factors for
Regional Power Grids in China issued by the National Development and Reform
Commission of China.

Energy consumption only includes purchased electricity.

Packing materials mainly include cartons and plastic bags.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (CONTINUED)

R g RERHRE (H)

Emphasis on Talent Developments

Employees are the foundation of our sustainable business development.
The Company values talents, focuses on employees’ needs and protects
employees’ legitimate rights and interests.

During its operation process, the Company actively recognizes and
abides by laws and regulations concerning employment and employees’
rights and interests, such as the Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of
China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of
Minors, the Regulations on the Labor Protection of Female Employees,
the Regulation on Paid Annual Leave for Employees and the Provisions
on Minimum Wages, etc. Based on the requirements of relevant laws and
regulations, the Company has established a comprehensive human
resources management system, and each business segment has
established relevant policies based on its actual business circumstances.
The Company has revised its human resources policies and implemented
necessary management procedures in complying with the newly revised
tax laws in October 2018 — Individual Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China.

The Company has established a fair and equitable performance appraisal
system to ensure that all employees are remunerated fulfilling the
statutory set minimum wage or above. In order to attract talents and
retain excellent performing employees, the Company regularly reviews its
salary standards benchmarking with the market to develop a market
competitive salary and bonus system. The company has built an
attractive and fair compensation system based on performance,
professional qualifications and experience of the employees.

The Company signs formal employment contracts or labor agreements
with all employees according to laws and regulations, and fulffills relevant
obligations in strict accordance with the terms in the contract. The
Company has also established complete dismissal policies and
procedures.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (CONTINUED)

In terms of recruitment, the Company implements an open and fair
recruitment, and considers professional capabilities and qualifications,
regardless of gender, race, religions and pregnancy status. The HR
Department verifies the age and identity of applicants through reviewing
and qualification verification, and conducts background check on core or
special positions as appropriate. We constantly expand our diverse
recruitment channels, including website recruitment, campus recruitment,
headhunting and internal referrals etc., providing stable and multi-layered
talent support for the Company’s long-term sustainable development.

The Company strictly prohibits the employment of child labor. HHG
clearly stipulates in its Employee Handbook, that it is not allowed to
employ or use child labor. New Spicy Way avoids the recruitment of child
labor through implementing documented internal control procedural
measures. Lee & Man has also enacted the Policy for Prohibiting the
Recruitment of Child Labor and Remedial Procedures.

In terms of employee promotion, the Company implements internal
policies such as employee performance evaluation and promotion
management, providing employees with career development paths such
as internal promotion and on the job training.

The Company strictly prohibits forced labor. The Company has
established relevant rules for attendance and leave management, and
has a policy of requiring approval for special working hours in different
places in accordance with the local laws. The HR Department is
responsible for managing working hours of employees, communicating
with person in charge in case of any abnormality and requiring for
reasonable, as well as arranging overtime leave or payment. The
Company provides employees with statutory holidays, annual leave and
maternity leave and other benefits.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (CONTINUED)

R g RERHRE (H)

The Company encourages a diversified corporate culture. We actively
provide employees with a fair working environment, and do not accept
any discrimination and inequality. The Company has also taken various
measures for employee rights protection and communication. Lee & Man
attaches importance to the system of employee representative
conference, and holds employee representative conference at least once
a year. The conference aims to help employees to understand the
Company’s development and major issues related to the vital interests of
themselves, provide opportunities to employees for expressing their
opinions and suggestions, and feedbacks on Company’s development.
In order to encourage direct communication between employees and the
management, New Spicy Way and HHG have provided employees with
management’s direct telephone numbers and email addresses so that
they can provide feedback or raise concerns. The Company actively
communicates with resigning employees and analyzes their root causes
to identify and respond to employees’ issues.

In order to attract and retain talents, the Company offers a variety of
benefits and employees activities so that employees’ performance and
their contributions can be recognized and rewarded.

In addition to its basic social security, HHG continuously carries out
annual activities, such as managements’ visit for frontline employees
before the Spring Festival, free meals for female employees who work on
the Women’s Day, fire drill training, autumn tours, overseas tours for high
performing employees, annual meetings and awards for the excellent
employees of the year, so as to promote the balance between work and
life of employees. In 2018, HHG has carried out ratings of the high
performing employees of the year and selected “heroes” for the 15th
anniversary, and commended them with rewards.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (CONTINUED)

HHG regularly holds employee forums, intern forums and various other
forums. Prior to setting an important HR policy, management consults
with employees and listens to their suggestions and opinions to ensure it
can be well implemented. After the implementation of a new policy,
management regularly evaluates and studies the implementation at the
frontline, and refines the plan according to employees’ opinions. In
addition, management regularly visits the restaurants to conduct
employee surveys, collects opinions and suggestions to HHG'’s current
systems and the work of each department, and responds to such
opinions and suggestions together with relevant departments.

New Spicy Way provides employees with social security benefits,
including basic salary, allowances, communication subsidy, transportation
subsidy, commission, performance bonus, medical insurance, work injury
insurance, maternity insurance, housing provident fund, etc. New Spicy
Way provides other benefits for restaurant staff based on their work
nature, such as meals, uniforms and well-equipped dormitories.

As required by Lee & Man, pensions are paid and periodical occupational
health check-up benefit is provided for all existing employees. Employees
are entitled to medical benefits reimbursement, annual welfare housing
and meal subsidy according to Lee & Man'’s relevant regulations. Lee &
Man provides employees with free air-conditioned dormitories, Internet
cafe, ball rooms, projection chambers, etc. In order to improve the
cohesiveness of employees and let them feel family warmth from Lee &
Man, it also sends small birthday gifts and holds monthly birthday parties
with generous sweepstakes to celebrate employees’ birthdays. In every
Spring Festival holiday, Lee & Man awards 10-year long-term service
awards (10-year gold medal) to eligible employees. Since 2018, Lee &
Man has been organizing short-term hiking for every quarter to promote
more healthy activities of employees whilst increasing employees’
bonding. More importantly, though these activities, leaders may have
more chances to know our employees and listen to their feedbacks.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (CONTINUED)
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The Company strives to provide employees with a safe and healthy
working environment.

HHG has attached importance to employees’ health and safety and
strictly abides by the laws and regulations including the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Work Safety and the Regulations on Work-
Related Injury Insurance. In addition, HHG has developed the System of
Labor Safety and Health and Operation Protection in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations, and incorporated the Safety Management
Regulations in its documented Employee Handbook. Safety training is an
important part of the induction training for new employees of HHG. With
regard to the restaurant management, HHG has developed the special
Regulations on Store Safety Management and established emergency
plans in response to safety and health accidents. The restaurants are
arranged with safety administrators who regularly conduct and record
safety training as required. For fire protection design, HHG also carries
out safety inspections and regular maintenance. The annual Fire and
Electrical Equipment Inspection also covers all restaurants. HHG
organizes employees to conduct fire drills and training every year. In
2018, nearly 130 persons, with 1 to 2 persons from each restaurant,
participated in the fire drills. HHG organizes management personnel from
the headquarters to take health check-up every year. All new staffs of all
restaurants, logistics division and related departments are required to
conduct health check obtaining relevant health certificates prior to their
employments.

In terms of its factory production, New Spicy Way has developed a formal
policy — Compilation of Work Safety Management System which is
communicated with all its employees as part of the training requirements.
New Spicy Way regularly conducts safety inspections on production
areas and office areas; full-time fire security officers are assigned, and the
Equipment Department conducts check on fire hydrants, fire
extinguishers and fire pump rooms every day to ensure normal operation
of the equipment; forklift drivers are required to be certified; water,
electricity and gas in the workshops must be turned off before the work
ends every day, and specialized personnel conduct onsite inspection.
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In terms of operations and restaurant staff at the frontline, New Spicy In
terms of operations and restaurant staff at the frontline, New Spicy Way
requires duty managers of the restaurants to patrol the restaurant every
day, conduct safety risk inspections on production and office areas. The
duty managers are also required to promote safety awareness of
employees and monitors safety of employees at all times, including
during and after working hours. The rules such as Safety Preservation,
Personnel and Government Policies and Disinfection and Food Safety are
included in the training materials for restaurant managers. For second-
line employees, New Spicy Way arranges pro-occupational health check-
up and on-boarding training (including safety training) for new employees.
All in-service employees are provided with health examinations every
year, as well as optional supplementary medical insurance and financial
support for accidents. New Spicy Way also encourages respective heads
of all departments to care for the physical and mental health of
employees and help employees understand their health status timely. All
departments regularly organize team building.

Lee & Man has established a specialized EHS Committee and developed
a system of occupational health and safety management for occupational
health and safety management. The Occupational Health and Safety
Work Guide stipulates that all employees should wear protective
equipment, and protective reminder signs should be set up in all areas.
All employees are regularly provided with health examinations every year.
New employees should take part in a three-level safety education and
training, covering the plant-level, workshop-level and group-level, and
should pass the examination before embarking on operations. Employees
who begin to work are required to take a period of internship, so as to
ensure the work safety. For in-service employees, Lee & Man supervises
and educates them to correctly use personal protective items, and
provides first aid training every year, including artificial respiration and
cardio-pulmonary resuscitation. Lee & Man organizes two major fire drills
every year to ensure that employees learn to undertake escape, rescue
and fire extinguishments and other fire safety measures knowledge. EHS
Committee gives full play to its responsibility for health and safety
management by holding health and safety meetings regularly, checking
existing safety problems in work place, and putting forward improvement
measures. For noise problem caused by machines in production
workshops, Lee & Man commissions the Dongguan Disease Prevention
and Control Center to monitor air and noise in the workshops regularly.
Lee & Man regards fire safety as a top priority in respect of its
inflansnmable products such as handbags. It adopts the principle of “special
protection for special areas”, and carries out fire training and emergency
drills on a regular basis.
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The Company focuses on the competencies development of its
employees. Management and store managers or above are provided with
training programs through Best Food University. In addition, each
business segment also develops appropriate training systems based on
its business characteristics.

In April 2018, HHG has systematically formulated its training system
which is primarily classified into the store level and the headquarters level.
HHG maintains common training standards at the store level and has
developed training manuals, including training on safety, service and fire
protection. Each restaurant has a trainer, and the restaurant manager
and the trainer are responsible for organizing staff training in daily work.
The restaurant manager is responsible for assessing the store staff
according to different positions requirements. For all in-service
employees, the Technical Department will request for timely training upon
any product update; if there is no product update, it still conducts
monthly training on food safety and fire protection. At the headquarter
level, HHG renews its training programs for employees at different levels
each year, and provides training for secondary managers and restaurant
managers on a monthly basis when necessary. After the training, online
functional examinations and shop practice examinations are carried out
1o test training results of the employees. Secondary managers may apply
for the duty management course, and the applicants can be qualified as
restaurant manager only after completing the training and passing the
practice examination.
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From January 2018 to December 2018, HHG arranged 2 work training
sessions with 4 participants, 4 business management training sessions
with 115 participants, 10 duty management training session with 262
participants and 2 regional supervision training sessions with 16
participants.

New Spicy Way has established a training system covering all employees,
including new employee orientation, external training courses, and
operational drills. With respect to workers at the production line, it has
formulated such management policies and regulations as the
Management Group Training System, the Service Group Training System
and the Career Development System. The Operation Training Department
is responsible for formulating annual general training policies, verifying the
development and implementation of annual training plans within each
sub-market segment, and providing assistance, support and acceptance
services where necessary. In terms of other workers, apart from attending
the orientation, they need to participate in relevant external training
courses in accordance with different professional requirements from the
department of New Spicy Way. In regard to external employment in
2018, New Spicy Way recruited and trained 11 qualified restaurant
managers, 3 assistant managers, 52 assistants and 2 management
trainees; while in respect to internal promotion, it promoted 1 marketing
general manager, 7 district managers, 6 senior restaurant managers, 7
restaurant managers, 13 senior assistant managers, 32 assistant
managers, 34 assistants and 60 team leaders. Sum to more than 12
courses were conducted by market segments, with 7 lecturers fostered.
In addition, over 48 commmunication meetings and 1 large-scale national
core seminar were held by market segments.

Lee & Man conducts efficient and targeted training for employees,
including new employee orientation and on-the-job trainings. New
employee orientation mainly includes five aspects: the regulations of
factories and the Company, safety, health, computer security, and
counter-terrorism, which is aimed at introducing characteristics and
working environment of the Lee & Man to new employees, so that they
can adapt to the organizational culture as soon as possible and speed up
change to professional psychology. On-the-job training is mainly aimed at
improving employees’ operating skills and work safety awareness. In
addition, Lee & Man makes use of leisure time to conduct lectures for
female staff on legal knowledge and the spirit of “self-respect, self-
confidence, self-reliance, and self-improvement”. Lee & Man also holds
tea parties for staff interview and learning, or for spread of children’s
safety knowledge to employees’ family members, so as to balance
employees’ work and life.
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Supply Chain Management

The Company actively establishes win-win development relationships
with its partners, and also focuses on environmental and social risks in
the supply chain management, encouraging suppliers to improve their
environmental and social performance.

The suppliers of HHG mainly include food suppliers and construction
suppliers. HHG is concerned about their compliance performance in
environmental and social aspects, and requires all suppliers to meet the
environmental and social compliance requirements.

For food suppliers, HHG has established a “from farm-to-table” quality
and food safety standard system, a whole-process network monitoring
system and a food traceability system, so as to ensure the safety of its
production supply chain. HHG selects suppliers with required
qualifications and qualified external inspection results for cooperation,
and implements strict access policies. For aspects of transportation of
raw materials and food, processing and warehouse, HHG implements
strict control and supervision. For the acceptance and transportation of
raw materials, HHG documents and maintains records of inspection and
quarantine certificate, CIQ certificate, qualification certificate, external
inspection report and other documents for each batch of food ingredients
received. In April 2018, HHG and the Lintingkou Town Government of
Baodi District, Tianjin City held a signing ceremony for purchase of
agricultural products project. Under the themes of “Base Establishment +
Association + Orders to Farmer”, it aims to develop a step by step
approach to develop HHG’s plantation base for raw materials whilst
purchasing the “Three-spicy” agricultural products covering six-clove red
garlic, five-leaf Chinese onion and Tianying Pepper. This project also fully
leverage both parties’ advantages to implement and promote targeted
poverty alleviation, as well as a people-benefit project for HHG to actively
fulfill its social responsibilities.

As for construction suppliers, HHG requires that the suppliers must
obtain design and construction qualifications, and gives priority to
reputable branded suppliers. In terms of accepting suppliers, HHG
implements a strict approval system, requires multistage verification for
supplier’s qualifications, material quotation budget and final accounts,
etc. In addition, HHG continually monitors existing suppliers according to
the Supplier Management System, and provides feedback to suppliers
on aspects of quality and production safety.
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In the process of supplier admittance, New Spicy Way conducts a
quallification review of the suppliers, and only suppliers who meet the
requirements could be selected. New Spicy Way visits the National
Enterprise Credit Information Publicity System to check if the supplier has
administrative punishment records in terms of food safety and
environmental pollution, etc., the result of which will be indispensable
reference for the comprehensive assessment. As for supplier selection,
New Spicy Way prioritizes large-scale suppliers with system certifications,
such as ISO9001, and completes the Supplier Review Form jointly by the
Purchasing Department, Quality Control Department and Operation
Department on a regular basis, so as to assess supply ability, delivery
term, price, quality, packaging and services of the suppliers. The
elimination mechanism is applied to unqualified suppliers, and the
supplier information will be updated after each assessment.

To manage the suppliers, Lee & Man has developed the Business Partner
Security Policy. When selecting supplies, Lee & Man gives preference to
environmental friendly suppliers and materials, and establishes a list of
Qualified Suppliers and performs on-site assessments for the suppliers
on a regular basis. For the suppliers the quality of whose materials are
unstable, or who often delay the delivery which may affects production,
Lee & Man will send the suppliers a Notice of Improvement to ask them
to take actions for improvement and report on remediation status. The
Procurement Department is responsible for follow-up and keeping
records. In 2018, the Auditing Department of Lee & Man selected some
suppliers to conduct on-site social responsibility review and conducted
performance evaluation on the suppliers’ environmental and social risks:
including whether the supplier is in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations; whether the supplier has obtained relevant permissions;
whether the supplier hires child labor; and whether the supplier provides
employees with labor protection. For any suppliers who fail to fulfill the
requirements, it will immediately cease business cooperation and those
suppliers will be required to make rectifications within a certain period.
For those reviewed and qualified suppliers, they will also be revisited
regularly.
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Product Responsibility

The Company always attaches importance to product responsibility and
strictly abiding by laws and regulations such as the Food Safety Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests and the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Product Quality. Relying on
requirements in the above-mentioned laws and regulations, the Company
takes a variety of management measures to improve the quality of
products and services, so as to provide economic, environmentally
friendly, safe and reliable products for consumers. In 2018, the new Food
Safety Code of Practice for Catering Services was promulgated and
implemented, which exerted a significant impact on the Company’s
catering segment. In accordance with the requirements of the Code,
HHG and New Spicy Way provided training for the frontline restaurant
operators and other personnel in supporting departments in a timely
manner to inform them of the changes in the Code and the related
precautions, so as to standardize employees’ conduct. In 2018, the
Company had no significant violation against the laws and regulations
related to product health and safety.

As a catering company, HHG puts food safety as its bottom line to insist
on. HHG has been constantly improving customer experience by
innovating its supply chain, reviewing its suppliers and optimizing its store
model on the basis of enhancement of product quality. HHG has
prepared and implemented the Comprehensive Emergency Plan for Food
Safety Incidents, the Measures for Safety Management of Supplier
Quality, the Specification for Food Safety Management, the Measures for
Management of Food Additives, the Measures for Management of Food
Recall as well as relevant inspection policies regarding product quality,
and provided training for relevant personnel and restaurant employees.
HHG has been successively certified by the 1SO9001 Quality
Management System and 1ISO22000 Food Safety Management System.
In 2011, it began to introduce high performance management model and
became the first catering enterprise in China to adopt the high
performance standard (GB/T 19580-2012). HHG applies the international
standard of Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point (HACCP) to ensure
food safety. This system, based on prevention and science, is able to
identify, evaluate and control hazards. The system covers the whole
production process including raw material selection, production and
processing, production at stores, and delivery to customers, thus
ensuring the safety of the production chain.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (CONTINUED)

In 2018, HHG has continued to strengthen organizational-level protection,
and has intensified the implementation of food safety measures. HHG
has set up a food safety group, which was led by the general manager
and composed of managers of various functional departments, with
clearly defined accountability. In addition, HHG establishes a hierarchical
inspection system covering the head office, the departments and the

restaurants, to inspect quality, service, sanitation and management of

each restaurant and to execute control measures on significant hazards
in the course of daily management.
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Example: In May 2018, the Beijing Municipal Government held the “Work
Deployment Conference on Comprehensive Improvement of the Quality
of Capital Catering Industry”. This conference aims to improve quality
within the catering industry, and 6 principle aspects of the priorities
were established: 1) continuously expanding the coverage of the
Sunshine Catering Project, 2) improving the environmental health
standards as well as levels of the catering industry, 3) comprehensively
promoting the “Toilet Revolution” of catering units, 4) enhancing the
cultural taste of the industry, 5) promoting civilized services and civilized
dining, and 6) establishing a social incentive evaluation mechanism. In
response to these, HHG participated in the selection of “Quality
Catering Model Store”. Through actively involving all employees to
implement operational best standards and to improve customer
experience, HHG was awarded “Quality Catering Model Store” in the
“Work Summary Conference on Improvement of the Quality of Capital
Catering Industry” on November 26.
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New Spicy Way has established a suitable security system for food safety
based on its unique business characteristic. With regard to the suppliers’
review, an on-site review of the supplier is also required in addition to
reviewing whether its qualifications and inspection reports are in
accordance with regulatory requirements. Based on the on-site
assessment results, New Spicy Way ceases to further conduct business
with those unqualified suppliers, whilst closely monitoring on a continuous
basis on those qualified suppliers to ensure food safety and quality at all
times. As for those important suppliers, New Spicy Way conducts
rigorous supervision with in-plant staff. For raw materials supplied by the
suppliers, apart from carrying out quality inspection, New Spicy Way may
consider product registration where necessary, and conducts regular
supervision and inspection on food safety in its restaurants. In 2018, New
Spicy Way has continued to maintain the qualification by the ISO9001
Quality Management System and the 1SO22000 Food Safety
Management System, and continuously won the China Food Health
Seven Star Award, becoming the model unit of catering quality and safety
improvement project and the quality catering candidate in Beijing. New
Spicy Way also involved in the interpretation for the new Food Safety
Code of Practice for Catering Services, and led the formulation of the
Guide for Food Labeling for Central Kitchens of the Catering Industry.

Lee & Man adheres to the principle of “quality first, and customer-
oriented”, setting the goals to produce products that meet legal
requirements and customer requirements. To this end, Lee & Man has
formulated the “Quality Manual” which provides guidance for quality
inspection and control through the whole process, from raw materials to
finished product shipments. In production, Lee & Man strictly controls
product quality and intensifies quality inspection. In case of defect goods,
Lee & Man would identify, segregate, assess, handle and record, taking
measures for rectification.

The Company strictly complies with the relevant provisions in the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China, and makes publicity
on the basis of actual product to circumvent false advertising or mislead
consumers. Advertisements on the official website and the Company
news published by other official media promotion channels must be
examined and approved by relevant departments to ensure the accuracy
and authenticity of the information. In 2018, the Company had no
significant violation against the laws and regulations related to advertising.
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The Company is in strict compliance with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests
and other relevant provisions. In order to protect the personal privacy of
members, HHG provides access to the member information for
employees on the basis of post requirements, and specifies the
provisions for data confidentiality and for the corresponding measures for
violations in the contract signed with the third-party who develops the
member information management system. New Spicy Way has clearly
defined the management of member’s personal information in “The
Article of Association for New Spicy Way VIP Club”. New Spicy Way
adopts a professional CRM system provided by the third-party to
manage member information and member-related marketing promotions.
Terms regarding data security are clearly defined in its service contract
signed with the third-party. Based on the post requirements, Lee & Man
specifies the data access of employees to mitigate the risk of data
leakage. An entry system with only authorized card is established for
offices so as to prevent unauthorized entry. In addition, the head of the
Computer Department will conduct long-term monitoring and
management of the system to ensure smooth and normal daily
operations. It is also required that on-duty securities pay special attention
to lawbreakers around the sensitive departments during their patrol. In
2018, the Company had no significant leakage of customer data privacy.

The Company values the comments from customers. Each subsidiary
has established a customer complaint and communication system in line
with its business characteristics. The communication channels include
customer service hotline, email, special page on social media and
membership platform, which enable customers to share comments or
express their demands. When a customer complaint and feedback is
received, each subsidiary shall determine the responsible department
and level based on the specific circumstances, and promptly contact the
customer to provide responses as early as possible.
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The Company attaches great importance to the protection of intellectual
property rights, strictly abides by relevant laws and regulations such as
the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, and conducts patent
applications to protect its intellectual property rights. For the purpose of
obviating infringement on intellectual property rights, it conducts a
content review to publicity materials, materials or finished products with
trademarks.

Anti-Corruption

The Company strictly adheres to the laws and regulations relating to anti-
corruption, such as the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China and
the Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery, develops and
implements internal integrity management policies, and takes integrity as
core value of corporate management.

Through the contracts signed with suppliers, HHG restricts the conducts
of suppliers, and avoids corruption and bribes. The Employee Handbook
explicitly stipulates the professional ethics and code of conduct. HHG
also sets up online supervision channels such as WeChat working group,
e-mail and phone, so that employees can timely report issues. HHG
ensures that all reporting channels are unblocked, and the issues
reported can be investigated in time. As for significant problems such as
illegal operation and potential fraud, the Audit Department will carry out
timely follow-up. Once it is verified, it would be dealt with seriously.
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New Spicy Way has explicitly stipulated in the Employee Handbook that
bribes and falsification are strictly prohibited. For employees who commit
gross neglect of duty, or have violation against laws for personal gains
and fraud, New Spicy Way will enforce prosecution for their criminal
offences and any financial compensations in accordance with laws. In the
Employee Handbook, New Spicy Way lists out the following acts as
serious disciplinary violations: “Embezzlement of public funds and theft of
company’s asset or personal money; violation against the national laws
and regulations, and engagement in illegal activities; serious abuse of
authority or power to retaliate or shield others”. New Spicy Way includes
“Provisions for anti-bribery” in its significant procurement contracts, and it
is stipulated that “The employees or other representative of the supplier
shall not provide gifts, presents, and cash to our staff, including but not
limited to: shares, bonuses, cash, gifts, presents, entertainment tickets,
special discounts or non-work product samples, journeys paid by
suppliers, after-work meals and entertainment, etc. It is also prohibited to
invite or organize any of our staff to work part-time for suppliers or to
arrange for any family members and other relatives of our staff to be
employed by the supplier.” In addition, New Spicy Way requires a written
declaration of integrity by its suppliers together with the procurement or
leasing contracts entered into.

In addition, New Spicy Way has formulated the Administrative Measures
for Complaints and Reports, according to which employees can,
anonymously or in real-name, report any violations against laws such as
corruption, bribery, abuse of power, extortion and fraud. New Spicy Way
actively promote such whistleblower mechanism through various
communication such as poster, and billboard.
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The commercial behaviors of Lee & Man is based on “integrity and
justice”. Lee & Man made specifications of business ethics in its
management rules, so as to avoid unethical behaviors and to encourage
honest and ethical behaviors. In addition, through Instructions to
Suppliers, Lee & Man established a code of honest trading to prevent
corruption in procurement. It also developed Anti-corruption and Anti-
bribery Procedures to prevent bribery in factory management, and to
ensure that employees’ legitimate rights and interests are protected. The
Procedures specifically prohibit employees from receiving any illegal gains
such as commissions and kickbacks in any way, or offering bribery to
people in business relationship with Lee & Man. Such behaviors if
identified will be punished with legal proceedings. In addition, the
Procedures also stipulates that all employees have the rights to report
employees’ unethical behaviors to senior management, and the
management’s telephone and email address have been publicized to all
employees. For all reports, the factories are committed to protection
privacy of sensitive matters reported under whistle-blowers. Lee & Man
protects whistle-blowers’ personal information in a serious way.

Community Investment

HHG is committed to taking social responsibility. With the mission of
“providing customers with healthy and delicious food, convenient and
affordable catering services” HHG promotes public welfare as its
responsibility. As a catering enterprise, HHG collaborated the local
government to launch “Clean Plate Campaign”, calling on the public to
make full use of resources. In addition, HHG also participated in the
volunteer service activity named “Courtesy in Beijing — Civil Special
Action on Zebra Crossing”. It aims to increase employees’ awareness of
the importance and necessity of obeying traffic rules and civilized
travelling, and through this activity they can play a leading role in
influencing other people. In addition, following the tradition of previous
years, HHG continues to hold “Aerobics in HHG” to promote the culture
of healthy living.
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“Courtesy in Beijing — Civil Special Action on Zebra Crossing”.
BEILRELENB—TREONSREETHED

New Spicy Way actively undertakes social responsibilities, communicates
with relevant communities and stakeholders to understand their
demands, and conducts relevant community activities to deliver the value
orientation of New Spicy Way, pursuing a favorable humanistic
environment, to the public. New Spicy Way vigorously assumes its
corporate social responsibilities, upholds the core corporate culture of
“being a sunny and highly responsible enterprise”, and advocates mutual
care and assistance among employees. At the end of 2017, as the
mother of a restaurant manager of New Spicy Way, was suffering from
blood diseases, Zhou Penghui, the CEO of New Spicy Way, initiated an
internal call for assistance. As a result, there were more than 10 blood
donors, with a fund raised exceeding RMB50,000.
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Lee & Man actively organizes voluntary activities of relief and support for 2 3 f& iR 48 44 ¥ 55 L B B2 BB Mk 35 =
the disadvantaged groups. In 2018, it organized volunteers to visit 11 FE E &) - 20184 - A Al A EFEE H LT
lonely old people and three poor families in Shangjiangcheng , Hu'anwei 3 - % E - AR+ —FIBEZ A =
and Qishi village. A total of RMB5,000 worth of gifts were organized for FR#%PHE TR @ IR EE —HEHFT
this activity. On December 14, 2018, Lee & Man organized and carried  50007T B 3£ #)  20184E12 A14 8 - A A1 48
out a visiting activity to rough sleepers, so as to send care to themand #HEBERBAEN KRS EE AEE
help them to return to the society. ABRXREHEE  HHHMESHGEE -

Visiting lonely old people and poor families
MENBEZAREERP
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